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March 19, 2008

Dear Fellow Shareholder Washington, DC 208549

I am delighted to be writing to you for the first time as your Chairman folloﬁing my election to this
position in July of 2007.

I am particularly pleased to be leading the Company at this time in what I believe will be a positive period,
allowing us to capitalize on our secure financial position, within a highly fragmented market where we are
a market leader. We are already seeing growth in our delivered hours continuing a trend established in
quarter four of our fiscal 2007, Our recent new business wins are adding to our geographical spread and
result from our ability to capitalize on the quality of our service offering and our reputation in the
marketplace.

The past two years have been particularly difficult for Allied. During this period we have been adversely
impacted by the transition from the Hospital Staffing sector to Domicilary Care services, by the difficulties
in implementing a new Oracle branch based IT system and by the losses incurred on the start up of the
new Allied Respiratory home delivery oxygen contracts.

I am pleased to report that during the past 12 months your management turned around the fortunes of
Allied’s Respiratory division and achieved a sale of the division for $74.7 million (£36.5 million) in
September 2007. This enabled us to become debt free and indeed, to go beyond this and move to a point
where we had more than $20 million cash available on the balance sheet at the fiscal year end for
investment in our future growth. The sale also leaves our management free to focus on both organic and
acquisition based growth opportunities in our core Domiciliary Care market.

Following the departure of our previous Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Sarah Eames kindly
stepped into the interim CEO position to manage the Company during the transition period until a new,
appropriately qualified CEO could be recruited to join our Company. I would like to thank Sarah on
behalf of the Board for her support and dedication during the past six months while this process was under
way.

Sarah will also be stepping down from the Allied Board in May after a long and distinguished relationship
with Allied. We wish to thank her for her years of dedication and experience and wish her well in her
future endeavours.

As stated above, we commenced an international search for a new Chief Executive Officer during the

summer of 2007. As we recently reported, this effort concluded in January 2008, when we welcomed

Sandy Young as our new CEO and member of our Board of Directors. Sandy brings more than 30 years

experience of running a distributed branch network in the service and temporary contracting sectors and

a rigorous attention to operational and financial disciplines. You will be able to read his initial

observations and plans in his letter, which follows. I am delighted to welcome him and feel sure that he
~will add greatly to our success in the years ahead.

Finally, I would like to thank all our employees for their contribution to the transformation of Allied
Healthcare International Inc. and to the delivery of an outstanding service to our care users. They are the
true face of Allied to the world we serve and our success is their success.

Yours sincerely

rle s

H.J. Mark Tompkins
Chairman




March 19, 2008
Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to be working with the team at Allied and look forward to the challenges ahead. My
background at Rentokil Initial and more recently within Chubb Electronic Security covered a range of
service activities, all branch based, some capital intensive, some people intensive. Having now had almost
two months within Allied I feel my previous experiences have been very relevant and the issues within
Allied seem very familiar to me. ‘

We believe the market in social care is still expanding and although local authorities are reducing the
number of individuals they provide care to, the total number of hours they are placing is still increasing
as evidenced in recent industry reports. During March we have been awarded two separate Local
Aauthority contracts commencing over the next few months and providing a total of 5,000 hours of
- homecare ¢ach week.

Our own experiences in the social care sector have also been positive and it has been the decrease in our
NHS activities that has impacted our total results. However, as the NHS now represents less than 10% of
our total activities we anticipate the future impact of the NHS on our business to be more limited.

I have two particular focus arc¢as at present that I want to share with you. The first is the emphasis on
improving our recruitment and retention to provide the care workers we need to support the growth of
our business, and there are a number of initiatives we are undertaking to support this. The second area
is to achieve further operating efficiencies in our branch network and in our head office structure.  am
very conscious of the overhead levels that we run and again we have a number of projects under way to
address this.

I am confident that there is adequate scope for us to improve the Company’s performance in the coming
months and years.

Yours sincerely

Sandy Young
Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements.

Mo LY

Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “plan,” “will,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “think,” “estimate” and “predict,” and other
similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other
characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements.

We based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about
future events. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in, or implied by, these
forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual resuits to differ from those implied by the
forward-looking statements include:

* our ability to continue to recruit and retain qualified flexible healthcare staff;

s our ability to enter into contracts with hospitals, other healthcare facility clients and local
governmental social service departments on terms attractive to us;

* the general level of patient occupancy at our clients’ hospitals and healthcare facilities;
* our dependence on the proper functioning of our information systems;

+ the effect of existing or future government regulation of the healthcare industry, and our
ability to comply with these regulations;

* the impact of medical malpractice and other claims asserted against us;

» the effect of regulatory change that may apply to us and that may increase our costs and
reduce our revenue and profitability;

* our ability to use our net operating loss carryforward to offset net income;

* the effect that fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have on our
dollar-denominated results of operations; and

+ the impairment of our goodwill, of which we have a substantial amount on our balance sheet,
may have the effect of decreasing our earnings or increasing our losses.

Other factors that could cause actual results to differ from those implied by the forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are more fully described elsewhere in this document,
as well as changes in any of the following: the demand for our products and services, general
economic conditions, governmental regulation, the level of competition we face, customer strategies
and pricing and reimbursement policies,




Preliminary Notes

LN

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “our company,” “we,” “us” and similar terms

mean Allied Healthcare International Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Historical financial and other data originally denominate in pounds sterling have been converted
to dollars at the then applicable exchange rate.

PART I
Item 1. Business

ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.

Our Company

We are a leading provider of flexible, or temporary, healthcare staffing to the healthcare industry
in the United Kingdom as measured by revenues, market share and number of staff. As of
September 30, 2007, we operaied ‘an integrated network of approximately 100 branches throughout
most of the United Kingdom. Our healthcare staff consists principally of homecare aides (known
as carers in the United Kingdom), nurses and nurses aides. We maintain a listing of over
12,000 homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides, a majority of whom we placed during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2007.

In September 2007, we disposed of two of our U K. subsidiarics when we sold all of the issued
and outstanding ordinary shares of Allied Respiratory Limited and Medigas Limited for £36.5 million
(874.7 million) in cash, of which £500,000 ($1.0 million) is being held back until certain conditions are
met. Four hundred and twenty five thousand pounds (£425,000) of the escrowed amount was released
to us in December 2007 and we expect that the remaining £75,000 will be released to us in fiscal 2008.
These two subsidiaries constituted our respiratory therapy division. Our respiratory therapy division
supplied medical-grade oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to pharmacies in the UK., oxygen
concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland and oxygen services to customers in the South East of
England. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“FAS No. 144™), we have
accounted for our respiratory therapy division as a discontinued operation. Qur consolidated financial
statements reflect the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations as separate line items and
the operations of our respiratory therapy division for the current and prior periods are reported in
discontinued operations on our statement of operations.

We were incorporated in New York in 1981. Our principal executive offices are located at
245 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10167, and our telephone number at that location is
(212) 750-0064.
Recent Developments

On October 1, 2007 we prepaid the outstanding amounts under our term loan A and our term
loan B1 of our senior credit facility from the proceeds of the sale of our respiratory therapy business.
We also cancelled term loan A, term loan Bl and revolving loan C of our senior credit facility on
October 1, 2007. The invoice discount facility of our senior credit facility continues to be available to
us.

The U.K. Flexible Healthcare Staffing Industry

The U.K. healthcare staffing market is highly fragmented, with no one company possessing a
dominant market share.

The major purchasers of flexible healthcare staff in the United Kingdom are:

e Local governmental social service departments.
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e The government-funded National Health Service (the “NHS”). Through its Primary Care
Trusts (“PCTs”), the NHS oversees healthcare in the local community. The NHS operates its
hospitals mainly through NHS Trusts, each of which operates one or more hospitals.

¢  Private individuals.

¢ Independent hospitals and care homes in the United Kingdom.

Our Business Strategy

We are a leading provider of flexible, or temporary, staffing to the UK. healthcare industry. We
provide flexible staffing, principally homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides, to customers throughout
most of the United Kingdom. Our branches are located in England, Wales and Scotland. We do not
have any branches or healthcare staffing customers in Northern Ireland.

We traditionally focused on the provision of temporary nursing staff to the U.K- hospital sector.
Following the NHS’s Trust decision to reduce NHS expenditure on temporary staffing provided by
external staffing agencies, and to emphasize providing acute and non-acute care at home, we have
transitioned our staffing business to meet the increasing demand in the homecare sector. The main
purchaser of our services in the homecare sector is local governmental social services departments,
which have not made a determination to reduce expenditures on temporary staff, and NHS PCTs. We
continue to supply nursing staff to the NHS hospital sector, although this represents 10% of the hours
we provided in fiscal 2007 and less than 10% of our gross margin during such period.

We provide a diverse range of flexible staff, principally consisting of homecare aides, nurses and
nurses aides, to our customers. Homecare aides provide personal or basic care in the home (known as
social care in the United Kingdom). Nurses aides perform many of the functions of homecare aides,
mainly in the hospital setting. As of September 30, 2007, our mix of flexible staff was approximately
71% homecare aides, 9% nurses and 20% nurses aides.

We seek to become the provider of choice to purchasers of healthcare staffing services and the
employer of choice to flexible healthcare workers. In addition, we seek to expand our range of
healthcare staffing services over the long-term. The key elements in achieving these strategic
objectives are:

¢ Increase revenues on a per branch basis. We believe the increasing demand for quality
healthcare staffing with national coverage and diversity of services will support organic
growth in our branches and the development of new services. We intend to foster continued
same-store revenue growth by leveraging our nationally recognized brand names, competitive
benefits package and leadership.in providing temporary healthcare staffing.

* Recruit and retain healtheare staff. We intend to continue to recruit and retain high-quality
staff to take advantage of the severe shortages of homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides in
the United Kingdom, which we expect to continue in the foreseeable future. We intend to
continue our recruitment efforts and to encourage loyalty from our healthcare staff by
matching their flexible working preferences (both with regards to scheduling preferences and
types of assignments desired) with our customers’ needs, maintaining regular contact and
promoting opportunities for training and development.

Having expanded by a successful acquisition strategy, we have a strong and comprehensive
regional branch structure covering approximately 90% of the U.K. population and we are now
concentrating on organic growth.

Our Operations

Flexible Staffing

QOur integrated branch network is spread throughout most of the United Kingdom. A typical
branch is overseen by a branch manager, who is responsible for all the activities in the branch,
including the achievement of its financial targets, developing local customer relations and recruiting
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staff. The branches are organized into regions that are overseen by our operations managers. Our
branches serve as our direct contact with our customers and our healthcare staff. Additionally, we
employ regional commissioning managers who focus on developing and acquiring new business
opportunities by securing sales contracts with the local governmental social service departments.

There are regular management meetings that are attended by branch managers and related
corporate office departments and representatives of senior management where the financial
performance of the branches is assessed and actions for improvement are agreed upon.

We generally maintain centralized management control in the areas of payroll, accounts
receivable, contracts, pricing, regulatory matters, quality control and information technology.

Recruitment of Flexible Staff

Many healthcare workers are attracted to flexible staffing positions because of their desire to
tailor work schedules to personal and family needs, obtain varied and challenging work experiences
and acquire new skills. We believe that our ability to offer quality flexible staffing assignments
well-matched to individuals’ preferences assists in our attracting a large number of flexible healthcare
workers.

Our branch managers are primarily responsible for recruiting staff. Branch managers recruit on a
local basis, with referrals from existing staff providing an important source of new staff. From time to
time, we may run internal financial promotions to encourage referrals from our staff. We also formally
recruit through local and national print advertising and organize recruitment events, including national
recruitment days, at the branch level. Our website also advertises national branch vacancies.

We impose a standardized recruitment process on our branches. Before they can place a
homecare aide, nurse or nurses aide, our branches must obtain, among other things, two professional
references and evidence of proper immunizations, as well as a police background check. Our branches
must also confirm that each nurse has been licensed by the appropriate governmental body and that
each nurses aide and homecare aide has received the training mandated by law for their occupation.

\Training and Retention of Flexible Staff

Our retention philosophy is based upon each branch maintaining personal contact with the
flexible staff on its register, including a structured campaign whereby current and former staff are
contacted periodically by each branch to assess their needs and to attempt to meet their individual
working preferences. We also conduct a formal annual review of all charge and pay rates within the
business and compare them to prevailing market rates to ensure that our margins are competitive.

Quality Assurance

We invest heavily in quality assurance systems to ensure that our flexible healthcare staff meet
our internal quality assurance standards, as well as those mandated under the Care Standards Act
2000. It is the branch manager’s responsibility to ensure that all flexible workers are compliant with
our internal quality assurdnce standards when they are booked on shifts.

We have a quality assurance audit team whose primary job responsibility is to visit each of our
branches on a periodic basis to assure that the branches adhere to the procedures and policies set by
our main office. The quality assurance audit team is independent of our operations management. A
member of our quality assurance audit team visits each branch at least once per year. During its visits
to our branches, the quality assurance audit team reviews employee files to confirm that staff have
proper levels of training for the jobs in which they are being placed by the branch and that the
documents required by our standardized recruitment process are in order. The quality assurance audit
team also confirms that nurses have been licensed with the appropriate U.K. body. In addition, to
minimize injury to our staff, the quality assurance audit team checks customer files to confirm that all
health and safety checks for customers’ facilities have been made. Reviews of staff and customer files
are done on a random sample basis.




Customers

We provide healthcare staff to four types of customers:

Local governmental social service departments. Local governmental social service
departments retain us to provide healthcare staff, generally homecare aides, to individuals in
their homes.

Nursing homes, care homes and independent hospitals. We provide nurses and homecare
aides to nursing homes and homecare aides to care homes. Care homes, like nursing homes,
generally provide shelter and food for their residents, but, unlike nursing homes, generally do
not provide medical services to their residents. We also provide nurses and nurses aides to
independent hospitals in the private sector.

The NHS. During our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, we provided nurses and nurses
aides to the NHS. We provided staff mainly to NHS hospitals and NHS Primary Care Trusts.

Private patients. We provide both nurses and homecare aides 10 private patient customers.
These patients may include incapacitated individuals who require daily attention or patients
with long-term illnesses living at home.

Types of Customer Contracts

We provide staff to our customers under a variety of arrangements, including the following
categories of contracts common to the healthcare staffing industry:

Spot contacts. These contracts are price-per-contract arrangements for the provision of
flexible staff, usually with local governmental social services departments and nursing homes.
Spot contracts have the price and other terms agreed on a contract-by-contract basis.

Block contracts. These contracts are usually with local governmental social services
departments and involve the purchase of a quantity {or “block™) of flexible staffing care
services over a period of time. A block contract specifies the rates for staff and commits the
customer to purchase an agreed-upon volume of staffing services over a specified period.
These contracts may enable customers to negotiate lower prices in return for agreeing to
minimum volumes of business.

NHS Framework Agreements and Service Level Agreements. The NHS requires any
healthcare staffing company that provides temporary staff to NHS to enter into Framework
Agreements. A Framework Agreement sets out one national pay structure for the supply of
nurses of all specifications. Only those staffing companies that have executed a Framework
Agreement and met the quality standards can provide temporary staff to NHS bodies in the
region covered by the Framework Agreement. Pursuant to our Framework Agreement, we
can supply all types of staff throughout the UK., except in London, where our Framework
Agreement authorizes us to supply all categories of staff other than mental health staff and
midwives.

Individual NHS hospitals in England may select from the list of staffing companies qualified
under the Framework Agreements and enter into Service Level Agreements. Although the
Framework Agreements set the maximum rates to be charged for flexible staff, NHS hospitals
may obtain a discounted rate if they enter into a Service Level Agreement.

We typically provide in our written contracts that we will indemnify our customers against liability
that they may incur in the event that the members of our staff cause death, personal injury or
property damage in the performance of their services. We maintain liability insurance designed to
reimburse us in the event that claims of this type are made. See “Insurance” below. In addition, in
some of our written contracts, we agree to indemnify our customers for the costs they incur if we are
not able to provide them with the number of staff or man-hours required during the term of the
contract and the customer has to outsource its staffing requirements to another entity.
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Marketing Activities

We market our flexible healthcare staffing business to key decision makers in local governmental
social service departments, the NHS, nursing homes, care homes and independent hospitals. These
decision makers can be procurement officers, contract officers or social workers. Fundamental to our
ability to obtain and retain staffing assignments is establishing and maintaining a reputation for quality
service and responsiveness to the needs of our customers and their patients.

Competition

The U.K. flexible healthcare staffing business is highly fragmented with numerous small operators
providing staff locally. The market at the local level is characterized by relatively low barriers to entry.
The barriers to entry at a U.K.-wide level are more significant, as the establishment and growth of a
flexible healthcare staffing business is largely dependent on access to capital.

) The privately-owned competitors of our flexible staffing business are mainly small, locally-based

agencies serving a limited area or group of customers. These businesses compete with our relevant
branch covering the same local area, but do not otherwise compete for U.K.-wide market share. In
addition, a limited number of larger U.K.-based companies compete with us. Such companies include
Nestor Healthcare Group plc, Care UK plc, Match Group and Reed Health Group plc.

The nature of the U.K. marketplace is such that homecare aides and nurses often accept
placements with more than one flexible staffing business.

Since 2000, the NHS has had its own internal agency, called NHS Professtonals, which has
attempted to provide NHS hospitals with high volume/low margin contracts for flexible healthcare
workers and to reduce the NHS’s dependence on external agencies. We work with NHS Professionals
to fulfill the demand that it is unable to cover.

Payment for Staffing Services

In most cases, we contract directly with the governmental entity or private entity or individual to
whom we provide flexible staff. The party with whom we contract for the supply of staff is responsible
for paying us directly. In general, reimbursement is received regularly and reliably from all
governmental and private customers. We generally collect payments from our customers within two
months after services are rendered or products are supplied but we pay accounts payable and
employees currently.

For the year ended September 30, 2007, our operations received approximately 63.5% of revenues
from customers that were U.K. governmental entities (primarily local governmental social service
departments and NHS hospitals), compared to approximately 68.3% for the year ended
September 30, 2006. The remaining 36.5% and 31.7% of revenues received for 2007 and 2006,
respectively, were derived from services and products provided to privately-owned nursing homes,
privately-owned care homes, independent hospitals and private patients.

Trade Names

We operate our healthcare staffing business in the United Kingdom principally under the Allied
Healthcare Group trade name.

Employees

As of November 2007, we employed approximately 821 individuals in our branch network, our
U.K. head office and our other offices. None of our employees are represented by a labor union.

In addition, we maintain registers of over 12,000 homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides
available to staff our customer base on a temporary basis. We generally place about 7,000 individuals
each week with our customers. We consider our relationship with cur employees and staff to be good.

Government Regulation

General

We are subject to regulation by the government of the United Kingdom via Acts of Parliament
related to healthcare provision and by the general health regulations of the Department of Health.
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Healthcare Laws and Regulations

Our operations are subject to licensing and approval regulations from both governmental and
non-governmental bodies according to terms of service and operating procedures decided by the U.X.
government,

We are currently registered in England and Wales under the Care Standards Act 2000 and the
Nurses Agencies Regulations 2002 (which came into force in April 2003) in relation to England and
the Nurses Agencies (Wales) Regulations 2003 (which came into force in October 2003) in relation to
Wales to carry on a business for the supply of nurses. Both of these pieces of legislation require that a
person who carries on a business for the supply of nurses at any location within the jurisdiction of the
registration authority must be the holder of a certificate from that authority ceriifying that the
business is registered to supply to that location. We are similarly registered in Scotland under the
Regulation of Care (Scotland) Act 2001. Any of our branches that supply homecare aides working in

‘individuals’ homes are authorized under the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Domiciliary Care
Agencies Regulations 2002 (in England), the Domiciliary Care Agencies (Wales) Regulations 2004
and the Regulation of Care (Scotland) Act 2001.

The Care Standards Act 2000 introduced, among other things, a new registration and regulatory
structure for all non-NHS healthcare services in England and Wales. The Health and Social Care
(Community Health and Standards) Act 2003 established two new independent registration and
regulatory bodies for independent healthcare services and social care in England, including suppliers
of nurses, called the Commission for Social Care and Inspection and the Commission for Healthcare
Audit and Inspection; the former enforces registration of care agencies and establishments and the
latter (typically referred to as the Healthcare Commission) exists to promote improvements in the
quality of healthcare and public health. The Health Commission’s ambit includes responsibility for
assessing and reporting on the performance of both NHS and independent healthcare organizations.
The Care Standards Act 2000 provides for an arm of the National Assembly for Wales to be the
regulatory body for such services in Wales. The Care Standards Act 2000 also made provision for a
new General Social Care Council in England and a new Care Council for Wales to be established as
non-departmental statutory bodies responsible to the Department of Health and National Assembly of
Wales, respectively, with the aim of increasing the protection of service users, their homecare aides
and the general public. The Regulation of Care (Scotland) Act 2001 also introduced legislation
relating to this area in Scotland and appointed the registration authority for Scotland, the Scottish
Commission for the Regulation of Care.

The Care Standards Act 2000 is essentially an enabling act that provides for regulations to be
made by secondary legislation. Regulations relating to registration are already in force (the National
Care Standards Commission (Registration) Regulations 2001). The Care Standards Act 2000 also
provided that regulations can be made imposing any requirements which the appropriate Minister
thinks fit relating to establishments and agencies. Specific regulations set out in the Care Standards
Act 2000 that may be introduced include provisions relating to the services to be provided by
suppliers of healthcare staff, the keeping of accounts, the keeping of records and documents and
arrangements to be made for dealing with complaints made by those seeking or receiving any of the
services provided by the suppliers of healthcare staff. A number of regulations (including the Nurses
Agencies Regulations 2002 and the Domiciliary Care Agencies Regulations 2002) include provisions in
these areas.

Contracts between suppliers of healthcare staff and NHS hospitals for the provision of services, as
well as the performance by the parties of their obligations thereunder, are reviewed by the Healthcare
Commission. We are accredited by various U.K. social services agencies for the supply of homecare
aides within their jurisdiction.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance in all material respects with U.K. healthcare
laws and regulations applicable to our operations.
Healthcare Reform

Our business is subject to extensive and complex laws and regulations in the United Kingdom.
These include, but are not limited to, laws and regulations related to licensing, conduct of operations,
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payment for services and referrals, benefits payable to temporary staffers and taxation. Moreover,
many political, economic and regulatory organizations are supporting fundamental change in the UK.
healthcare industry. A summary of the material existing and proposed regulations follows.

UK. rules affecting temporary workers. Temporary workers in the UK are entitled to numerous
statutory protections and benefits. In particular, they are entitled to receive the national minimum
wage, and are subject to the provisions of the Working Time Regulations 1998 (as amended), which
governs hours of work, night work, breaks and holidays. There is uncertainty in the case law about the
circumstances in which agency workers may acquire full employment rights. Accordingly, a worker
who accrues sufficient qualifying employment could have unfair dismissal rights. Temporary workers
are also protected from various forms of discrimination in the work place.

The Employment Agencies Act 1973 and Conduct of Employment Agencies and Employment
Business Regulations 2003 (the “2003 Regulations”} and case law impact us. The 2003 Regulations
contain detailed provisions in relation to the charging for our services to a work-seeker and also
impose minimum obligations to ensure that the work-seeker and the hirer are suitable. A breach of
the 2003 Regulations (or the Employment Agencies Act 1973) resulting in damage is actionable in the
civil courts as well as giving potential liability to prosecution and a fine.

Health and Social Care {(Community Health and Standards) Act 2003. Under the Health and
Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003 and applicable regulations, providers of
flexible healthcare staff have to register with the Commission for Social Care Inspection and must
comply with the rules relating to management and staffing, fitness of premises and the conduct of
specified services.

Changes in U.K. value-added tax (*VAT™) rules. We currently act as an agent for VAT purposes
in supplying healthcare staff, which, under a concession to existing U.K. law, requires us to charge
VAT only on the amount of commission charged to the purchaser of flexible staff.

The 2003 Regulations came into effect in the United Kingdom in July 2004 but the changes
envisaged which impact on VAT were suspended until such time as a review on this matter has been
concluded by Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (the “HMRC”). This review commenced in
June 2006. No new updates have been released since June 2006 and HMRC has not indicated the date
by which the review will be complete.

In the event that the proposed changes are implemented, the concession under which we operate
at present is likely to be withdrawn and this wonld place an increased VAT burden on our company.

The 2003 Regulations require employment agencies, including those supplying flexible healthcare
staff, to enter into contractual relationships with the workers that they supply. Consequently, for VAT
purposes, HMRC'’s interpretation is that the flexible staff provider acts as principal, rather than agent.

For non-medical staff, under the 2003 Regulations VAT would be due on the total amount of the
charges made by the flexible staff provider, including salary costs, any margin and the employer’s
National Insurance Contributions, rather than merely on its commission. This change may adversely
affect our cash flow if we have to pay the increased VAT liability to the government before our
customers have paid their fees to us.

The law however states that the provision of medical staff such as nurses should be treated as
exempt from VAT. Consequently, as a result of such exemption, the amount of VAT we have incurred
and which can be offset against VAT we owe the government will be reduced.

NHS Initiatives

Flexible staffing providers, such as our company, are subject to the risk that the NHS will seek to
regulate the price it pays for temporary staff, reduce its use of temporary staff or replace its use of
temporary staff where possible with permanent employees.

The NHS requires any healthcare staffing company that provides temporary staff to the NHS
hospitals to enter into a Framework Agreement setting forth, among other things, types of staff to be
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supplied, quality standards and maximum payment rates. Only those staffing companies that have met \
the quality standards set by the NHS and executed a Framework Agreement applicable to a particular ‘
region of the country can provide temporary staff to NHS hospitals in that region. Pursuant to our
Framework Agreement, we can supply all types of staff throughout the U.K., except in London, where
our Framework Agreement authorizes us to supply all categories of staff other than mental health
stafl and midwives. It is likely that a long-term effect of the Framework Agreements will be to reduce
the cost of commissions paid to healthcare staffing companies and/or to reduce the number of 4
healthcare staffing companies supplying staff to the NHS hospitals.

Another initiative undertaken by the NHS is its creation of NHS Professionals. NHS
Professionals is an internal agency of the NHS that seeks to provide an efficient temporary staffing
service for NHS hospitals and to reduce the dependence of the NHS on external agencies. NHS
Professionals seeks to coordinate nurse banks operated by NHS hospitals with the intention of
maintaining quality standards and controlling costs across all NHS nurse banks.

The introduction and further extension of the NHS Framework Agreements has impacted our
financial results by reducing our margins from that source of business. In addition, we have
experienced reduced revenues from the NHS as a result of the NHS Framework Agreements, as well
as from the efforts of the NHS to source more of its work by using NHS Professionals.

The provision of homecare services to NHS PCTs are normally subject to individually-negotiated
rates.

Insurance

We maintain general Liability insurance, professional liability insurance and excess liability |

coverage that provide coverage in the event that a claim is brought against us alleging negligence,
product liability or similar legal theories. Each of these policies provides coverage on an “occurrence” }
basis and has certain exclusions from coverage. Our insurance policies must be renewed annually. w
|

Available Information |

We maintain a website at www.alliedhealthcare.com. The contents of our website are not part of,
nor are they incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. -

We make available free of charge through our website our annual reports on Form 10-K and our
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, as well as amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably
practicable after they are filed with the Securities Exchange. We also make available free of charge
through our website most of our current reports on Form 8-K, as well as amendments thereto, as soon
as reasonably practicable after they are filed with the SEC. We will provide paper copies of our 10-Ks,
10-Qs and 8-Ks to any shareholder free of charge upon request. .

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to many risks that may negatively affect our business, financial condition
and/or results of operations.

Risks Relating To OQur Business And Strategy

If we are unable to anract and retain healthcare staff at reasonable costs, it could increase our operating
costs and negatively impact our business.

We rely significantly on our ability to attract and retain homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides
who possess the skills, experience and, if required, licenses necessary to meet the requirements of our
customers. We compete for fiexible healthcare staffing personnel with other flexible healthcare staffing
companies and with hospitals and healthcare facilities. Staff choose to work for a temporary
healthcare staffing company based on the quantity, diversity and quality of assignments offered and on
compensation packages and other benefits, We must continually evaluate and upgrade our flexible
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staffing network to keep pace with our customers’ needs and to remain competitive in our business.
Currently, there is a shortage of homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides in most areas of the United
Kingdom. Competition for such personnel is increasing and salaries and benefits have risen. We may
be unable to continue to increase the number of healthcare staff that we recruit, decreasing the
potential for growth of our business. Qur ability to attract and retain healthcare staff depends on
several factors, including our ability to provide them with assignments that they view as atiractive and
to provide them with competitive benefits and wages. We cannot assure you that we will be successful
in any of these areas. The cost of attracting healthcare staff and providing them with attractive benefit
packages may be higher than we anticipate and, as a result, if we are unable to pass these costs on to
our customers, our profitability could decline. Moreover, if we are unable to attract and retain
healthcare staff, our ability to provide adequate services to our customers may decline and, as a result,
we could lose customers.

We operate in a highly competitive market and our success depends on our ability to obtain and retain
customers.

The flexible healthcare staffing business is highly competitive. We compete in national, regional
and local markets in the United Kingdom with full-service staffing companies, specialized flexible
staffing agencies, NHS Professionals, hospitals, nursing homes and other home healthcare businesses.
There are relatively few barriers to entry in the markets we serve and, historically, our industry has
been highly fragmented. While we expect to continue to face competition from a broad range of
companies, the recent consolidation trend in our industry is likely to result in an increase in the
number of larger companies that are able to service regional or national markets. Some of our
competitors have greater name recognition, access to capital and marketing, financial and other
resources than we do. We believe that the primary competitive factors in obtaining and retaining
customers are identifying qualified healthcare staff for specific job requirements, providing qualified
staff in a timely manner, pricing services competitively and effectively monitoring job performance.
Competition for customers may increase in the future and, as a result we may not be able to remain
competitive. To the extent competitors seek to gain or retain market share by reducing prices or
increasing marketing expenditures, we could lose revenues or hospital, healthcare facility and other
customers and our margins could decline, which could harm our operating results. In addition, the
development of alternative recruitment channels could lead our hospital, healthcare facility and other
customers to bypass our services, which would also cause our revenues and margins to decline.

A change in treatment of flexible staff for U.K. tax, employment and benefits purposes could result in
increased costs.

Like all employment businesses, we are exposed to potential employment related claims from
independent contractors who assert that they are employees. We currently treat our nurses and nurses
aides as independent contractors, but this position could change if challenged in an employment
tribunal or court. Recent case law relating to agency workers has indicated that agency workers could
be deemed to be the employee of either the agency that places them or the customer at which they
are placed, depending on the circumstances. If our nurses and nurses aides are deemed to employees
rather than independent contractors, they could become entitled to additional statutory rights (such as
the right to a redundancy payment and the right not to be unfairly dismissed}, which could result in
an increase in litigation and/or severance payments. We could also become liable to pay employer’s
national insurance contributions in respect of our nurses and nurses aides. As a consequence, our
business and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our decentralized structure could resudt in unforeseen costs and could adversely impact our business.

We operate with a decentralized structure under which our branches operate on a relatively
autonomous basis in terms of the recruitment and placement of staff and the marketing of customers.
However, we generally maintain centralized management control in the areas of payroll, accounts
receivable, contracts, pricing, regulatory matters, quality control and information technology. If we fail
1o exert proper centralized management control, our local branches could engage in unauthorized
activities, our management initiatives may not be successfully implemented and our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.
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The loss of key senior management personnel could adversely affect our ability to remain competitive.

We rely heavily on our senior management team, led by Sarah L. Eames, our deputy chairman
and interim chief executive officer, and David Moffatt, our chief financial officer. We have entered into
an employment agreement with Ms. Eames that expires in April 2008, subject to automatic renewal
for successive periods of one year each unless terminated by either party on 90 days’ notice prior to
the then applicable renewal date. We entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt th'?t
does not have a fixed term that provides that either party may terminate the agreement upon six
months’ written notice. The loss or unavailability for an extended period of time of either of these
officers could have a material adverse effect on our operations and prospects.

We are dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems.

We are dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems in operating our
business. Qur operations have an IT disaster recovery plan. However, they are still vulnerable to fire,
storm, flood, power loss, telecommunications failures, physical or software break-ins and similar
events. If critical information systems fail or are otherwise unavailable, these functions would have to
be accomplished manually, which could temporarily impact our ability to identify business
opportunities quickly, to maintain billing and clinical records reliably, to bill for services efficiently and
to maintain our accounting and financial reporting effectively.

In fiscal 2005 we implemented a computerized accounting and payroll system and in fiscal 2006
we implemented further changes to the system with the goal of improving the operating performance
of our branches. However, we discovered that the system was too slow for the nature of our business
and therefore was not achieving full functionaiity. We decided to abandon certain of the software
features of the Oracle platform and not continue with the planned expansion as we believed the cost
to have a workable model would exceed alternative solutions. During fiscal 2006, we recognized a
pre-tax charge of $9.0 million on the write-off of our investment in the Oracle platform. We are
currently in the process of comparing various operating systems in order to determine which system
best supports our branch network and allows us to interface with our customers and communicate
with our staff.

Our business is subject to certain risks inherent to international operations.
We operate in the United Kingdom. As a result, we are subject to a variety of risks, including:
s fluctuations in currency exchange rates;
* varying laws relating to, among other things, employment and employment termination;
* the impact of a recession in the United Kingdom;
¢ changes in regulatory requirements; and
* potentially adverse tax consequences.

These risks may materially and adversely affect our business results of operations or financial
condition.

Risks Relating To The Flexible Healthcare Staffing Market

Demand for flexible staffing may fail to rise, remain at current levels or may decline for a variety of
reasons, including general economic conditions.

Although we anticipate that the market for flexible staffing in the healthcare sector will continue
to expand, there can be no assurance that growth will occur at all or continue at historic rates or at
the rate currently expected. Our growth could be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including
emphasis on permanent staff and minimization of the use of temporary staff by healthcare providers
and automation or computerization of services traditionally performed by temporary staff providers.
In the last few years, UK. case law on agency workers has indicated that agency workers could be
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deemed to be employees of either the agency that places them or the customer end-user in certain
circumstances (although the recent trend of Employment Appeal Tribunal decisions has held this to
be unlikely where the agency relationship is not a sham). Consequently, some of the advantages to
hospitals and other purchasers to using temporary workers may be lost because of the risk that they
will be deemed to be the employer of such workers, and therefore they may dectde to hire permanent
staff rather than temporary staff. In addition, demand for flexible healthcare staffing services may be
significantly affected by the general level of economic activity and economic conditions in the regions
in which we operate.

If demand for temporary staffing in the healthcare sector generally declines or does not increase
at the rate we anticipate, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected.

Fluctuations in patient occupancy at the hospitals, nursing homes and care homes of our customers may
adversely affect the demand for our services and therefore our financial performance.

Demand for our flexible healthcare staff is significantly affected by the general level of patient
occupancy at the hospitals, nursing homes and care homes of our customers. When occupancy
increases, temporary employees are often added before full-time employees are hired. As occupancy
decreases, healthcare facility customers typically will reduce their use of temporary employees before
undertaking layofis of their regular employees. In addition, we may experience more competitive
pricing pressure during periods of occupancy downturn. QOccupancy at our healthcare customers’
facilities also fluctuates due to the seasonality of some elective procedures. We are unable to predict
the level of patient occupancy at any particular time and its effect on our revenues and earnings.

We operate in a regulated industry and violations of laws or regulations may result in increased costs or
sanctions that could impact our financial performance. Moreover, recent and proposed changes in UK.
regulations affecting flexible staffing companies may result in increased costs that reduce our revenue
and profitability.

Our business is subject to extensive and complex laws and regulations in the United Kingdom.
These include, but are not limited to, laws and regulations related to licensing, conduct of operations,
payment for services and referrals, benefits payable to temporary staffers and taxation. If we fail to
comply with the laws and regulations that are applicable to our business, we could suffer civil and/or
criminal penalties or we could be required to stop operating in one or more jurisdictions.

Moreover, many political, economic and regulatory organizations are supporting fundamental
change in the U.K. healthcare industry. The recent introduction of new regulatory provisions in the
United Kingdom affecting flexible staffing companies could substantially raise the costs associated with
operating our business. Some proposed changes in these regulations could have a similar effect. We
may not be able to pass along to our customers the costs of implementing any changes that result
from these new and changed laws and regulations. See “Item 1 — Business — Government
Regulation” for a summary of the material existing and proposed regulations affecting our business.

NHS reforms may have a substantial negative impact upon us.

For our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, 21.6% of our flexible healthcare gross margins was
attributable to the NHS. Flexible staffing providers, such as our company, are subject to the risk that
the NHS will continue to regulate the price it pays for temporary staff, reduce its use of temporary
- staff or replace its use of temporary staff where possible with permanent employees.

One initiative undertaken by the NHS is the requirement that agencies wishing to supply the
NHS with temporary staff enter into Framework Agreements. It is likely that a long-term effect of the
Framework Agreements will be to reduce the cost of commissions paid to healthcare staffing
companies and/or 1o reduce the number of healthcare staffing companies supplying staff to the NHS.

Another initiative undertaken by the NHS is its creation of NHS Professionals. NHS
Professionals is an internal agency of the NHS that seeks to provide an efficient temporary staffing
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service for NHS hospitals. NHS Professionals seeks to coordinate nurse banks operated by NHS
hospitals with the intention of maintaining quality standards and controlling costs across all NHS
nurse banks. The continued expansion of the NHS Professionals could adversely affect our revenues
in the future.

The introduction and further extension of the NHS Framework Agreements has impacted our
financial results by reducing our margins from that source of business. In addition, we have
experienced reduced revenues from the NHS as a result of the NHS Framework Agreements, as well
as from the efforts of the NHS 10 source more of its work by using NHS Professionals. '

Qur ability to compete in the homecare services market depends on our ability 1o obtain assignments
from local governmental social service departments.

The largest providers of homecare services in the United Kingdom are local governmental social
services departments and NHS Primary Care Trusts. Outsourcing of homecare by these bodies is the
principal source of revenue and growth in the homecare staffing market. Though figures vary widely
among local governments, homecare provided directly by the local governments typically is
significantly more expensive per hour of care than homecare outsourced to independent homecare
providers. While we believe there is potential for further outsourcing of homecare by local
governments, this potential may be offset by tighter local governmental budgets or by policy changes
or legislation. Moreover, there can be no assurance that we will be chosen by local governmental
social service departments, or other providers of homecare services, to provide outsourced homecare
services in the future, or that we will be able to recruit and retain homecare staff at hourly rates that
local governments are willing to pay.

Significant legal actions could subject us to substantial uninsured liabilities.

In recent years, healthcare providers have become subject to an increasing number of legal
actions alleging medical malpractice, negligent hiring, product liability or other legal theories. Many of
these actions involve large claims and significant defense costs. In addition, we may be subject to civil
or criminal claims arising from actions taken by our employees or temporary staffing persennel, such
as misuse of proprietary information or theft of property. In some instances, we are required to
indemnify customers against some or all of these risks. A failure of any of our employees or personnel
to observe our policies and guidelines intended to reduce these risks, relevant customer policies and
guidelines or applicable laws, rules and regulations could result in negative publicity, payment of fines
or other damages. In addition, breaches of the Care Standards Act 2000 and associated regulations
could result in the revocation of registration or the imposition of conditions on that registration that
could adversely effect the continuation of our business in the United Kingdom. Litigation is costly
and, even if we do prevail, the cost of such litigation could adversely affect our consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, in the course of our operations we may face possible claims by employees or
employee candidates of discrimination or harassment (including for actions our customers or their
employees may have taken), violations of health and safety regulations, workers compensation claims,
retroactive entitlement to benefits and other similar claims.

Qur insurance may not be adequate 1o protect us from claims for which we may become liable.

To protect ourselves from the cost of claims alleging medical malpractice or other causes of
action, we maintain malpractice liability insurance and general liability insurance coverage in amounts
and with deductibles that we believe are appropriate for our operations. While we have been able to
obtain liability insurance in the past, this insurance varies in cost, is difficult to obtain and may not be
available in the future on terms acceptable to us, if it is available at all. The failure to maintain
insurance coverage or a successful claim not covered by or in excess of our insurance coverage could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, cash flows or results of operations.
In addition, claims, regardless of their merit or eventual outcome, may have a material adverse effect
on our reputation.
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Risks Relating To Our Financial Condition

We have generated substantial amounts of goodwill from our acquisitions, some or all of which we may
be required to write off, which could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

Goodwill represents the purchase price of an acquisition less the fair value of the net tangible and
intangible assets acquired. We have generated substantial amounts of goodwill from our acquisitions.
Part of our strategy involves making additional acquisitions. Because businesses of the type we target
often do not have substantial tangible assets, we expect that our acquisition of these businesses will
continue to generate significant amounts of goodwill.

At September 30, 2007 we had goodwill of approximately $122.8 million, which equaled
approximately 48.6% of our total assets at that date.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goeodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“FAS No. 1427} issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, all goodwill
and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer subject to amortization, but will be
subject to an annual impairment test. We evaluate, on a regular basis, whether events or circumstances
have occurred that indicate all, ora portion, of the carrying amount of goodwill may no longer be
recoverable, in which case an impairment charge to our earnings would become necessary. As of
September 30, 2007, the carrying value of our goodwill was not impaired, based on an assessment
performed in accordance with FAS No. 142. However, any future determination requiring the write-off
of a significant portion of the carrying value of our goodwill could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition or results of operations.

Our ability to use our net operating loss carryforward in the future is limited.

As of September 30, 2007, we had a U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward of
approximately $75.4 million, expiring between 2018 and 2024. Our current operations are in the
United Kingdom. Under U.S. federal tax law, we can only offset our federal net operating loss
carryforward against U.S. taxable income, including income earned from operations in the
United States and certain other income, including dividends from our U.K. subsidiaries. As of
September 30, 2007, we had recorded a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset created
by the U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward as we did not believe it was more likely than not
that such losses would be utilized prior to their expiration. Our public offering in July 2004 of shares
of our common stock caused an ownership change under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. Accordingly, Section 382 limits our ability to use our net operating loss
carryforward in the future. An inability to use a significant portion of our federal net operating loss
carryforward could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Risks Relating To Qur Common Stock
Future sales of our common stock by existing sharcholders may lower the price of our common stock.
As of December 3, 2007, we had 44,986,229 shares of common stock outstanding.

In addition, as of December 3, 2007, our officers, directors, employees and consultants own
options to acquire an aggregate of 2,976,614 shares of common stock under our 1992 Stock Option
Plan and our 2002 Stock Option Plan. Although we will not issue any more options under our 1992
Stock Option Plan, we may issue additional options under our 2002 Stock Option Plan. The shares of
common stock to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under our 1992 Stock Option Plan
and our 2002 Stock Option Plan have been registered and may be freely sold when issued. We have
also issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 485,000 shares of our common stock to two third
parties. We have granted the holder of these warrants certain “piggyback™ registration rights with
respect to the shares of our commor stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants.

Pursuant to a registration statement that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission in August 2002, we have registered the resale of an aggregate of 23,479,157 shares of our
common stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of common stock into the public market could lower the market
price of our common stock.
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If provisions in our corporate documents and New York law delay or prevent a change in control of our
company, we may be unable to consummate a transaction that our shareholders consider favorable.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or
acquisition involving us that our shareholders may consider favorable. For example, our certificate of
incorporation authorizes our board of directors to issue up to ten million shares of “blank check”
preferred stock. Without shareholder approval, the board of directors has the authority to attach
special rights, including voting and dividend rights, to these shares of preferred stock. With these':
rights, preferred shareholders could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us. New Yotk
law may also discourage, delay or prevent someone from acquiring or merging with us.

Under the employment agreement that we have entered into with Sarah L. Eames, our deputy
chairman and interim chief executive officer, we are required to pay Ms. Eames an amount equal to
1.9 times her salary if her employment with us is terminated within six months of a change in control
of our company. In addition, under our employment agreement with David Moffatt, our chief financial
officer, we are required to pay him 12 months’ salary in the event he is terminated due to an
acquisition. Such change of control payment may have the effect of preventing or delaying a change of
control of our company, even if the change of control was favored by our shareholders.

Our stock price may be volatile.

In recent years, the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that
are often unrelated to the operating performance of specific companies. Our market price may
fluctuate based on a number of factors, including:

* our operating performance and the performance of other similar companies;
* news announcements relating to us, our industry or our competitors;

* changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by research analysts;

* changes in general economic conditions;

¢ the number of shares that are publicly traded,

* actions of our current shareholders; and

s other developments affecting us, our industry or our competitors,

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

We have not received, during the 180 days preceding the end of our 2007 fiscal year, any written
comments from the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding our periodic or current
reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that.remain unresolved.

Item 2. Properties ?

We lease 104 facilities in the United Kingdom, of which 24 are for a period of three months or
less. We lease our corporate headquarters in the United States. We believe that our existing leases will
be renegotiated as they expire or that alternative properties can be leased on acceptable terms. We
also believe that our present facilities are well maintained and are suitable for continuing our existing
operations. (See “Operating Leases” in Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.)

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various other legal proceedings and claims incidental to our normal business
activities, We are vigorously defending our position in all such proceedings. We believe that these
matters should not have a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial position, cash flows,
or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were: submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth quarter of our
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.

Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Market (formerly known as the Nasdag
National Market) under the symbol “AHCL” The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated,
the high and low sales price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market:

PERIOD HIGH Low
Year Ended September 30, 2006:
First QUarter. . ... ... .yttt iaan ey $6.60 $5.60
Second Quarter ........... e 6.80 4.44
Third Quarter. ... ... . e 497 2.39
Fourth Quarter.......... ... ... . i, 3.45 1.45
Year Ended September 30, 2007.
First QUAarter. ... ..ouuei ittt e e a $3.09 $1.80
Second Quarter ......... .. ... i 3.30 2.65
Third Quarter. ..., ... . . i e 3.75 2.47
Fourth Quarter. ... ... . ittt iianaeeann, 2.92 1.95
Year Ended September 30, 2008:
First Quarter (through December 3,2007) ................. $3.20 $1.98

Since December 30, 2005, our shares of common stock have also traded on the Alternative
Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange under the symbol “AIM: AHL” Our shares
of common stock are represented on CREST, the U.K. electronic settlement system, by depository
shares. Our shares of common stock are listed on AIM, while the depositary interests are transferred
in CREST to settle trades on AIM.

We have neither declared nor paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate
paying dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future, Any future payment of dividends
will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon, among other things, our
carnings, financial position, cash flows, capital requirements and other relevant considerations,
including the extent of our indebtedness and any contractual restrictions with respect to the payment
of dividends.

As of December 3, 2007, there were approximately 176 shareholders of record of our common
stock. This number does not include shareholders who hold their shares through one or more
intermediaries, such as banks, brokers or depositaries.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

For certain information concerning securities authorized for issuance under our equity
compensation plans, see “ltem 12 — Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters — Equity Compensation Plan Information.”

Recent Issuances of Securities

In April 2007, in connection with the execution of an agreement with an unaffiliated third party
pursuant to which such third party agreed to provide us with investment banking advice, investor
awareness and business advisory services, we issued to such third party warrants to purchase up to an
aggregate of 135,000 shares of our common stock. Forty five thousand (45,000) of the warrants are
exercisable at a price of $3.00 per share, 45,000 of the warrants are exercisable at a price of $3.35 per
share and 45,000 of the warrants are exercisable at a price of $3.75 per share. The warrants expire in
October 2008. The warrants were issued in a transaction exempt from registration under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Section 4(2} of such Act because, among other things, the
warrants were issued to one entity, there was no general solicitation, restrictive legends were placed
on the warrants and the warrants provide that restrictive legends will be placed on the shares issuable
upon the exercise thereof.
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In August 2007, we issued 28,737 shares of our common stock to an unaffiliated third party in
partial payment of professional fees due to such third party by our company. The shares were issued
in a transaction exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to
Section 4(2) of such Act because, among other things, we issued the shares to one entity, there was no
general solicitation and restrictive legends were placed on the stock certificates representing the
shares.

Recent Repurchases of Equity Securities

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we did not repurchase any of our equity securities.

Our Comparative Performance

From 1992 until April 29, 1999 our common stock traded, and from February 23, 2004 to the
present our common stock has traded, on the Nasdaq Global Market (formerly known as the Nasdaq
National Market). From April 30, 1999 until February 20, 2004, our common stock traded on the
American Stock Exchange. In addition, since December 30, 2005, depository interests, each of which
represents one share of our common stock, have been listed on the Alternative Investment Market of
the London Stock Exchange.

The graphs that follow have been prepared for us by the Center for Research in Security Prices
("CRSP™).

The first graph compares the performance of our common stock for the period from
September 30, 2002 to September 28, 2007 with (1) the CRSP Total Returns Index for the Nasdaq
Stock Market (US Companies), and (2) the CRSP Total Returns Index for Nasdaq Health Services
Stocks (US and Foreign Companies). The CRSP Total Returns Index for the Nasdaq Stock Market
(US Companies) measures the performance of all US companies listed on the Nasdaq Global Market
(formerly known as the Nasdaq National Market) and the Nasdaq Capital Market (formerly known as
the Nasdaq SmallCap Market). The CRSP Total Returns Index for Nasdag Health Services Stocks
(US and Foreign Companies) measures the performance of all US and foreign companies listed on
Nasdaq whose Standard Industry Classification (“SI1C”) Codes are 8000-8099.

The second graph compares the performance of our common stock for the period from
September 30, 2001 to September 28, 2007 with (1) the CRSP Total Returns Index for the AMEX
Stock Market {US Companies) and (2) the CRSP Total Returns Index for AMEX Health Services
Stocks (US Companies). The CRSP Total Returns Index for the AMEX Stock Market
(US Companies) measures the performance of all US companies listed on AMEX. The CRSP Total
Returns Index for AMEX Health Services Stocks (US Companies) measures the performance of all
US companies listed on AMEX whose SIC Codes are 8000-8099.

The graphs assume that $100 was invested on September 30, 2002 in our common stock and each
group of companies whose securities comprise the various indices against which we are being
compared and that all dividends, if any, have been reinvested.

The information contained in this section of this Form 10-K shalt not be deemed “filed” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission nor shall it be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any
filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent
that we specifically incorporate it by reference.
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Comparison of Five—Year Cumulative Total Returns
Performance Graph for
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth our selected consolidated financial information. The financial
information for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and as of September 30, 2007 and
2006 is derived from audited financial statements that appear elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
financial information for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 and as of September 30, 2005,

2004 and 2003 is derived from audited financial statements that do not appear in this Form 10-K.
[

You should read the following information in conjunction with our financial statements and notes
thereto and the information set forth under “Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

All data in the following table is in thousands, except for per share data.

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2000 2005 2004 2003

Financial Data:
Total TeVENUES. . .\ v e i et 8277795 $ 280,205  $342,031 $317,393  $287.964
Grossprofit. . ... ... . . i 83,956 85,730 98,727 89.577 78.542
Selling, general and administrative expenses ......... 752849 71,103 73,0507 62,734 52,293
Impairment of goodwill. . ........................ — 110,004 © — — —
Impairment of long-lived assets ................... - 10,038 ©® — — —
Operating income (loss) ......................... 8,672 (105,415) 25,677 26,843 26,249
Interest and other expense, net. ................... 32739 2,698 4,164 13,803% 11,307
Foreign exchange (income)loss ................... (285) 73 98 184 18
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ........... 2,068 (1,887) 6,446 5,159 4,473
Income (loss) from continuing operations ........... 3,616 (106,153) 14,969 7,697 10,451
Income gloss) from discontinued operations, net of

taxest L 6,266 (17,618) 3,767 2,172 1,001
Gain con disposal of subsidiaries, net of taxes......... 56,471 — — — 519
Netincome (10ss) ....... ... i, 66,353 (123,771) 18,736 9.869 11,971
Redeemable preferred dividend, conversion fees and

accretion™ ... L —~ — — 7,020 4,005

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders. .. § 66353  §(123,771) $ 18736 § 23849 § 7,966

Basic income (loss) per share of common stock from:
Continuing operations . . ....................... $ o008 § (236 $ 034 § 002 § 029
Discontinued operations . .. .................... § 140 (0.39) 0.08 0.08 0.07

$ 148 $ (275 $ 042 $ 010 $ 036

Diluted income (loss) per share of common stock from:
Continuing operations .. . .. ............coueunn.. $ 008 § (23) $ 033 § 002 § 029
Discontinued operations . ...................... $§ 139 (0.39) 0.08 0.08 0.07

$ 147 § (275 $ 041 $ 010 $ 036

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding:
Basic ........ . .. ooiiiiloin 44,962 44,930 44,684 27,419 21,962
Diluted. .. ... e e 45,147 44,930 45,169 28,104 22,304
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September 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital ... ............ o $20380 3 (1,165) $ 11369 §$ 13468 § 24,781
Accounts receivable, net........... ... .. ... ... 21,490 26,813 31,382 30,106 34,025
Goodwill ... .. ... . . 122,843 112,538 205,177 194,058 172,538
Total @assets . ... ... e 252,719 195,683 303,439 282,394 311,668
Totaldebt ........... .. ... ... . ... ... ... 54,795 71,159 64,342 64,778 165,378

Total sharcholders’ equity. ............. ..o 158,759 86,383 201,859 186.977 75,163

{1) See Note 3 of Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 for a
discussion and details of discontinued operations.

{2) Reflects the accrual of dividends on our Series A preferred stock and accretion costs related to the issuance
of our Series A preferred stock in our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization. In addition, fiscal 2004 includes
conversion fees of $2.0 million paid to the holders of our Series A preferred stock in connection with the
firm commitment follow-on public offering of 14,500,00¢ shares of our common stock and write-off of
$1.7 million of the remaining issuance costs.

(3) Includes $1.2 million of severance costs and related professional fees incurred upon the resignation of our
chairman and chief executive officer and $0.4 million related to the issuance of new warrants and the
extension of the expiration date on previously-issued warrants.

(4) Includes a $1.0 million charge related to the write-off and costs incurred on financing fees and other income
of $0.8 million related to interest rate swaps no longer being effective.

(5) During our annual review of goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we determined
there was an impairment of $110.0 million to our recorded goodwill balance by using a combination of the
market multiple, comparable transaction and discounted cash flow methods. Based on a combination of
factors, contributing to the impairment loss were the decrease in profits due to the decline of revenues from
the NHS, our company’s markel capitalization at the time of testing as well as current and projected
operating results.

(6) Includes a charge of $9.0 million of software costs related to our computerized accounting and payroll system
based on the Oracle platform that is too slow for the nature of our business and therefore is not achieving
full functionality. Also includes a charge of $1.0 million relate to the write-off of other intangible assets. We
reviewed the carrying amount of our other intangibles and deemed certain assets to be impaired as of
September 30, 2006 as a result of the decline in revenues from the NHS.

(7) Includes a $1.1 million charge related to the reorganization of our U.K. subsidiaries, as well as $1.0 million of
costs associated with the launch of our new corporate logo.

(8) For the year ended September 30, 2004, we recorded a charge of $4.2 million related 10 the write-off of
deferred financing fees and unamortized debt discount associated with a recapitalization plan, undertaken in
connection with fiscal 2004 public offering of 14,500,000 shares of our common stock, pursuant to which we
(i) refinanced our senior collateratized term and revolving credit facility and mezzanine indebtedness, both of
which had been entered into in December 1999, and (ii) converted all of our then outstanding shares of
Series A preferred stock into shares of our common stock.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

General

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in conjunction with the
description of our business included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. It is intended to assist the
reader in understanding and evaluating our financial position. This discussion contains, in addition to
historical information, forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainty. Qur actual
resulis could differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors
that could cause or contribute to such differences include those discussed in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K under “Forward-Looking Statements.”

We are a leading provider of flexible, or temporary, healthcare staffing to the healthcare industry
in the United Kingdom, as measured by revenues, market share and number of staff. As of
September 30, 2007 we operated an integrated network of approximately 100 branches throughout
most of the United Kingdom. Our healthcare staff consists principally of homecare aides (known as
carers in the UK.}, nurses and nurses aides. We maintain -a listing of over 12,000 homecare aides,
nurses and nurses aides, a majority of whom we placed during our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007. :

In September 2007, we disposed of two of our U.K. subsidiaries when we sold all of the issued
and outstanding ordinary shares of Allied Respiratory Limited and Medigas Limited for £36.5 million
($74.7 million) in cash, of which £500,000 ($1.0 million) is being held back until certain conditions are
met. Four hundred and twenty five thousand pounds (£425,000) of the escrowed amount was released
to us in December 2007 and we expect that the remaining £75,000 will be released to us in fiscal 2008.
These two subsidiaries constituted our respiratory therapy division. Ounr respiratory therapy division
supplied medical-grade oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to pharmacies in the U.K,, oxygen
concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland and oxygen services to customers in the South East of
England. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“FAS No. 144™), we have
accounted for our respiratory therapy division as a discontinued operation. Qur consolidated financial
statements reflect the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations as separate line items and
the operations of our respiratory therapy division for the current and prior periods are reported in
discontinued operations on our statement of operations.

The NHS requires any healthcare staffing company that provides temporary staff to the
NHS hospitals in a region to enter into a Framework Agreement setting forth, among other things,
applicable quality standards and maximum payment rates. The introduction and further extension of
the NHS Framework Agreements has continued to impact our financial results by reducing our
margins from that source of business. In addition, we have experienced reduced revenues from the
NHS as a result of the NHS Framework Agreements, as well as from the efforts of the NHS to source
more of its work from its own employee base and its in-house agency (NHS Professionals). The
reduction in demand from the NHS for healthcare staffing services as a result of overspending by the
NHS Trusts (the NHS operates its hospitals through NHS Trusts, each of which operates one or more
hospitals) has also impacted our financial results.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and refated disclosures in a given reporting
period. We believe the following accounting policies are critical areas affecting our financial condition
and results of operations where estimates are required.
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Accounts Receivable

We are required o estimate the collectibility of our accounts receivables, which requires a
considerable amount of judgment in assessing the ultimate realization of these receivables, including
the current credit-worthiness of each customer. Significant changes in required reserves may occur in
the future as we continue to expand our business and as conditions in the marketplace change.

Our company maintains credit controls to ensure cash collection on a timely basis. The credit
terms agreed with our customers range from 7 days to a maximum of 30 days from invoice date. We
maintain a credit department which consists of approximately 20 personnel who are targeted to collect
outstanding receivables. We have established the following guidelines for the credit department to use
as well as for us to assess the credit department’s performance:

¢ to maintain average days sales outstanding to below 35 days;
¢ to limit our bverdues (greater than 90 days) within agreed targets; and
* to limit bad debt write off in the year within agreed targets.

We also apply a policy of withdrawing supply from customers who are significantly overdue.
Many private customers are contracted on a “direct debit” basis where we can collect payment direct
from customers’ bank accounts.

We have devised a provisioning methodology based on the customer profile and historical credit
risk across our U.K. business. Accounts receivable are written off when the credit control department
determines the amount is no longer collectible. In addition, we do not have a threshold for account
balance write-offs as our policy focuses on all balances, whatever the size.

Intangible Assets

We have significant amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets. The determination of
whether or not goodwill has become impaired involves a significant amount of judgment. Changes in
strategy and/or market conditions could significantly impact these judgments and require adjustments
to recorded amounts of goodwill. We have recorded goodwill and separately identifiable intangible
assets resulting from our acquisitions through September 30, 2007. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. A more frequent evaluation will be performed if
indicators of impairment are present. We completed the annual impairment test of goodwill during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 and determined that there was no impairment to our goodwill balance
The calculation of fair value used for an impairment test includes a number of estimates and
assumptions, including future income and cash flow projections, the identification of appropriate
market multiples and the choice of an appropriate discount rate. If we are required to record an
impairment charge in the future, it could have an adverse impact on our consolidated financial
position or results of pperations.

Deferred Income Taxes

We account for deferred income taxes based upon differences between the financial reporting and
income tax bases of our assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized. The determination of whether or
not valuation allowances are required to be recorded involves significant estimates regarding the
future profitability of our company, as well as potential tax strategies for the utilization of net
operating loss carryforwards.

Contingencies

We are involved in various legal proceedings and claims incidental to our normal business
activities. We are required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to these
matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses. A determination of the amount of reserves
required, if any, for these contingencies are made after careful analysis of each individual issue. The
required reserves may change in the future due to new developments in each matter or changes in
approach such as a change in settlement strategy in dealing with these matters.

23




Revenue Recognition

Patient services are recognized when services are performed and substantiated by proper
documentation. For patient services, which are billed at fixed rates, revenue is recognized upon
completion of timesheets that also require the signature of the recipient of services.

We receive a majority of our revenue from local governmental social services departments and
the NHS.

Purchase Accounting

We account for our acquisitions as purchase business combinations. At acquisition, preliminary
values and useful lives are allocated based upon fair values that have been determined for assets
acquired and liabilities assumed and management’s best estimates for values that have not yet been
finalized. We obtain a third-party valuation in order to complete our purchase price allocations.
Accordingly, final asset and liability fair values as well as useful lives may differ from management’s
original estimates and could have an adverse impact on our consoclidated financial position or results
of operations.

Results of Operations
Year Ended September 30, 2007 vs. Year Ended September 30, 2006
Revenues

Total revenues for the year ended September 30, 2007 were $277.8 million compared to
$280.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2006, a decrease of $2.4 million or 0.9%. This
decrease was mainly due to a reduction in demand from the NHS as overspending by the NHS Trusts
in other areas has forced significant reductions in apency spending as well as price pressures arising
from the NHS Framework Agreements. Changes in foreign exchange had a favorable effect on
revenue ($23.7 million).

Gross Profit

Total gross profit decreased by $1.7 million to $84.0 million for the year ended September 30,
2007 from $85.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2006, a decrease of 2.1%. As a percentage
of total revenue, gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2007 slightly decreased to 30.2% from
30.6% for the comparable prior period mainly due to lower margins on the NHS Framework
Agreements. Changes in foreign exchange had a favorable effect on gross profit ($7.2 million).

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Total selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $4.2 million to $75.3 million for
the year ended September 30, 2007 from $71.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2006, an
increase of 5.9%. This increase was mainly due to severance costs and related professional fees
incurred upon the resignation of our chairman and chief executive officer ($1.2 million) and the
issuance of new warrants and modification to extend the expiration date on warrants previously issued
(30.4 million). The increase was partially offset by lower overhead costs ($3.4 million). Changes in
foreign exchange had an unfavorable effect on selling, general and administrative costs ($6.1 million).

Interest Income

Total interest income for the year ended September 30, 2007 was $0.1 million compared to
$0.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2006.
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Interest Expense

Total interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2007 was $4.2 million compared to
$2.9 miilion for the year ended September 30, 2006, which represents an increase of $1.3 million. This
increase was principally attributable to the write-off of deferred financing fees ($0.7 million) and
prepayment fees ($0.3 million) associated with the irrevocable written notice given to our lenders
notifying them of our intent to prepay the outstanding amounts under our term loan A and term
loan B1 from the proceeds from the sale of our respiratory therapy division, as well as changes in
foreign exchange of $0.6 million. This increase was partially offset by lower borrowings in fiscal 2007
as compared to fiscal 2006.

QOther Income

Total other income for the year ended September 30, 2007 was $0.8 miltlion, which represents the
change in value of our interest rate swaps that had been designated as cash flow hedges and which
were deemed to be ineffective at September 30, 2007.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded a provision for income taxes amounting to $2.1 million or 36.4% of income before
income taxes and discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2007, compared to a
benefit of $1.9 million or 1.7% of income before income taxes and discontinued operations for the
year ended September 30, 2006. The difference in the effective tax rate between the year ended
September 30, 2007 and the year ended September 30, 2006 is mainly due to non-deductible goodwill
impairment charges in fiscal 2006, permanent differences in the United Kingdom and change in the
UK. enacted rates. .

.
~

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations resulted in income of $62.7 million for the year ended September 30,
2007 compared to a loss of $17.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2006. On September 30,
2007, we disposed of two of our U.K. subsidiaries when we sold the shares of Allied Respiratory
Limited and Medigas Limited for £36.5 million ($74.7 million) in cash, of which £500,000 ($1.0 million})
is being held back until certain conditions are met. Four hundred and twenty five thousand pounds
(£425,000) of the escrowed amount was released to us in December 2007 and we expect that the
remaining £75,000 will be released to us in fiscal 2008. These two subsidiaries constituted our
respiratory therapy division, which supplied medical- grade oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to
pharmacies in the UK., oxygen concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland and oxygen services to
customers in the South East of England. Included in the $62.7 million income from discontinued
operations in fiscal 2007 is the gain of $56.5 million, net of tax of $0 on the sale of our respiratory
therapy division. Under U K. tax legislation, enacted on April 1, 2002, disposals of shares by
companies with substantial shareholdings does not resuit in a taxable gain transaction.

In accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 144, we have accounted for our respiratory therapy
division as a discontinued operation. Qur consolidated financial statements reflect the assets and
liabilities of the discontinued operations as separate line items and the operations of our respiratory
therapy division for the current and prior periods are reported in discontinued operations on our
statement of operations.
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The following table presents the financial results for the discontinued operations (dollars in
thousands).

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006

Revenues:

Net respiratory, medical equipment and supplies............. $28,699 $ 14402
Cost of revenues:

Respiratory, medical equipment and supplies................ 13,024 10,521 .

Impairment of respiratory, medical equipment and supplies . . . — 5932 ®

Total costof revenues ... ... i i 13,024 16,453

Gross profit (1088). . ... ..ot e 15,675 (2,051)
Selling, general and administrative expenses. .................. 6,001 4.449
Impairment of goodwill............... . ... oo, — 11,897 ©
Impairment of long-lived assets. ............ ..ot — 2570

Operating income (loss) from discontinued operations. .. ..... 9,584 (18,654)
Interest iNCOME . .. ... i ittt i i i 2
INtEerest EXPENSE . . . . vvvr it ee ittt (1,570 (1,410)Y
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income tax .. 8,016 (20,062)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, netof tax.................... 56,471 —
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes..................... 1,750 @ (2,444)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .................. $62,737 $(17,618)

(a) Included in the provision for income taxes for the year end September 30, 2007 is the reversal of
$0.7 million of certain tax contingencies related to our fiscal 2003 discontinued operations on the
sale of two of our U.S. subsidiaries as the statute of limitations has expired.

(b) In the fourth of fiscal 2006, we recognized pre-tax charges of $5.4 million, $0.5 million and
$0.3 million for the write-off of revenue producing equipment (oxygen cylinders), oxygen filling
station and software costs, respectively. Due to the award of the new oxygen contracts (see
below), we had made significant capital expenditures, amounting to $14.7 million, in order to
fulfill our obligation under the new contracts. We had substituted a number of cylinders with
oxygen concentrators. As such, we believed that these oxygen cylinders had become obsolete and
had no further use to us. We also invested in an oxygen filling station whereby our cylinders
would be re-filled. But, due to the location of the plant and strict noise pollution governmental
rules, we did not believe we would be able to utilize such plant. We also wrote-off various
software costs related to transitioning to our new oxygen contracts that we believed had no future
benefit.

(c) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we completed our annual impairment test required under
FAS No. 142 and determined there was an impairment to our recorded goodwill balance by using
a combination of market multiple, comparable transaction and discounted cash flow methods.
Based on a combination of factors, contributing to the impairment loss were the decrease in
profits in our respiratory therapy division due to the transitioning from the old pharmacy based
contracts to the new supply of oxygen direct to patients contracts that have lower margins (see
below), our current market capitalization at time of review as well as the current and projected
operating results. As such, we recognized a pre-tax impairment charge of $11.9 million.

(d) In fiscal 2007 and 2006, interest expense has been allocated to discontinued operations based on
debt that we have specifically identified as being attributable to discontinued operations, as an
allocation based on net assets would not provide a meaningful result. We based our allocation on
the amount of capital expenditures directly related to our discontinued operations and then
considered cash borrowings necessary to maintain the operations of our then respiratory therapy
division. Prior to fiscal 2006, the respiratory therapy division was self-sufficient and borrowings
were predominately used to fund acquisitions in our flexible healthcare staffing division.
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In 2005, the U.K. Department of Health sought to unify the supply of oxygen to National Health
Service patients in England and Wales. The previous system used pharmacies to supply cylindered
gases, while oxygen concentrators were supplied via regional contracts with homecare providers.
Under the revised system, which came into effect on February 1, 2006, homecare providers supply
cylindered gas and liquid oxygen as well as oxygen concentrators directly to patients. Following a
bidding process, we were awarded two of the contracts with the U.K. Department of Health, both of
which commenced in February 2006 and both of which covered the South East of England. The
contracts required the set up of additional facilities in the South East of England, which we effected in
the second quarter of fiscal 2006, and which resulted in our company incurring additional charges and
capital expenditures in fiscal 2006 as we commenced supplying under the new contracts. Our supply of
cylindered gases in Northern Ireland and Scotland was unaffected by the new contracts, as was our
contract to supply oxygen concentrator services in Northern Ireland.

Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded net income of $66.4 million for the year ended
September 30, 2007 compared to a net loss of $123.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2006.

Year Ended September 30, 2006 vs. Year Ended September 30, 2005
Revenues

Total revenues for the year ended September 30, 2006 were $280.2 million compared to
$342.0 million for the vear ended September 30, 2005, a decrease of $61.8 million or 18.1%. This
decrease was mainly due to a reduction in demand from the NHS as overspending by the NHS Trusts
in other areas has forced significant reductions in agency spending as well as price pressures arising
from the NHS Framework Agreements and unfavorable effects of changes in foreign exchange
($7.7 million).

r

Gross Profit

Total gross profit decreased by $13.0 million to $85.7 million for the year ended September 30,
2006 from $98.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2005, a decrease of 13.2%. The unfavorable
effects of changes in foreign exchange accounted for $2.3 million of the decrease. As a percentage of
total revenue, gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2006 increased to 30.6% from 28.9% for
the comparable prior period, mainly du to management’s focus on supplying healthcare staff to our
higher margin customers.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Total selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $1.9 million to $71.1 million for
the year ended September 30, 2006 from $73.0 million for the year ended September 30, 2005, a
decrease of 2.7%. This decrease was mainly due to a reduction in headcount and associated costs
($3.6 million) and changes in foreign exchange. The decrease was offset by increased level of costs in
IT depreciation and maintenance costs arising from the new computerized accounting and payroll
systems ($2.7 million) and stock-based compensation ($0.7 million).

Impairment of Goodwill

In accordance with FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“FAS No. 1427), we
completed our annual impairment test during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and determined there
was an impairment to our recorded goodwill balance by using a combination of the market multiple,
comparable transaction and discounted cash flow methods. Based on a combination of factors,
contributing to the impairment loss were the decrease in profits due to the decline of revenues from
the NHS, our market capitalization at the time of testing as well as current and projected operating
results. As such, we recognized an impairment charge of $110.0 million.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we recognized a charge of $9.0 million of software costs
related to our computerized accounting and payroll system that is based on the Oracle platform. We
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have discovered that the system was too slow for the nature of our business and therefore was not
achieving full functionality. As such, we decided to abandon certain of the software features of the
Oracle platform and not continue with the planned expansion to our other branches as we believed
the cost to have a workable model would exceed alternative solutions. We are currently in the process
of comparing various operating systems in order to determine which system best supports our branch
network and allows us to interface with our customers and communicate with our staff.

We also reviewed the carrying amount of our other intangibles and deemed certain assets to be
impaired as of September 30, 2006 as a result of the decline in revenues from the NHS. Thus, in
- accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 144, we have recognized an impairment charge of
$1.0 million.

Interest Income

Total interest income for the year ended September 30, 2006 was $0.1 million compared to
$0.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2005, which represents a decrease of $0.1 million. The
decrease was attributable to a lower level of funds invested.

Interest Expense

Total interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2006 was $2.9 million compared to
$4.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2005, which represents a decrease of $1.3 million. This
decrease was principally attributable to interest expense of $1.4 million that has been allocated to
discontinued operations in fiscal 2006 based on debt that the company has specifically identified as
being attributable to discontinued operations, as an allocation based on net assets would not provide a
meaningful result. We based our allocation on the amount of capital expenditures directly related to
our discontinued operations and then considered cash borrowings necessary to maintain the
operations of our then respiratory therapy division. Prior to fiscal 2006, the respiratory therapy
division was self-sufficient and borrowings were predominately used to fund acquisitions in our flexible
healthcare staffing division. As such, no allocation of interest was required for fiscal 2005.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded a benefit from income taxes amounting to $1.9 million or 1.7% of loss before income
taxes and discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2006, compared to a provision of
$6.4 million or 30.1% of income before income taxes and discontinued operations for the year ended
September 30, 2005. The difference in the effective tax rate between the year ended September 30,
2006 and the year ended September 30, 2005 is mainly due to non-deductible goodwill impairment
charges.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations resuited in a loss of $17.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2006
compared to income of $3.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2005. The increase in revenues
in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 was a result of the introduction of twe new oxygen supply
contracts that commenced on February 1, 2006, which also resulted in additional costs being incurred.
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The following table presents the financial results for the discontinued operations (dollars in

thousands).
Year Ended September 30,
2006 2005
Revenues:
Net respiratory, medical equipment and supplies............. $ 14,402 $9.158
Cost of revenues: .
Respiratory, medical equipment and supplies................ 10,521 4,214
Impairment of respiratory, medical equipment and supplies ... 5932 @ —
Total cost of revenues ............. .o, 16,453 4214
Gross (loss) profit. .. ... (2,051) 4,944
Selling, general and administrative expenses. ............ . ..., 4,449 897
Impairment of goodwill. .. ... ... .. ... .. . cciiiiiiiiiiiiiaas 11,897 ® —
Impairment of long-lived assets. . ..., 257 @ —
Operating (loss) income from discontinued operations. ... .. .. (18,654) 4,047
Interest income. .. ... . . e 2 —
INLETESt EXPEISE . .. oottt ittt it eei e (1,410)@ —©
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before income tax. . (20,062) 4,047
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes..................... (2,444) 280
(Loss) income from discontinued operations .................. $(17,618) $3,767

[

(a) In the fourth of fiscal 2006, We recognized pre-tax charges of $5.4 million, $0.5 million and
$0.3 million for the write-off of revenue producing equipment (oxygen cylinders), oxygen filling
station and software costs, respectively. Due to the award of the new oxygen contracts, we had
made significant capital expenditures, amounting to $14.7 million, in order to fulfill our obligation
under the new contracts. We had substituted a number of cylinders with oxygen concentrators. As
such, we believed that these oxygen cylinders had become obsolete and had no further use to us.
We also invested in an oxygen filling station whereby our cylinders would be re-filled. But, due to
the location of the plant and strict noise pollution governmental rules, we did not believe we
would be able to utilize such plant. We also wrote-off various software costs related to
transitioning to our new oxygen contracts that we believed had no future benefit.

{b) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we completed our annual impairment test required under
FAS No. 142 and determined there was an impairment to our recorded goodwill. Based on a
combination of factors, contributing to the impairment loss were the decrease in profits in our
respiratory therapy division due to the transitioning from the old pharmacy based contracts to the
new supply of oxygen direct to patients contracts that have lower margins (see below), our
current market capitalization at time of review as well as the current and projected operating
results. As such, we recognized a pre-tax impairment charge of $11.9 million.

{c) In fiscal 2006, interest expense has been allocated to discontinued operations based on debt that
we have specifically identified as being attributable to discontinued operations, as an allocation
based on net assets would not provide a meaningful result. We based our allocation on the
amount of capital expenditures directly related to our discontinued operations and then
considered cash borrowings necessary to maintain the operations of our then respiratory therapy
division. Prior to fiscal 2006, the respiratory therapy division was self-sufficient and borrowings
were predominately used to fund acquisitions in our flexible healthcare staffing division. As such,
no allocation of interest was required for fiscal 2005.
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Net Loss

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded net loss of $123.8 million for the year ended
September 30, 2006 compared to net income of $18.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

For our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, we generated $22.2 million from continuing
operating activities. Cash requirements for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 for capital
expenditures ($1.3 million), payments for acquisition payables ($2.6 million), principal payments on
the long-term debt portion of our Amended Senior Credit Facility (as such term is defined below)
($11.8 million), net payments on the revolving loan portion of our Amended Senior Credit Facility
{$14.8 million) and payments for financing fees ($0.5 million) were met through operating cash flows,
net borrowings under our Amended Senior Credit Facility and cash on hand.

We believe that the existing capital resources and those generated from operating activities and
available under existing borrowing arrangements will be adequate to conduct our operations for the
next twelve months.

Accounts Receivable

We maintain a cash management program that focuses on the reimbursement function, as growth
in accounts receivable has been the main operating use of cash historically. At September 30, 2007 and
September 30, 2006, $21.5 million (8.5%) and $26.8 million (13.7%), Tespectively, of our total assets
consisted of accounts receivable. The decrease in accounts receivable from 2006 to 2007 is mainly due
to strict targets being set and achieved by management on the recovery of overdue debts and cash
collection, which in turn has yielded sustained cash flow benefits.

Our goal is to maintain accounts receivable levels equal to or less than industry average, which
would tend to mitigate the risk of negative cash flows from operations by reducing the required
investment in accounts receivable and thereby increasing cash flows from operations. We maintain
credit controls to ensure cash collection on a timely basis. Days sales outstanding (“DSQs™) is a
measure of the average number of days we take to collect our accounlts receivable, calculated from the
date services are rendered. At September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006, our average DSOs were
26 and 35, respectively.

At September 30, 2007 gross receivables were $23.6 million, of which $16.0 million or 67.6% were
represented by amounts due from U.K. governmental bodies, either the NHS or local governmental
social service departments (the “SSD”). At September 30, 2006 gross receivables were $29.3 million,
of which $19.7 million or 67.2% were represented by amounts due from U.K. governmental bodies.
The remaining accounts receivable balance is due from commercial payors (nursing homes, private
hospitals and pharmacies) and private payors.
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The following table summarizes the accounts receivable aging by payor mix at September 30,
2007 and September 30, 2006 (dollars in thousands):

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-126 121 Days AR At
At September 30, 2007 Days Days Days Days And Over 973012007
NHS ... i $ 4394 $1210 $337 $151 $211 $ 6,303
SO e 7,907 1,125 370 246 21 9,669
Commercial Payors ..................... 3,326 1,028 116 25 73 4,568
Private Payors..................c... ... 1,734 472 140 88 638 3,072
Gross AR at9/30/07 .................... $17361 $3,835 $963  $510 $943 $23,612
Less: Unapplied Cash
Less: Surcharges . ..................... (552)
Less: Allowance For Doubtful Accounts. . . (1,570)
Accounts Receivable, net................ $21,490

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121 Days AR At
At September 30, 2006 Days Days Days Days And Over  9/30/2006
NHS ... ., $ 4469 $2408 §$ 567 § 502 $1073  $ 9,019
88D 6,991 2.409 533 347 360 10,640
Commercial Payors ..................... 3,803 1,440 420 184 451 6,298
Private Payors. . ........................ 1,718 555 241 157 626 3,297
Gross AR at 9/30/06 .................... $16,981 $6,812 $1,761 $1,190 $2510  $29254
Less: Surcharges™ . ............... .. .. (738)
Less: Allowance For Doubtful Accounts. .. (1,703)
Accounts Receivable, net................ ' $26,813

(A) Surcharges represent interest charges to customers on overdue accounts. The surcharges are
recognized in income only upon receipt of payment.

As discussed above under “Critical Accounting Policies — Accounts Receivable,” each fiscal year
we undertake a review of our methodology and procedure for reserving for our doubtful accounts.
This process also takes into account our actual experience of write offs in the period. The policy is
then applied at each quarter end to arrive at a closing reserve for doubtful accounts. In the second
quarter of fiscal 2006, we reviewed our current methodology and revised the basis of estimation for
providing against certain classes of doubtful account receivable based on an analysis of historical
experience. This review has given rise to a benefit of approximately $0.3 million on our fiscal 2006
statement of operations.

Given the high percentage of U.K. governmental debt, the large number of customer accounts
with low-value debt within the remainder of the accounts receivable ledger and the methodology for
making provisions for doubtful accounts, we believe our provisioning method is prudent and -
appropriate to our business,

We provide homecare aides and nurses on the basis of terms {payment due within 7 to 30 days of
invoice) and prices (rate per hour) agreed to in advance with our customers. Time sheets are signed
by clients for the work performed and then invoices are generated based on agreed billing rates.
Consequently, there is no process for approval of invoices. Our credit control policies currently
achieve an average collection of approximately 26 days from submission of invoices.

As our current operations are in the U.K. and the majority of accounts receivable is from U.K.
governmental bodies for which payment terms and prices are agreed in advance, we have not
recorded any contractual allowances. There have been recent agreements with the NHS to adjust rates
(both increases and decreases) depending on the volume of hours utilized. Billing adjustments are
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reviewed quarterly based on actual volumes delivered and any entries are recognized during the
appropriate period. No material adjustments have arisen based on volumes delivered. -

Borrowings
General

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, our first tier U.K. subsidiary, Allied Healthcare Group
Holdings Limited (“Allied Holdings™), obtained financing denominated in pounds sterling consisting
of a £50 million multicurrency senior credit facility (the “Senior Credit Facility”). As described in
more detail below, in December 2006, the Senior Credit Facility was amended and restated (the
“Amended Senior Credit Facility”).

On December 12, 2006, our U.K. subsidiary, Allied Holdings, and our banks entered into the
Amended Senior Credit Facility. The Amended Senior Credit Facility provided for a £46 ($94.2)
million multicurrency senior credit facility to replace the Senior Credit Facility. The effective date of
the Amended Senior Credit Facility was December 13, 2006. The Amended Senior Credit Facility was
secured by a first priority lien on the assets of Allied Holdings and certain of its subsidiaties, and
payment was guaranteed by Allied Healthcare Internationai Inc. and certain of the subsidiaries of
Allied Holdings. Allied Healthcare International Inc. granted the banks a security interest in
substantially all of its assets to secure the payment of its guarantee.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility consisted of the following:
¢ an £18 (3$36.9) million term loan A, maturing in July 2009;

* a£12.5 ($25.6) million revolving loan B1 maturing in July 2009 and that could be drawn upon
until June 2009; )

s a £7.5 ($15.3) million invoice discounting facility B2 that matuires in July 2009 and can be
drawn upon until July 2009, and

¢ an £8.0 ($16.4) million revolving loan C maturing in July 2009 and that could be drawn upon
until June 2009,

Repayment of the term loan A was made semi-annually until final maturity. Repayment of the
revolving loan B1 was made on the last day of its interest period. Repayment of the invoice
discounting loan B2 shall be on the maturity date (July 2009). Repayment of revolving loan C was on
its maturity date (July 2009) or, if earlier, the date that the other facilities are repaid. The loans bore
interest at rates equal to LIBOR plus any bank mandatory costs (if applicable) plus 0.70% to 3.50%
per annum (depending on our consolidated debt to consolidated profit ratios). As of
September 30, 2007, we had outstanding borrowings of $24.6 million, $25.6 million and $4.6 million
relating to term loan A, revolving loan B1 and invoice discounting loan B2, respectively, under the
Amended Senior Credit Facility that bore interest at rates ranging from 7.69% to 8.79%.

The invoice discount facility commenced in January 2007 and provides, among other things, the
following:

* we can borrow on 85% of our approved flexible staffing accounts receivable, which excludes
accounts receivable greater than 120 days, credit balances and reserves;

* po one debtor can exceed 10% of the outstanding approved accounts receivable; and
* accounts receivable relating to private individuals are not fundable.

Prior to the commencement of the invoice discount facility, we had a £7.5 million ($14.8 million)
revolving loan B which was repaid upon commencement of the invoice discount facility.

On September 28, 2007 Allied Holdings gave irrevocable written notice to the agent for the banks
under the Amended Senior Credit Facility that it wished to prepay the amounts outstanding under the
term loan A of £12.0 million ($24.6 million) and term loan B1 of £12.5 million ($25.6 million) on
October 1, 2007 from the proceeds of sale of our respiratory therapy division. Allied Holdings also
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gave irrevocable written notice that it wished to cancel term loan A, term loan B1 and revolving loan
C on October 1, 2007. On October 1, 2007 Allied Holdings prepaid the amounts outstanding under
the term loan A and the term loan B1 facilities from the proceeds of sale of our respiratory therapy
division. Allied Holdings also cancelled term loan A, term loan B1 and revolving loan C on

October 1, 2007, The invoice discount facility continues to be available.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility agreement was based on the U.K.s Loan Markets
Association Multicurrency Term and Revolving Facilities agreement, which is a standard form
designed to be commercially acceptable to the corporate lending market.

Subject to certain exceptions, the Amended Senior Credit Facility prohibited or restricted the
following, among other things:

¢ incurring liens and granting security interests in our assets or the assets of certain of our UK.
subsidiaries;

= incurring additional indebtedness;

* making certain fundamental corporate changes;

* paying dividends (including the payment of dividends to our company by our subsidiaries);
* making specified investments, acquisitions or disposals;

* repurchasing shares; and

* entering into cerlain transactions with affiliates.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility contained affirmative and negative financial covenants
customarily found in agreements of this kind, including the maintenance of certain financial ratios,
such as cash flow to debt service, earnings (before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization} to
interest expense, and net borrowings to earnings (before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization). We were also obligated to ensure that the guarantors of the Amended Senior Credit
Facility must not at any time represent less than 90% of the consolidated gross assets, turnover or
earnings before interest and taxes of the U K. subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2007, we were in
compliance with such financial covenants.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility placed limits on our ability to incur capital expenditures,
required us to separate the role of the chairman and the chief executive officer no later than
August 1, 2007, and required us to engage a consultant to review our operations and make
recommendations with respect thereto. In July 2007, the role of the chairman and chief executive
officer was separated. We obtained an extension of time to February 1, 2008 to appoint a permanent
chief executive officer.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Senior Credit Facility was amended to provide an
overdraft facility (the “Overdraft Facility”) in the amount of £3.0 ($5.6) million for general corporate
purposes. We had utilized the Overdraft Facility in the first quarter of fiscal 2007 and had no amounts
outstanding as of September 30, 2007. The Overdraft Facility was repayable upon the earlier of
demand from the bank or January 11, 2007. Interest on the Overdraft Facility was charged at the
same rate as loans under revolving loan B1l. In December 2006, the Overdraft Facility was rolled over
and incorporated into our loan under the Amended Senior Credit Facility.

Notes Due in Connection with Acquisitions

We repaid, through Allied Holdings, notes payable of $1.9 million issued in connection with the
acquisition of certain U.K. flexible staffing agencies in our 2005 fiscal year.

Guarantees

The Amended Senior Credit Facility is secured by a first priority lien on the assets of Allied
Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries,
our company is guaranteeing the debt and other obligations of certain wholly-owned U.K. subsidiaries
under the Amended Senior Credit Facility. In connection with the execution of the Amended Senior
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Credit Facility, we granted the lenders a security interest in substantially all of its assets to secure the
payment of its guarantee. At September 30, 2007 and September 30 2006, the amounts guaranteed,
which approximate the amounts outstanding, totaled $54.8 million and $71.2 million, respectively.

Financial Instrument

See “Item 7TA — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk — Interest Rate
Risk.”

Commitments

Employment Agreements

See “Item 11 — Executive Compensation — Employment Agreements; Potential Payments Upon
Termination or Change-in-Control.”

Operating Leases

We have entered into various operating lease agreements for office space and equipment. Certain
of these leases provide for renewal options.

Contractual Cash Obligations

As described under “Borrowings” and “Commitments — Operating Leases” above, the following
table summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of September 30, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Total Debt Total Lease Total
Fiscal Obligations Obligations Obligations
2008 ... e e e $54,795 " $2,587 $57,382
2009 L e e _ 1,831 1,831
7,113 L — 1,218 1,218
200 L e — 724 724
2002 e e — 579 579
Thereafter....... ..o i ... s 156 156

$54,795 $7.095 $61,890

Lease obligations reflect future minimum rental commitments required under operating leases
that have non-cancelable lease terms as of September 30, 2007. Certain of these leases provide for
renewal options.

Miscellaneous

Treasury Shares

In January 2001, we initiated a stock repurchase program, whereby we may purchase up to
approximately $1.0 million of our outstanding shares of common stock in open-market transactions or
in privately-negotiated transactions. In May 2003, we initiated a second stock repurchase program,
pursuant to which we may purchase up to an additional $3.0 million of our outstanding shares of
common stock in open-market transactions or in privately-negotiated transactions. As of
September 30, 2007, we had acquired 407,700 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase
price of $1.3 million pursuant to our stock repurchase programs, which are reflected as treasury stock
in our consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2007. In addition, as of September 30, 2007, we
had acquired 177,055 shares of our company’s common stock for an aggregate value of $1.0 million
from certain of our executive officers. Such shares were acquired in fiscal 2004 and delivered to us as
payment on promissory notes issued by us to them.

Acquisitions

In fiscal 2006, we acquired the entire issued share capital of a home care training agency for
approximately $0.8 million in cash and additional contingent cash consideration of up to $0.9 million
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dependent upon (i) future earnings in fiscal 2006, (ii) providing a set minimum of training programs
and (iii) the sellers continuing employment with our company until at least December 31, 2006. Of the
$0.9 million contingent cash consideration, we have recognized compensation costs of $0.1 million,

net of income tax, and $0.5 million, net of income tax, for fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively,

as the acquisition contract required the sellers to remain in employment with us until at least
December 31, 2006 (the earnout period). In fiscal 2007, the contingent consideration was earned

and paid.

In fiscal 2005, we acquired a total of 9 flexible staffing agencies for approximately $17.1 million in
cash and $0.1 million in acquisition payable, which was paid in fiscal 2006. As of September 30, 2005,
these transactions included provisions to pay additional amounts, payable in cash, of up to $9.7 million
in contingent consideration dependent upon future earnings of the acquired entities. In fiscal 2006 a
total of $6.3 million was earned and paid in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2007. The remaining balance of
contingént consideration was unearned and will not be required to be paid.

In fiscal 2006, we completed our purchase price allocation for our fiscal 2005 acquisitions.
Accordingly, final tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were assigned
values of approximately $5.9 million, $5.6 million and $2.3 million, respectively, with the remaining
portion of $9.2 million attributable to goodwill. As compared to the original valuations at acquisition,
the final valuation resulted in a reclassification of $0.2 million from separately identifiable intangible
assets to goodwill.

In fiscal 2005, we completed our purchase price allocation for our fiscal 2004 acquisitions.
Accordingly, tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were assigned
values of approximately $1.3 million, $3.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively, with the remaining
portion of $4.9 million attributable to goodwill. As compared to the original valuations at acquisition,
the final valuation resulted in a reclassification of $0.8 million from goodwill to separately identifiable
intangible assets.

The pro forma results of operations and related per share information for these acquisitions have
not been presented as the amounts are considered immaterial.

Disposition

On September 30, 2007, we sold all of the shares of Allied Respiratory Limited to Air Liquide
Limited. Allied Respiratory Limited and its subsidiary, Medigas Limited, constituted the respiratory
therapy division of our company. The consideration for the sale was denominated in sterling and
consisted of £36.5 million ($74.7 million), of which £500,000 ($1.0 million) is being held back until
certain conditions are met. Four hundred and twenty five thousand pounds (£425,000) of the escrowed
amount was released to us in December 2007 and we expect that the remaining £75,000 will be
released to us in fiscal 2008.

In accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 144, we have accounted for our respiratory therapy
division as a discontinued operation. Our consolidated financial statements reflect the assets and
liabilities of the discontinued operations as separate line items and the operations of our respiratory
therapy division for the current and prior periods are reported in discontinued operations on our
statement of operations.

See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 for a discussion and details of discontinued operations, including an analysis of
the pro forma effects on our financial statements of the discontinued operations.

Litigation
See “Item 3 — Legal Proceedings.”

Contingencies

Some of our inactive subsidiaries were Medicare Part B suppliers who submitted claims to the
designated carrier who is the government’s claims processing administrator. From time to time, the
carrier may request an audit of Medicare Part B claims on a prepayment or postpayment basis. If the
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outcome of any audit results in a denial or a finding of an overpayment, then the affected subsidiary
has appeal rights. Under postpayment audit procedures, the supplier generally pays the alleged
overpayment and can pursue appeal rights for a refund of any paid overpayment incorrectly assessed
against the supplier.

We believe that we have been in compliance, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of federal laws and regulations and applicable state laws, together with all applicable laws
and regulations of other countries in which we operate. Due to the broad and sometimes vague nature
of these laws and regulations, there can be no assurance that an enforcement action will not be
brought against us, or that we will not be found to be in violation of one or more of these laws or
regulations. At present, we cannot anticipate what impact, if any, administrative or judicial
interpretations of applicable federal and state laws and the laws of other countries in which we
operate may have on our financial position, cash flows and results of operations.

We are involved in various legal proceedings and claims incidental to our normal business
activities. We are vigorously defending our position in all such proceedings. We believe that these
matters should not have a material adverse impact on our financial position, cash flows or results of
operations.

Liabilities for loss contingencies, arising from claims, assessments, litigation and other sources are
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of liability can be
reasonably estimated. Based on management’s best estimate of probable liability, we have accrued
$1.0 million and $0.7 million for such costs at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Impact of Recent Accounting Standards

See “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Foreign Currency Exchange

We face exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. These exposures
may change over time as business practices evolve and could have a material adverse impact on our
consolidated financial results. Currently, we do not hedge foreign currency exchange rate exposures.

The transiation of the financial statement of our U.K. operations is impacted by fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. For the fiscal 2007 period as compared to the fiscal 2006 average rate,
the translation of our U.K. financial statements into U.S. dollars resulted in increased revenues of
$23.7 million, increased operating income of $1.1 million and increased income from continuing
operations of $0.3 million. We estimate that a 10% change in the exchange rate between the British
pound and the U.S. dollar would have a $27.8 million, $1.3 million and $0.4 million impact on
reported revenues, operating income and income from continuing operations, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relate primarily to our cash equivalents
and our Amended Senior Credit Facility. Our cash equivalents include highly liquid short-term
investments purchased with initial maturities of 90 days or less. To manage our exposure to interest
rate changes related to our Amended Senior Credit Facility, we use interest rate swap agreements.

In March 2003, we entered into a Rate Cap and Floor Collar Agreement that capped our interest
rate at LIBOR plus 5.50% and our interest floor at LIBOR plus 4.47%, subject to special provisions,
on approximately $93.6 million of our floating rate debt under a contract that would have expired in
March 2008. In February 2005, we sold this derivative instrument for approximately $0.1 million.

In February 2005, we entered into two interest rate swap agreements, which expire in July 2009,
the objective of which is to protect us against the potential increase in interest rates on our floating
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rate debt. The two interest rate swap agreements cover approximately $61.4 million of the our floating
rate debt until January 2008 and then decrease by $6.1 million each six-month period, in order to
reflect the amortizing effect of our floating rate debt, until the end of the interest rate swap
agreements. The interest rate under the swap agreements is fixed at 4.935% and is payable
semi-annually. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we designated the two interest rate swap agreements
as cash flow hedges. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” as amended by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138 and related implementation guidance, we
calculated the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements to be an asset of $0.6 million at
September 30, 2007 and an asset of $0.3 million at September 30, 2006. Prior to the cash flow hedge
designation, changes in the value from period to period of the interest rate swap agreements was
recorded as other expense or income, as appropriate. At September 30, 2007, the cash flow hedges
were deemed to be ineffective as our company entered into an irrevocable agreement to prepay the
amounts outstanding under our term loan A and term loan B1 and subsequently, on October 3, 2007,
we sold the swaps. Thus, the cumulative amount in other comprehensive income and the change in
value were recorded in other income and totaled $0.5 million, net of $0.2 million in income tax, in
fiscal 2007. At September 30, 2006, the effective portion of the income on the interest rate swap
agreements designated as cash flow hedges was $0.3 million, net of income tax, and was included in
other comprehensive income. In fiscal 2006, we recognized other income of $27 thousand, net of

$12 thousand of income tax, related to the cash flow hedge ineffectiveness.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements and required financial statement schedules of our company
begin on page F-i of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

As we previously reported in reports we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in
fiscal 2006 we changed our auditors. During the periods in respect of which disclosure is required to
be made by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, (1) there were no
disagreements with our former auditors on any matters of accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the
satisfaction ol our former auditors, would have caused them to make reference thereto in their reports
on our financial statements and financial statements schedules, and {2) there were no “reportable
events” {as such term is defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission) involving our former auditors.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our company’s management, with the participation of our interim chief executive officer and our
chief financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
September 30, 2007.

Under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, “disclosure controls and
procedures™ are defined as controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, including this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us, in reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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Based on such evaluation, our interim chief executive officer and our chief financial officer have
concluded that, as of September 30, 2007, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to
ensure that the information we are required to disciose in reports that we file or submit to the
* Securities and Exchange Commission is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified under the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting for the company. Under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
“internal control over financial reporting procedures” is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining records, that in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and our dispositions of assets; provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; provide
reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of company assets are made only in accordance
with management authorization; and provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or the
timely detection of the unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of company assets that could have
a material effect on our financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our financial statements
would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluation, management
concluded that the company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
September 30, 2007.

Our auditors, Eisner LLF, have issued a report on this assessment of our internal control over
financial reporting. Their report is included in this Item 9A.

38




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Allied Healthcare International Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Allied Healthcare International Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and
other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in ali material respects, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in ali material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedules as of and for the years ended September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006 and the
retrospective adjustment to the 2005 consolidated financial statements for the operations discontinued
in 2007 of the Company and our report dated December 11, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements, financial statement schedules and that such retrospective
adjustment is appropriate and has been properly applied.

/sf Eisner LLP

New York, New York
December 11, 2007
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the
quarter ended September 30, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

There was no information that we were required to disclose in a Current Report on Form 8-K
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 that was not so disclosed.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant,

Our Directors and Officers

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the directors and officers of our
company: -

Name Ape Positions with our Company

Sarah L. Eames...................... 49 De&Juty Chairman, Interim Chief Executive Officer
and Director

David Moffatt ....................... 55 ° Chief Financial Officer

Leslie J. Levinson .................... 52 Secretary

Sophia Corona....................... 44 Director

G. Richard Green.................... 68 Dircctor

Wayne Palladino..................... 49 Director

Jeffrey S. Peris. ...................... 61 Director

Ann Thomburg...................... 58 Director

Mark Tompkins................... ... 67 Non-Executive Chairman of the Board

Certain biographical information regarding each director and officer is set forth below:

Sarah L. Eames has served as a director of our company since June 2002 and as deputy chairman
and interim chief executive officer of our company since July 2007. She served as executive vice
president of our company from November 2004 until July 2007, as chief executive officer of our
company from January 2004 until November 2004, as chief operating officer of our company from
June 2001 until November 2004, as president of our company from May 1998 until November 2004,
and as executive vice president of business development and marketing of our company from
June 1997 until May 1998. Prior to joining our company, Ms. Eames was employed by Johnson &
Johnson Professional, Inc. as a business development consultant from 1996 until 1997. From June 1995
until November 1995, Ms. Eames served as vice president of marketing for Apria Healthcare Group,
Inc., a California-based home healthcare company. From 1980 until 1995, Ms. Eames held various
marketing and business development positions at Abbey Healthcare Group Inc., a predecessor of
Apria Healthcare Group, Inc. Ms. Eames serves on the board of directors of Global Med
Technologies, Inc., an e-health, medical information technology company, that provides information
management software products and services to the healthcare industry.

David Moffatt has served as chief financial officer of our company since July 2006. From
December 2005 until May 2006, Mr. Moffatt was a consultant to staffing businesses. From 2000 until
November 2005, he was deputy European chief financial officer for Monster Worldwide, Inc., a leading
global online recruitment services provider. From May 1999 until April 2000, Mr. Moffatt served as
interim U.K. finance director for Monster Worldwide, Inc. From January 1999 until May 1999, he was
the intenim operations director of Patientline Ltd., a hospital bedside telephone, television and video
company.

Leslie J. Levinson has served as secretary of our company since September 1999 and had
previously served in such capacity from October 1990 until July 1997, Since March 2007, he has been a
partner in the law firm of Wolf Block Schorr & Solis-Cohen LLP, which firm serves as counsel to our
company. From 2002 until March 2007 he was a partner in Brown Raysman Millstein Felder & Steiner
LLP and its successor, Thelen Reid Brown Raysman & Steiner LLP, which firm served as counsel to
our company, and from 1991 untit 2002 he was a partner in the law firm of Baer Marks & Upham
LLP, which firm served as counsel to our company.

Sophia Corona has been a director of our company since November 2006. Since February 2007,
she has been employed by Creditex Group Inc., a credit derivatives platform company, where she
currently serves as chief financial officer. From April 2006 until February 2007, Ms. Corona was a
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financial advisor to privately-owned companies. From October 2001 until March 2006, she was the
chief financial officer of Bigfoot Interactive, Inc (now known as Epsilon Interactive, Inc.), a provider
of e-mail communications and marketing services, which was acquired by Alliance Data Systems
Corporation, a New York Stock Exchange-listed company that is a provider of transaction services,
credit services and marketing services, in September 2005. From 2000 until 2001, Ms. Corona was the
vice president of business development for Visual Radio, LLC, a technology incubation fund that she
co-founded in 1996 and in which she was employed as the chief financial officer from 1996 until 1998,
From 1998 until 2000, she was a senior vice president with Prism Communications Services, Inc., a
telecommunications provider.

G. Richard Green has been a director of our company since August 1998. Mr. Green has been the
chairman since 1987 and a director since 1964 of J.H. & FW. Green Ltd., a conglomerate based in the
United Kingdom. Since 1964, Mr. Green has held various positions at J.H. & EW. Green Ltd. and
several of its subsidiaries.

Wayne Palfladino has been a director of our company since September 2003. Mr. Palladino has
worked at Pzena Investment Management LLC, an asset management firm, since June 2002, where he
currently serves as principal, a director of client and portfolio services and chief financial officer. From
August 2000 until June 2002, he was a senior vice president and chief financial officer of Lillian
Vernon Corporation, a catalog retailer. Mr. Palladino was a vice president of our company from
February 1991 until September 1996, senior vice president of our company from September 1996 until
August 2000 and chief financial officer of our company from February 1991 until August 2000.

Jeffrey S. Peris has been a director of our company since May 1998. Since May 2006, Dr. Peris has
served as an executive advisor to leading established global and new business entities. Dr. Peris served
as the vice president of human resources and chief learning officer of Wyeth (formerly American
Home Products Corporation), a pharmaceutical company, from 2001 until 2006. Dr. Peris was the vice
president of business operations of Knoll Pharmaceutical (Abbott Laboratories), where he was
responsible for human resources and corporate communications, from 1998 until 2001. Dr. Peris was a
management consultant to various Fortune 100 companies from 1997 until 1998. From 1972 until 1997,
Dr. Peris was employed by Merck Co., Inc., a pharmaceutical company, where he served as the
executive director of human resources from 1985 until 1997, the executive director of marketing from
1976 until 1985, and the director of clinical biostatistics and research data systems from 1972 until
1976.

Ann Thornburg has been a director of our company since November 2006, From October 1982
until September 2006, Ms. Thornburg was a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an auditing firm.
At PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, she served in a variety of client service and management roies,
including acting as audit partner for major health care clients. From 2001 until 2005, Ms. Thornburg
was a member of the U.S. Board of Partners and Principals of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Mark Tompkins has been a director of our company since September 2005 and as non-executive
chairman of the board since July 2007. From 1987 until the present, Mr. Tompkins has been a
self-employed investor, with a focus on private equity and capital development in publicly traded
entities, notably in the healthcare, biopharmaceutical, wholesale and distribution, tourism and leisure,
and manufacturing industries. From 1975 until 1987 he was active in residential and commercial
property investment in the Middle East, Germany, Spain, France and the United States. From 1972
until 1975, Mr. Tompkins worked for the Slater Walker Securities group and from 1965 until 1971 he
was a management consultant with Booz Allen & Hamilton. Mr. Tompkins is a director of Sodexho
Alliance S.A., a company engaged in the provision of food and management services.

All directors of our company are elected by the shareholders for a one-year term and hold office
until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal.
Officers are chosen by and serve at the discretion of the board of directors, subject to any applicable
employment contracts. There are no family relationships among our directors and officers.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules thereunder promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission require the reporting of transactions in our equity securities
by our directors and certain of our officers and by shareholders who beneficially own more than 10%
of our common stock (collectively, the “Reporting Persons™). Section 16(a) and the rules thereunder
require the Reporting Persons to report initial statements of ownership of our equity securities on
Form 3 and changes in ownership of our equity securities on Form 4 or Form 5. Based on a review of
these reports filed by the Reporting Persons and written representanons from our directors and
officers that no Forms § were required to be filed by them in respect of our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007, we believe that no Reporting Person failed to file a Section 16 report on a timely
basis during our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007.

Code of Conduct

In September 2003, our board of directors adopted a Code of Conduct that applies to all of our
directors, officers and employees, including our interim chief executive officer and our chief financial
officer. As required by the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Code of
Conduct is designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

(1) honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between personal and professional relationships,

(2) full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we file
with, or submit to, the Securities and Exchange Commission and in other public
communications made by us;

(3) compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations;

(4) the prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code of Conduct to the Audit Commiittee;
and

(5) accountability for adherence to the Code of Conduct. N

A copy of our Code of Conduct is filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists our board of directors in monitoring (1) the integrity of our
financial statements, (2) the independence and qualifications of our independent auditors, and (3) the
performance of our independent auditors and our internal audit functions. The current written charter
for the Audit Committee was adopted by our board of directors on May 4, 2007 and is attached as an
exhibit to the proxy statement relating to our 2007 annual meeting of shareholders.

The Audit Committee consists of Ms. Corona, Mr. Palladino and Ms. Thornburg. Ms. Thornburg
serves as chairman of the Audit Committee. All of the members of the Audit Committee are
“independent directors,” as such term is defined in the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The board
of directors has determined that Ann Thornburg is an “audit committee financial expert,” as such
term is defined in Item 407(d) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

General

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis addresses the compensation of our “named executive
officers.” Our “named executive officers™ consist of all individuals who served as our principal
executive officer and our principal financial officer during fiscal 2007, as well as each of the other
most-highly compensated executive officers of our company whose total annual compensation
exceeded $100,000 in fiscal 2007. These individuals are listed in the following table:

Name Title

Timothy M. Aitken ................ Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer’)
Sarah L. Eames.................... Deputy Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer®
David Moffatt..................... Chief Financial Officer

(1) Mr. Aitken resigned from all positions with our company in July 2007.

(2) Ms. Eames assumed the positions of deputy chairman and interim chief executive officer of our
company in July 2007. Pricr to that date, during fiscal 2007 she had served as executive vice
president of our company.

The Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Committee reviews and approves overall policy with respect to compensation
matters for our executive officers, including compensation plans and employment agreements. The
current written charter for our Compensation Committee was adopted by our beard of directors on
May 10, 2005. A copy of the charter of the Compensation Committee is available on our website at
www.alliedhealthcare.com.

Our Compensation Committee consists of Sophia Corona, G. Richard Green and Jeffrey S. Peris.
Mark Hanley was also a member of the Compensation Committee during fiscal 2007 until his
resignation from the board of directors in April 2007.

The charter of the Compensation Committee requires that each member of the Compensation
Committee satisfy the definition of “independent director,” as that term is defined in the rules of the
Nasdaq Stock Market. Members of the Compensation Committee are appointed by the full board,
which makes the determination that a director is an “independent director,” as defined in the Nasdaq
rules.

Other than the requirement that they be independent, the charter of the Compensation
Committee does not require that members of the Compensation Committee have any special
qualifications. However, in appointing Dr. Peris to the Compensation Committee, and as its chairman,
the board considered the fact that he has spent over 20 years overseeing human resources at leading
global pharmaceutical companies, during which time he was involved in the retention, payment and
termination of employees of all levels, including senior corporate and divisional executives. Likewise,
in appointing Mr. Green to the Compensation Committee, the board considered the fact that he has
been a director and officer for over 25 years at J.H. & FW. Green Ltd., a conglomerate based in the
U.K,, and, in such capacities, has been involved in all aspects of executive compensation.

Policy

Our Compensation Committee believes that the compensation for the executive officers of our
company should be designed with the objective of attracting, motivating and retaining talented
individuals who contribute to the success of our company. The Compensation Committee has used the
components of compensation discussed below in an effort to reward executive officers whose
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performance is essential to the Company’s success, both in the near-term and over the long-term, and
to encourage their continued service with our company. Our Compensation Committee also reviews
individual contributions to our company and the financial performance of our company in determining
the compensation to recommend to the board.

Our compensation program is comprised of three elements: (a) base salary; (b) short-term
incentive awards in the form of cash bonuses; and {c) a long-term incentive program, which consists
principally of stock option awards in which participants receive an economic benefit only if the trading
price of our common stock increases or, in certain cases, if certain specified financial goals set forth in
the option awards are met by our company.

Base Salary. The Compensation Committee strives to set a fair and competitive base salary for
each of the executive officers of our company. The Compensation Committee reviews the base
salaries of our executive officers from time to time, but generally makes few changes in base
salaries except upon a change in position. In general, it is the Compensation Committee’s view
that increases in the cash compensation of our executive officers should be achieved through the
awarding of bonuses, rather than through an increase in base salary. However, when the
Compensation Committee contemplates an adjustment to base salary, various factors are
considered, including company performance, the executive’s individual performance, scope of
responsibility and changes in that scope (including as a result of promotions), tenure, ptior
experience and market practice.

Bonus. The Compensation Committee may award, or recommend that the full board award,
cash bonuses to executive officers that are tied to individual contributions to our company and
the financial performance of our company. We do not have a written bonus plan in place; rather,
individual awards of bonus payments are determined, or recommended to the full board, by our
Compensation Committee based upon its assessment of the contribution by the individual to our
company and our financial performance, as well as such other factors as the Compensation
Committee may deem relevant at the time of determining the bonus.

Stock Option Grants. The Compensation Committee uses long-term incentives, such as stock
option grants, to align the financial interests of our execultive officers with those of our company’s
shareholders, to provide that our executive officers have a continuing stake in our long-term
success, and to provide executive officers with an incentive to manage our company from the
perspective of an owner. We typically grant options with an exercise price equal to the closing
price of a share of our company’s common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market (formerly known
as the Nasdaq National Market) on the date of grant, so that the executives to whom they are
granted will only realize value if the trading price of our shares increase.

Historically, we have granted stock options subject to time-based vesting. In fiscal 2007, we
awarded some of our executive officers, as well as some of non-executive officers,
performance-based option awards that vest only if our company’s financial performance meets
certain specified criteria. Like option grants with a exercise price equal to the closing price of a
share of our common stock on the date of grant, these options will only be of value to those
awarded the options if our company meets the performance criteria specified in the option grants.
As it is increasingly common for stock option plans to include performance-based option awards,
we incorporated that component to trigger vesting of the option grants. The terms of the
performance-based options are described below under “Compensation of Our Named Executive
Officers — Stock Option Grants.”

No constant criteria or formula is used in determining the amount of a bonus or the number of
options to award to our executive officers or in determining the allocation of compensation among
salary, bonus and stock options grants. The Compensation Committee uses its discretion to make a
determination of the effectiveness of the executive and the extent of the executive’s contributions to
the Company’s success and, based on that determination, recommends to the full board the amount of
a bonus and/or the number of stock options to be awarded to executive officers. In determining the
bonus amounts for fiscal 2007, the Compensation Committee reviewed the practices of other
companies with similar businesses and of like size. In determining whether to make grants of options
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to our executive officers, the Compensation Committee will often review the history of prior grants
made to these individuals, the status of the vesting of prior grants and the amounts, if any, that have
been or may be realized by these individuals from the prior grants. The results of this review may also
be considered in recommending option awards.

We generally pay bonuses shortly after our fiscal year has ended, in conjunction with a review of
our company’s performance during that fiscal year. We do not have fixed dates on which we issue
options. Often, but not always, we grant options before or shortly after our fiscal year has ended, in
conjunction with a review of our company’s performance during that fiscal year and the determination
of bonus awards. We also often issue options to executive officers when they are hired or when they
assume a new position or take on greater responsibilities. We usually grant options outside of the
blackout peried established under our insider trading policy during which directors and executive
officers are forbidden to purchase or sell their shares of our common stock. We do not have a
program, plan or practice to coordinate option grants to our executives or any other recipients of
options with the release of material non-public information.

The Compensation Committee has not historically benchmarked or tied any element of
compensation to the performance by our company relative to a peer group or to a broader index, such
as the S&P 500 Index, and it did not do so in fiscal 2007.

In addition to the three main elements of compensation, we have traditionally paid for some
personal benefits and perquisites of our executive officers. The amounts of the personal benefits and
perquisites have traditionally been modest. While the personal benefits and perquisites that we award
confer a direct or indirect benefit, often of a personal nature, on our executive officers and are not
generally available to all employees, our Compensation Committee and board have determined that
there are sound business reasons for awarding them, such as the ability to attract and retain executive
officers. For example, as discussed below under the “Summary Compensation Table,” in fiscal 2007 we
provided a car allowance to each of our three named executive officers. Our Compensation
Committee believes that a car allowance for members of senior management is a fairly standard
reimbursement item for similarly-situated companies and is thus a necessary expense to attract and
retain executive officers.

Our executive officers also participate in benefit programs available to employees generally, such
as health insurance.

Process

Under Nasdagq rules, the compensation of our executive officers must be determined, or
recommended to the board for determination, by the Compensation Commitiee. As a general matter,
the Compensation Committee recommends, for full board consideration and approval, the
compensation of our executive officers, to the extent not set forth in an executive officer’s employment
agreement. The Compensation Committee seeks the input of our chairman and chief executive officer
in determining the compensation of executive officers other than the chief executive officer to
recommend to the full board. While the Compensation Committee also seeks input from the chief
executive officer on what he or she believes is an appropriate salary for himself or herself, the
Compensation Committee determines in its discretion, at a meeting of the committee at which no
members of management are present, the amount of chief executive officer compensation to
recommend to the full board.

The Compensation Committee was in session during each of the formal meetings of our
company’s board of directors during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007. The Compensation
Committee also held one formal meeting during that period, but did not act by unanimous
written consent during that period. At the meeting of the Compensation Committee held on
October 10, 2006, the Compensation Committee considered and recommended for approval by the
full board a proposed amended and restated employment agreement for Ms. Eames. Ms. Eames’
original employment agreement with our company, which was signed in September 2001, had been
amended in October 2004 and November 2005 to take into account her changed responsibilities. In
the fall of 2006, our company and Ms. Eames discussed the possibility of Ms. Eames returning to a
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more significant role in our business. The amendéd and restated employment agreement with

Ms. Eames that was discussed at the October 10, 2006 meeting of the Compensation Committee
increased Ms. Eames’ base salary from $120,000 per year to $250,000 per year and provided that she
would receive $5,000 for each trip of five business days or more that she makes to the United
Kingdom on company business (up to a maximum amount in any calendar year of $50,000).

Ms. Eames’ amended and restated employment agreement provides that (a) if we terminate her
employment during the term of the agreement, or (b} if, within six months of a “change in control”
(as defined in the amended and restated employment agreement) of our company, Ms. Eames or our
company terminates her employment, or (c) if Ms. Eames terminates her employment for “good
reason” (as defined in the amended and restated employment agreement), then (1) all stock options in
our company held by Ms. Eames will immediately vest, (2) Ms. Eames will be entitled to receive a
cash payment equal to 1.9 times her annual base salary during the twelve months preceding the
termination of employment or the change in control, and (3) we must provide Ms. Eames the benefits
to which she was entitled immediately prior to the date of termination for a period of twelve

(12) months following  the date of termination, except that if Ms. Eames becomes entitled to some or
all of such benefits during the twelve-month post-termination period, then the obligation to provide
her with those benefits will cease. However, pursuant to the provisions of Ms. Eames’ amended and
restated employment agreement, she is not entitled to the foregoing benefits if (a) we terminate her
employment for cause, death or disability or (b) the termination of her employment is the result of
the non-renewal of the employment agreement by either party. The amended and restated
employment agreement was based on Ms. Eames’ initial employment agreement with our company
that was executed in September 2001. At its October 10, 2006 meeting, the Compensation Committee
also discussed a proposal to grant 150,000 options to Ms. Eames as a further inducement to remain
with our company. The members of the Compensation Committee subsequently determined to
recommend to the board that Ms. Eames be awarded options to purchase 150,000 shares of our
common stock, vesting in 12 equal monthly installments. The amended and restated employment
agreement with Ms. Eames, as well as the award of options to purchase 150,000 shares of our common
stock, was subsequently approved by the full board.

During the meeting of the Compensation Committee’s that was held on October 10, 2006, no
individuals other than the members of the Compensation Committee and legal counsel were present.

During fiscal 2007, and for at least the two fiscal years prior thereto, neither the Compensation
Committee nor the board of directors retained a compensation consultant. To the knowledge of the
members of the Compensation Committee, no member of management retained a compensation
consultant on his or her behalf during that time.

Compensation of our Named Executive Officers

This section discusses the amount of each element of compensation paid to our named executive
officers in fiscal 2007

Base Salary. The base salaries during for fiscal 2007 for Timothy M. Aitken, who served as chief
executive officer of our company during fiscal 2007 until his resignation in July 2007 from all
positions with our company, Sarah L. Eames, who served as executive vice president of our
company during fiscal 2007 until July 2007, at which time she assumed the positions of deputy
chairman and interim chief executive officer, and David Moffatt, who served as chief financial
officer of our company during fiscal 2007, were approved by the full board, upon the
recommendation of the Compensation Committee. In the case of Mr. Aitken and Mr. Moffatt,
these individuals® base salaries in fiscal 2007 were the same as in fiscal 2006. In the case of
Ms. Eames, her base salary during fiscal 2007 was the amount set forth in her amended and
restated employment agreement executed in October 2006. She did not receive an increase in
salary in July 2007, when she assumed her new positions with our company.

Bonus. The Compensation Committee recommended to the board of directors that Ms. Eames
be paid a bonus of $250,000 in respect of our 2007 fiscal year and that Mr. Moffatt be paid a
bonus of £175,000 ($344,610) in respect of our 2007 fiscal year. In addition, the Compensation
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Committee recommended to the board that Mr. Moffatt be awarded a bonus of £75,000 on
January 1, 2009, provided that he is still employed by our company on that date. The full board
of directors approved the recommendations of the Compensation Committee.

In determining the bonuses to recommend, the Compensation Committee, in addition to
reviewing our financial performance during the year, took note of the fact that Ms. Eames and
Mr. Moffatt had performed their duties well, despite a number of difficult circumstances,
including the resignation of our former chief executive officer, the sale of our respiratory therapy
division and the negotiation of the Amended Senior Credit Facility with our banks and various
amendments thereto. The Compensation Committee also took note of the fact that Ms. Eames
had not received an increase in salary in July 2007, when she assumed her new positions with our
company.

The £75,000 bonus to be awarded to Mr. Moffatt on January 1, 2009, provided that he is still
employed by our company on that date, was not awarded in respect of our 2007 fiscal year.
Rather, it was meant to provide an incentive for Mr. Moffatt to remain with our company until
that date. In recommending this bonus, the Compensation Committee took note of the fact that
our employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt does not have a fixed term; rather, his employment
agreement provides that either party may terminate the agreement upon six months’ written
notice.

Stock Option Grants. During fiscal 2007, we granted the following options to purchase shares of
“our common stock under our 2002 Stock Option Plan to our named executive officers as
compensation in respect of our 2007 fiscal year, all of which have time-based vesting and, in the
case of Mr. Moffatt, are also subject to performance-based vesting: (1) 150,000 to Ms. Eames, and
(2) 160,000 to Mr. Moffatt, We did not grant any options to Mr. Aitken in respect of our 2007
fiscal year. The exercise price of Ms. Eames’ and Mr. Moffatt’s options is $1.92 per share (the
closing price of a share of our common stock on the date of grant). Each of the options has a
ten-year term, Ms. Eames’ options vested on a pro rata basis over a period of twelve months
beginning on November 16, 2006.

Mr. Moffatt’s options vest in accordance with the following schedule: if our earnings before
interest and taxes (“EBIT”) for fiscal 2007 exceeds EBIT for fiscal 2006 by 3.5%, then one-half of
the options shall vest on the date that our Annual Report on Form 10-K with respect to our 2007
fiscal year is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and if our EBIT for fiscal 2008
exceeds EBIT for fiscal 2007 by 6.5%, then the remaining one-half of the options will vest on the
date that our Annual Report on Form 10-K with respect to our 2008 fiscal year is filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Because EBIT for fiscal 2007 exceeded EBIT for fiscal
2006 by 3.5%, 50,000 of the options granted to Mr. Moffat will vest upon the filing of this Form
10-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In calculating EBIT, we used the operating
income (loss) amounts for the respective years from our consolidated statement of operations,

Personal Benefits and Perquisites. Our company has traditionally paid a relatively modest
amount to our named execultive officers by way of personal benefits and perquisites. For each of
our three named executive officers, we paid a car allowance in fiscal 2007 ($6,750 in the case of
Mr. Aitken, $7,800 in the case of Ms. Eames, and $17,723 in the case of Mr. Moffatt). We also
contributed $56,122 to Mr. Moffatt’s U.K.-based private pension fund. The contribution to

Mr. Moffatt’s private pension fund was made pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement.

Our executive officers also participate in benefit programs available to employees generally, such

as health insurance.

In July 2007, Mr. Aitken resigned from all positions with our company. In connection with his

resignation, Mr, Aitken and our company entered into a Settlement Agreement, dated June 26, 2007,
but executed by Mr. Aitken on July 2, 2007 (the “Settlement Agreement”), pursuant to which we
agreed pay to Mr. Aitken, subject to the terms and conditions of the Settlement Agreement, the
following severance payments:
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(i) $390,000 within two business days after our receipt of the Settlement Agreement executed by
Mr. Aitken; and

(i) $300,000 on the first business day after September 30, 2007; and
(iii) $200,000 on the first business day after December 31, 2007; and
(iv) $100,000 on the first business day after February 29, 2008.

" Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Mr. Aitken released our company from all claims that he
may have against us, including any claims for breach of his existing empioyment agreement, and we
released Mr. Aitken from all claims against Mr. Aitken of which we had actual knowledge.

The terms of the Settlement Agreement were reached after lengthy negotiations with Mr. Aitken.
The Settlement Agreement was negotiated by an ad hoc commiitee of non-executive directors
appointed for that purpose and approved by the full board.

Employment Agreements and Payments upon Termination or Change of Control

As discussed more fully below under “Employment Agreements; Potential Payments Upon
Termination or Change-in-Control,” we have entered into employment agreements with Sarah L.
Eames and David Moffatt. Prior to his resignation from all positions with our company in July 2007,
Timothy M. Aitken also had an employment agreement with our company. The decisions to enter into
employment agreements and the terms of those agreements were based on our company’s need to
attract and retain executives respensible for the long-term growth of our company.

Pursuant to our employment agreements with Ms. Eames, we have agreed to provide severance
compensation in the event of a termination other than for cause, death or disability or a termination
in the event of a change of control of our company. In addition, her stock options will generally vest
upon a change in control. In the case of Mr. Moffatt, we are required to pay him 12 months’ salary in
the event he is terminated due to an acquisition.

We have structured change in control severance compensation as “double trigger” benefits. In
other words, the change of control does not itself trigger benefits; rather, benefits are paid only if the
employment of the executive is terminated during a specified period after a change of control. We
believe a “double trigger” benefit maximizes shareholder value because it prevents an unintended
windfall to executives in the event of a friendly change of control, while still providing appropriate
incentives to cooperate in negotiating any change of control. As to acceleration of option awards upon
a change of control, we believe that vesting acceleration upon a change of control is consistent with
current market practice. In all, the severance benefits were designed to provide our executive officers
with a certain measure of job security and protection against termination without cause and
termination or loss of employment through no fault of their own.

Information regarding our change of control arrangements with Ms. Eames and Mr. Moffatt is set
forth below under “Employment Agreements; Potential Payments Upon Termination or
Change-in-Control.”

Tax and Accounting Implications of Executive Compensation

Tax and accounting issues are considered by the Compensation Committee in setting
compensation policies.

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code denies a deduction to any publicly-held corporation
for compensation paid to certain covered employees in a taxable year to the extent that compensation
exceeds $1,000,000 for the covered employee. Under Section 162{m), certain performance-based
compensation that has been approved by our shareholders is not subject to this limitation. As a result
of this exclusion, stock options granted under our 2002-Stock Option Plan are not subject to the
limitations of Section 162(m). However, since we retain discretion over cash bonuses, those bonuses
do not qualify for the exemption for performance-based compensation. Since none of our executive
officers had compensation in excess of $1,000,000 that was subject to Section 162(m) limitations in
2007, Section 162(m) was not applicable.
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We make decisions about the grant of stock options based partly on the accounting treatment
they receive under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Shared-Based Payment
(“FAS 123R™). FAS 123R requires companies to recognize in their income statement the grant-date
fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. The effect of
FAS 123R is to reduce our reported profits by the cost of our stock option grants. See Note 10 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2007 for a
discussion of the assumptions made in determining the grant- date fair value and compensation
expense of equity awards.

While the Compensation Committee attempts to recommend compensation for executives that
produces favorablé tax and accounting treatment for our company, its main objective is to develop fair
and equitable compensation arrangements that attract, motivate and retain talented executives.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

While we have not adopted equity or other security ownership requirements or guidelines that
specify any minimum amounts of ownership for our directors or our executive officers, we encourage
our officers and directors to maintain at least some equity in our company and to align their interests
with those of our stockholders. We have adopted policies that restrict the circumstances in which
executives may “hedge” the economic risk of common stock ownership. Our insider trading policy
prohibits both short sales (i.e., selling stock that is not owned and borrowing shares to make delivery)
and the buying or selling of puts, call or other derivatives in respect of securities of our company,
other than long-term hedging transactions that are designed to protect an individual’s investment in
our company and that are pre-cleared in accordance with the procedures set forth in our insider
trading policy. In order to meet the criteria that a long-term hedging transaction be designed to
protect an individual’s investment in our company, our insider trading policy requires that any hedge
must be for at least one year and relate to stock or options held by the individual.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee of the board of directors has reviewed and discussed the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis set forth above with management and, based on such review
and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the board of directors that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Compensation Committee

Sophia Corona
G. Richard Green
Jeffrey S. Peris
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Executive Compensation

Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2007

The following table summarizes all compensation earned by or paid to our named executive

officers in fiscal 2007.

Option All Other
Fiscal Salary Bonus Awards Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position(s) Year ) $) [T $) )
Timothy M. Aitken, Chairman of the

Board and Chief Executive Officer'. .. 2007  $450,833 NA NA  $1,036,8859 $1487718
Sarah L. Eames, Deputy Chairman and

Interim Chief Executive Officer™ . . . .. 2007 $300,577 $250,000 $147.045 § 7800 § 705422
David Moffatt, Chief Financial Officer ... 2007 $374,148 $344,6109 $ 50,770 § 73,8457 § 843373
(1) Mr. Aitken resigned from all positions with our company in July 2007. .

@)

()

4

)

(6)
)

Ms. Eames assumed the positions of deputy chairman and interim chief executive officer of our company in
July 2007. Prior to that date, during fiscal 2007 she had served as executive vice president of our company.

Does not include a bonus of £75,000 to be awarded to Mr. Moffatt on January 1, 2009, provided that he is
still employed by our company on that date.

The amounts in this column show the amount of compensation cost recognized for financial statement
reporting purposes. They do not reflect compensation actually received by the named executive officers. The
amounts shown in this column have been calculated in accordance with FAS 123R under the modified
prospective transition method. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our fiscal year
ended September 30, 2007 for a discussion of the assumptions made in determining the grant-date fair value
and compensation expense of equity awards. The actual value, if any, that an executive officer will realize
upon the exercise of the stock options issued to him or her will be equal to the excess of the trading price of
shares of our common stock on the date that the shares underlying the options are sold over the exercise
price of the options, less any transaction costs,

Represents (a) total severance payments of $990,000 due to Mr. Aitken pursuant to the Settlement
Agreement (of which $390,000 was paid in fiscal 2007 and $600,000 will be paid in fiscal 2008}, (b) an
aggregate of §15,925 in company expenses incurred in fiscal 2007 and to be incurred in fiscal 2008 in payment
of post-termination benefits payable for the benefit of Mr. Aitken (mainly health insurance premiums)
pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, (c) legal fees of $14,638 paid on behalf of Mr. Aitken pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, (d) moving costs of $9,572 paid on behalf of Mr. Aitken, and (e) payment for a car
allowance of $6,750.

Represents payment for a car allowance.

Represents payment for a car allowance of $17,723 and payments of $56,122 towards Mr. Moffatt’s UK. -
based private pension fund.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal 2007

The following table summarizes the options that our company granted to our named executive
officers during fiscal 2007. All options listed in the table were granted under our 2002 Stock Option
Plan.

All Other

Estimated Future Payouts Option Awards: Exercise Grant
under Equity Number of or Base  Date Fair
Incentive Plan Awards Securities Price of Value of
Underlying Option  Stock and

Grant Threshold  Target  Maximum Options Awards Option
Name Date ) (#) (#) ) (%/Sh) Awards™
Sarah L. Eames.......... 10/16/06 NA 150,000 NA 150,000 $1.92  $147,045
David Moffatt ........... 10/16/06 0% 100,000 100,000 100,000 $1.92  $112,230

(1) Ms. Eames’ options vested on a pro rata basis over a period of twelve months beginning on
November 16, 2006.

(2) The terms of Mr. Moffatt’s oplions provided that one-half (50,000) will vest if our company’s EBIT for fiscal
2007 exceeds EBIT for fiscal 2006 by 3.5% and one-half {50,000) will vest if our company’s EBIT for fiscal
2008 exceeds EBIT for fiscal 2007 by 6.5%. The options subject to vesting if our EBIT for 2007 exceeds
EBIT for fiscal 2006 by 3.5% and will vest upon the date of the filing of this Form 10-K with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

(3) The amounts shown in this column represent the full grant date value of each equity award computed in
accordance with FAS 123R. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our fiscal year
ended September 30, 2007 for a discussion of the assumptions made in determining the grant-date fair value
and compensation expense of equity awards. The actual value, if any, that an executive officer will realize
upon the exercise of the stock options issued to him or her wiil be equal to the excess of the trading price of
shares of our common stock on the date that the shares underlying the options are sold over the exercise
price of the options, less any (ransaction costs.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2007 Year End

The following table summarizes the outstanding options held by our named executive officers at

September 30, 2007,

Option Awards

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of Number of Number of
Securities Secuwrities Securities
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option
Opftions Options Unearned Exercise Option
# (#) Options Price Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable (#) ($) Date
Timothy M. Aitken . . ............. 300,000 — — $1.72 7212009
90,000 5.65 10/2/2007%
350,000 5.70 10/2/2007%
294 280 4.00 10/2/2007®
24,000 4.00 107212007
60,000 4.70 107212007
Sarah L. Eames .................. 137,500 12,500 — $1.92 10/16/2016
300,000 5.70 12/2/2013
160,000 4.00 9/25/2013
24.000 4.00 6/3/2103
60,000 470 117132012
David Moffatt. ................... 100,000 $1.92  10/16/2016
50,000 100,000 2.71 7/31/2016

(1) The terms of these options provided that one-half will vest if our company’s EBIT for fiscal 2007 exceeds
EBIT for fiscal 2006 by 3.5% and one-half will vest if our company’s EBIT for fiscal 2008 exceeds EBIT for
fiscal 2007 by 6.5%. The options subject to vesting if our EBIT for 2007 exceeds EBIT for fiscat 2006 by 3.5%

will vest upon the filing of this Form 10-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
()
3

By their terms, these options expire two years after termination of employment.

By their terms, these options expire three months after termination of employment.

Employment Agreemznts; Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

In September 2001 we entered into an employment agreement with Ms. Eames, which was
modified in November 2004 and September 2005 and amended and restated in October 2006. Pursuant
to her amended and restated employment agreement, Ms. Eames agreed to continue to serve as
executive vice president of our company for a period of 18 months. The amended and restated
employment agreement provides for automatic renewal for successive periods of one year each unless
terminated by either party on 90 days’ notice. Pursuant to her amended and restated employment
agreement, Ms. Eames’ base salary is $250,000 per annum. In addition, she is entitled to receive
$5,000 for each trip of five business days or more that she makes to the United Kingdom on Company
business, up to a maximum amount of $50,000 in any calendar year.

Ms. Eames’ amended and restated employment agreement provides that (a) if we terminate her
employment during the term of the agreement, or (b) if, within six months of a “change in control”
(as defined in the amended and restated employment agreement) of our company, Ms, Eames or our
company terminates her employment, or (c) if Ms. Eames terminates her employment for “good
reason” (as defined in the amended and restated employment agreement), then (1) all stock options in
our company held by Ms. Eames will immediately vest, (2) Ms. Eames will be entitled to receive a
cash payment equal to 1.9 times her annual base salary during the twelve months preceding the
termination of employment or the change in control, and (3) we must provide Ms. Eames the benefits
to which she was entitled immediately prior to the date of termination for a period of twelve (12)
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months following the date of termination, except that if Ms. Eames becomes entitled to some or all of
such benefits during the twelve-month post-termination period, then the obligation to provide her with
those benefits will cease. However, pursuant to the provisions of Ms. Eames’ amended and restated
employment agreement, she is not entitled to the foregoing benefits if (a) we terminate her
employment for cause, death or disability or (b) the termination of her employment is the resuit of
the non-renewal of the employment agreement by either party.

Ms. Eames’ employment agreement was not further amended upon her becoming the interim
chief executive officer of our company in July 2007.

In a Deed of Restrictive Covenants entered into in 1999 with one of our U.K. subsidiaries,
Ms. Eames agreed not to compete with us or our subsidiaries for twelve months following termination
of employment without our prior written consent

The following table illustrates the benefits that Ms. Eames would have been entitled to receive
pursuant to her amended and restated employment agreement, assuming that (i) our company
terminated her employment on September 30, 2007 other than for cause, death or disability or as a
result of the non-renewal of the employment agreement, or (ii) she had terminated her employment,
other than for cause, death or disability or as a result of the non-renewal of the employment
agreement, on September 30, 2007 and her termination was within six months of a change in control
of our company:

Severance payment........................ $457,0061
Health benefits .......ooovvnrienninnnans 24,043@
Total: o voeene e e $481,139

(1) Represents a single payment due within 60 days of termination.
(2) Represents payments made over 12 months.

In July 2006 we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt. Our employment
agreement with Mr. Moffatt provides that, during the first six months thereof, either party may
terminate the agreement upon one month’s written notice and, thereafter, either party may terminate
the agreement upon six month’s written notice. Our employment with Mr. Moffatt further provides
that Mr. Moffatt will not compete against us for a period of six months following the termination of
his employment with us. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Moffatt currently receives a
salary of £0.2 million (approximately $0.4 million). In addition, pursuant to his employment agreement
with us, Mr. Moffatt receives a car allowance and we make a payment equal to 15% of his annual
salary towards his U.K.-based private pension fund. In addition, under our employment agreement
with Mr. Moffatt, we are required to pay him 12 months’ salary in the event he is terminated due to
an acquisition, In the event that Mr. Moffatt’s employment had been terminated on September 20,
2007 due an acquisition, we would have been required to pay him $0.4 million over twelve months,
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Director Compensation

The following table summarizes the compensation paid to our directors during fiscal 2007.

Director Compensation Table for Fiscal 2007

(1)

2

3)
(4)
(5)

(6)

7

Fees Eamed
or Paid in Option

Cash Awards Total
Name™? %) [ M %
Sophia Corona™. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ..... $19,792 $16,905 $36,697
G.Richard Green. . ..............cc0vvirrnrn.. $16,250 $35,484 $51,734
Mark Hanley“" ................................ $ 8,125 $ 2,435 $10,560
Wayne Palladino. . ........... ... ... ... $27,500 $35,484 $62,984
Jeffrey S. Peris . ..........cooii i, $42,500 $35,484 $77,984
Scott A. Shay® ... ... ... ... ... $ 7,500 — $ 7,500
Ann Thornburg® .. ............................ $35,625 $16,905 $52,530
Mark TompKins. . . ..., $33,750 $38,043 $71,793

Timothy M. Aitken, who served as Chairman of the Board of our company until July 2007, and Sarah L.
Eames, who served as a director of our company during all of fiscal 2007, are not included in this table
because they are or were employees of our company who received no additional compensation for services as
a director, The compensation received by Mr. Aitken and Ms. Eames as employees of our company is
reflected in the Surnmary Compensation Table.

Except as otherwise indicated, each individual named below served as a director our company for all of fiscal
2007.

Each of Ms. Corona and Ms, Thornburg has been a director of our company since November 2006,
Mr. Hanley resigned as a director of our company in April 2007.

MTr. Shay resigned as a director of our company in August 2007. His fees for serving as a director of our
company were paid to Hyperion Advisors II L.P., an affiliate of Mr. Shay.

The amounts in this column show the amount of compensation cost recognized for financial statement
reporting purposes. They do not reflect compensation actually received by the named directors. The amounts
shown in this column have been calculated in accordance with FAS 123R under the modified prospective
transition method. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 for a discussion of the assumptions made in determining the grant-date fair value and
compensation expense of equity awards. The actual value, if any, that a director will realize upon the
exercise of the stock options issued to him or her will be equal to the excess of the trading price of shares of
our common stock on the date that the shares underlying the options are sold over the exercise price of the
options, less any transaction costs.

As of September 30, 2007, each director listed in the table above had the following option awards
outstanding set forth opposite his or her name below:

s Sophia Corona: 50,000

*  G. Richard Green: 67,000
* Mark Hanley: 0

s  Wayne Palladino: 71,000
s Jeffrey S. Peris: 74,000

* Scott Shay: {

* Ann Thornburg: 50,000

¢ Mark Tompkins: 65,000
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Director Compensation — General

We use a combination of cash and stock option grants to attract and retain qualified candidates to -
serve on our board of directors. In setting director compensation, our board considers the amount of
time that directors expend in fulfilling their duties, as well as the expertise that the board members
bring to our company.

Cash Compensation

We do not pay directors who are employees of our company additional compensation for their
services as a director. Effective July 2007, we implemented the following compensation program for
our directors, other than for directors who are employees of our company:

* each non-employee director is entitled to an annual retainer of $30,000 per year;

* each member of our Audit Committee and each member of our Compensation Committee
{(other than the chairpersons) is entitled to an additional $5,000 per year for service on those
committees;

e the chairperson of the Audit Committee is entitled to receive $50,000 per year (which amount
includes the $30,000 annual retainer for directors);

* the chairperson of the Compensation Committee is entitled to receive $40,000 per year
{which amount includes the $30,000 annual retainer for directors); and

e the non-executive Chairman of the Board is entitled to receive $100,000 per year (which
amount includes the $30,000 annual retainer for directors).

Prior to the adoption of the compensation program for directors in July 2007, we paid our
directors an annual retainer of $10,000 per year. In addition, the following directors were entitled to
the payments indicated:

e Ms. Corona ~ an additional $5,000 per year for serving on our Audit Committee and
$5,000 per year for serving on our Compensation Committee;

e Mr Hanley - an additional $5,000 per year for serving on our Compensation Committee;
s Mr. Palladino - an additional $15,000 per year for serving on our Audit Committee;

e Dr. Peris — an additional $5,000 per year for serving on our Audit Committee and an
additional $5,000 per year for serving on our Compensation Committee; and

e Ms. Thornburg — an additional $30,000 per vear for serving as chairperson of our Audit
Committee.

We make payments to our directors of the amounts to which they are entitled on a quarterly
basis.

Equity-Based Compensation

Prior to the adoption of the compensation program for directors in July 2007, we had traditionally
granted stock options to directors upon their becoming members of the beard of directors and
periodically thereafter, but on an irregular basis. As part of the compensation program for directors
adopted in July 2007, and in order to ensure that directors have an ownership interest aligned with
our shareholders, our board granted to each non-employee director options to purchase 50,000 shares
of our common stock at a price of $2.24 per share. Mr. Shay declined to accept the options because he
resigned from the board shortly after they were granted. ’

Our board anticipates that it will review board compensation annually in conjunction with the
board’s review of executive officer salaries and benefits.

- Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
The Compensation Committee consists of Sophia Corona, G. Richard Green and Jeffrey §. Peris.

Dr. Peris serves as chairman of the Compensation Committee. Messrs. Green and Peris served on our
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Compensation Committee throughout fiscal 2007, Ms. Corona was appointed to the Compensation
Committee in June 2007. From December 2005 until his resignation as a director of our company in
April 2007, Mark Hanley served on our Compensation Committee. Except for Mr. Hanley, who served
from 1995 to 1997 as an executive director/director of business development of Transworld Healthcare
{(UK) Limited, a subsidiary of our company now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited, none
of Ms. Corona or Messrs. Green, Hanley or Peris has ever served as an officer or employee of our
company or any of our subsidiaries, nor has any such individual had a business relationship with our
company or any of our subsidiaries during fiscal 2007 that requires disclosure under the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth the number of shares of commeon stock, and the percentage of
shares of common stock, beneficially owned as of December 3, 2007 (except as noted in the footnotes
below) by (1) each director of our company, (2) each current named executive officer, (3) all persons
known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares of common stock,
and (4) all current directors and named executive officers of our company as a group (8 persons). The
information as to the number of shares of our common stock beneficially owned by the individuals
and entities listed below was derived from reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
by such persons and company records. Except as set forth below, the address of each of the following
holders of shares of our common stock is c/o Allied Healthcare International Inc., 245 Park Avenue,
New York, New York 10167,

Number of
Shares of Percentage of
Common Stock  Common Stock
Beneficially Beneficially
Name Owned Owned"
Sarah L. Barmes . .. ..o vvueen e iniananaainnnn 1,171,218% 2.6%
David Moffatt .........oovveeiiienniiniinnns 100,000 *
Sophia COrona. .. ....vvuirrrerereeieienaeannns 12,500 *
G.Richard Green...........coviviiniiiinnnnn... 108,354® *
Wayne Palladino . ... i, 35,664 *
Jeffrey 8. PeriS. . v\ ov et it 34,5000 *
Mark TompKins - ...\ vver oo 22,500 *
Ann ThotRbUTg . ..o 12,500 *
Washington & Congress Capital Partners, LP. ..., ... 7,697,578 171%
Rutabaga Capital Management LLC................ 4,01522149 8.9%
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP.................... 3,321,425 7.4%
All current executive officers and directors as a group
(BPEISONS) ..o\ it eeeei et 1,497,2362 3.3%
* Less than 1%.

(n As of December 3, 2007, there were 44,986,229 shares of our common stock outstanding, The percentage
given for each shareholder assumes that such sharcholder has exercised the options held by such
shareholder that are exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007, but that no other shareholders have
exercised the options held by them.

(2) Consists of 473,218 shares of common stock held by Ms. Eames, 4,000 shares of common stock held
jointly by Ms. Eames and her husband and 694,000 shares subject to options held by Ms. Eames that are
exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007.

(3) Consists of 100,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Moffatt that are exercisable within 60 days of
December 3, 2007. Does not include 150,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Moffatt that are not
exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007.
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(4)

()

(6)

™)

®

)

(10)

(1)

(12)

Consists of 12,500 shares subject to options held by such individual that are exercisable within 60 days of
December 3, 2007. Does not include 37,500 shares subject to options held by such individual that are not
exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007.

Consists of 3,000 shares of common stock held by Mr. Green, 57,995 shares of common stock held jointly
by Mr. Green and his wife, 19,259 shares of common stock held by Orion Nominees Limited, an affiliate
of Mr. Green, 25,500 shares subject to options held by Mr. Green that are exercisable within 60 days of
December 3, 2007 and 2,600 shares owned of record by Mr. Green’s wife, as to which Mr. Green disclaims
beneficial ownership. Mr. Green shares voting and dispositive power over the shares of our common stock
held by Orion Nominees Limited with his wife. Does not include an additional 41,500 shares subject to
options held by Mr. Green that are not exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007.

Consists of 6,164 shares of common stock held by Mr. Paltadino and 29,500 shares subject to options that
are exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007. Does not include an additional 41,500 shares subject
to options held by Mr. Palladino that are not exercisable within 60 days of December 8, 2007.

Consists of 2,000 shares of common stock held by Dr. Peris and 32,500 shares subject to options held by
Dr. Peris that are exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007. Does not include an additional 41,500
shares subject to options held by Dr. Peris that are not exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007.

Consists of 22,500 shares subject to options held by Mr. Tompkins that are exercisable within 60 days of
December 3, 2007. Does not include 42,500 shares subject to options held by Mr. Tompkins that are not
exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007,

Excludes 93,492 shares of common stock held by Triumph III Investors, L.P. Washington & Congress
Capital Partners, L.P. may be deemed to be a member of a group that includes Triumph I1I Investors,
L.P. The address of Washington & Congress Capital Partners, L.P. is 265 Franklin Street, 20th Floor,

Boston, Massachusetts 02110.

The number of shares owned is given as of September 30, 2007 and is based on the Form 13F filed by
Rutabaga Capital Management LLC (“*Rutabaga”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 8, 2007. According to the Form 13F, Rutabaga had sole voting power with respect to all of
such shares. Rutabaga’s address is 64 Broad Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02109.

The number of shares owned is given as of September 30, 2007 and is based on the Form 13F filed by
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP (“Dimensional”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 25, 2007. According to the Form 13F, Dimensional had sole voting power with respect to
3,256,310 of such shares and no voting power with respect to 65,115 of such shares. Dimensional’s address
is 1299 Qcean Avenue, Santa Monica, California 90401.

Includes an aggregate of 929,000 shares subject to options held by our executive officers and directors that
are exercisable within 60 days of December 3, 2007 and 2,600 shares owned of record by Mr. Green’s
wife, as to which Mr. Green disclaims beneficial ownership.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain information as of September 30, 2007 regarding
compensation plans under which equity securities of our company are authorized for issuance:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
. ! Future Issuance Under
Number of Securities to Weighted-Average Equity Compensation

be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
of Outstanding Options,  Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Column (a))
Plan Category {n) (b (c}
Equity compensation plans approved
by shareholders.................. 2,976,614 $3.64 1,556,620
Equity compensation plans not ,
approved by shareholders......... 485,000 $4.83 —
Total ... 3,461,614 $3.81 1,556,620

The securities covered by the equity compensation plan that has not been approved by our
shareholders consist of warrants that were issued to two third parties. The warrants were issued as
partial compensation for the agreement by such third parties to provide consulting services related to
corporate finance and investment banking matters. One set of warrants, which were issued in
August 2003, expire in August 2008 and are exercisable at prices ranging from $4.75 to $6.00 per
share. The second set of warrants, which were issued in April 2007, expire in October 2008 and are
exercisable at prices ranging from $3.00 to $3.75 per share.

Itern 13,  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Related Party Transactions

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that our company shall indemnify our
directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by New York law. In addition, we have entered
into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. Neither our
certificate of incorporation, our bylaws nor our indemnification agreements place a cap on our
maximum indemnification obligations; however, our directors’ and officers’ liability insurance may
enable us to recover some or all of the amounts, if any, that we pay by way of indemnification to our
directors and executive officers.

Other than as described in the previous paragraph and other than the compensation and
severance arrangements with our named executive officers and the director compensation
arrangements described in “Item 11 — Executive Compensation,” we are not a participant in any
transaction involving more than $120,000 in which any shareholder holding more than 5% of our
outstanding common stock, any of our executive officers or directors or their immediate family
members, or any other “related person” (as such term is defined in the rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission) has or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

Review of Related Party Transactions

Our Code of Conduct (a copy of which is filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K) prohibits, among other things, our directors, officers and err‘fployees from, directly or
indirectly, engaging or participating in any transaction involving, or raising questions of, a possible
conflict between the interests of our company and the personal interests of the employee or his or her
family.

Under its charter, the Audit Committee has the responsibility of reviewing related party
transactions (other than executive and director compensation) between our company and our offices,
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directors, key employees and any of their affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in some cases
(such as the ratification of the severance arrangement with Timothy M. Aitken described in *Item 11
— Executive Compensation — Compensation of Our Named Executive Officers”), the full board
approves the related party transaction. In addition, as a general matter, the Compensation Committee
recommends, for full board consideration and approval, the compensation of our executive officers, to
the extent not set forth in an executive officer’s employment agreement.

-

The Audit Committee considers whether to ratify or approve a related party transaction on a
case-by-case basis, rather than pursuant to a written policy. To date, there have been no instances in
which the Audit Committee has been called upon to review a related party transaction. In reviewing
any related party transaction, it is expected that the Audit Committee will examine the terms of the
transaction to determine how close they are to terms that would be likely to be found in a similar
arms’-length transaction and whether they are fair and reasonable to our company. If the related party
transaction involves a non-employee director, the Audit Committee may also consider whether the
transaction would compromise the director’s independence.

Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that Sophia Corona, G. Richard Green, Wayne Palladino,
Jeffery A. Peris, Ann Thornburg and Mark Tompkins are “independent directors,” as such term is
defined in the rules of the Nasdag Stock Market. In addition, our board of directors determined that
Mark Hanley, who served on our board of directors, from November 2005 until April 2007, was an
“independent director” under such rules, The only current member of our board of directors who is
not independent is Sarah Eames, who serves an executive officer of our company. In addition,
Timothy M. Aitken, who resigned from all positions with our company in July 2007, was not an
independent director of our company because of his position as an executive officer of our company
and Scott Shay, who resigned as a director of our company in August 2007, was not an independent
director of our company because of his control of entities that collectively owned more than 10% of
our outstanding shares of common stock.

All of the members of our Audit Committee and all of the members of our Compensation
Committee are “independent directors,” as such term is defined in the rules of the Nasdaq Stock
Market. The members of our Audit Committee also satisfy the requirements for independence
imposed upon audit committee members by Rule 10A-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Nasdaq rules for independent directors provide, among other things, that a director cannot
be considered independent if he or she has been employed by the issuer in the past three years. In
considering whether Mr. Palladino qualified as an “independent director” under the Nasdaq rules, our
board of directors considered the fact that he served from February 1991 until August 2000 as an
officer of our company in various positions (including chief financial officer).

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Audit and Other Fees During Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2007

The following table sets forth the fees we were billed in respect of our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2007 for various audit and other services. Our auditors in
respect of those fiscal years was Eisner LLP.

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2007
Auditfees . ... . e $1,942,746 $1,388.932
Audit-related fees. .. ... it e — —
Taxfees ... e e — —

Allotherfees ....... . i, — —
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Audit fees include the fees for auditing our annual financial statements and reviewing the
financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, as well auditing the internal
controls over financial reporting required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Audit
fees also include fees for services that were provided in connection with regulatory filings and consents
related to filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. During fiscal 2006, we were billed for
audit fees from Eisner LLP, KPMG Audit Plc and Deloitte & Touche LLP

Pre-Approval Policy

The charter of the Audit Comrmittee was revised and restated by the board of directors on
May 4, 2007. The revised charter of the Audit Committee, as did the previous charter, provides that
the Audit Committee shall pre-approve all auditing and permitted non-audit services (including
the fees and terms thereof} to be performed for us by our independent auditor, subject to the
de minimus exception (the “de minimus exception™) for non-audit services that are permitted by
Section 10A(i)(1)(B) the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that are approved by the Audit
Committee prior to the completion of the audit. Pursuant to its charter, the Audit Committee may
form and delegale authority to subcommittees consisting of one or more members when appropriate,
including the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permitted non-audit services, provided that
a decision of such a subcommittee to grant pre-approvals shall be presented to the full Audit
Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

We did not incur audit-related fees, tax fees or other fees during fiscal 2006 or fiscal 2007,
Accordingly, no such fees were approved by the Audit Committee after the fact in reliance upon the
de minimus exception.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(1)

@)

)

The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Page

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.................ooo0ae, F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm........................... F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets — September 30,2007 and 2006 ...................... ... F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations — for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006

AN 2005 ..ot e e F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity - for the years ended

September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 . ... ... .. ... F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — for the years ended September 20, 2007, 2006

ANA 2005 .o e e et F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ......covitiiitiiin it it iarerenans F-8
Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule I — Condensed Financial Information...........ccoevtiiinininerrrrernnera- S-1
Schedule IT - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. . ..............ooiiiiiiiiie §-5
Schedules other than those listed above are omitted because they are not required or are

not applicable or the information is shown in the audited consolidated financial

statements or related notes. )
Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number Title

2.10@ Agreement, dated September 30, 2007, among Air Liquide Limited, Omnicare Limited,

Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited and Air Liquide UK Limited.

31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of United States Home Health Care Corp. (now
known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the Department of State of the
State of New York on December 12, 1990, as amended on August 7, 1992 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 30, 1997).

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld
Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with
the Department of State of the State of New York on June 28, 1995 (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 30, 1997).
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Exhibit
Number

Title

33

34

35

36

3.7

38

39

3.10

3,114

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld
Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with
the Department of State of the State of New York on October 9, 1996 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 30, 1997}.

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld
Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with
the Department of State of the State of New York on May 6, 1997 (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 30, 1997).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld Healthcare,
Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the Department of
State of the State of New York on April 16, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 of our Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. St. No, 333-87304) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2002).

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld Healthcare,
Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the Department of
State of the State of New York on June 7, 2002 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission or June 10, 2002).

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied Healthcare
International Inc. which defines the rights of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on June 26, 2002
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 9, 2002).

Certificate of Amendment to the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied
Healthcare International Inc. that defines the rights of the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on .
February 12, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 of our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied Healthcare
International Inc. that eliminates all references to the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock, filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on July 20, 2004
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 9 of our Form 8-A/A filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 21, 2004).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Aliied Healthcare
International Inc. filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on
September 10, 2004 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 15, 2004).

Certificate of Change of Allied Healthcare international Inc. filed with the Department
of State of the State of New York on April 26, 2007.
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Exhibit
Number

Title

312

313

4.1

10.1

10.2

103A

10.3B

10.3C

10.3D

10.4

10.5

Restated Bylaws of Transworld Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare
International Inc.) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Qctober 31, 1996).

Amendment to the Bylaws of Allied Healthcare International Inc. effective June 7, 2002
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 10, 2002).

Specimen Certificate of Common Stock (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1
of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on June 10, 2002).

Transworld Home HealthCare, Inc. 1992 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1998).

Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers and directors (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.31 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
October 31, 1994).

Employment Agreement, dated September 24, 2001, between Transworld Healthcare,
Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) and Sarah Eames
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001).

Amendment No. 1, dated November 17, 2004, to the Employment Agreement , dated

September 24, 2001, between Allied Healthcare International Inc. and Sarah L. Eames
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 17, 2004).

Amendment No. 2, dated September 28, 20053, to the Employment Agreement, dated
September 24, 2001, between Allied Healthcare International Inc. and Sarah L. Eames
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7D of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended September 20, 2003).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated October 16, 2006, between
Allied Healthcare International Inc. and Sarah Eames (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.4E of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 30, 2002, among Transworld Healthcare,
Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.), Triumph Partners III, L.P. and
Triumph III Investors, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of our
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. St. No. 333-87304) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2002).

2002 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Annex D to the proxy
statement/prospectus forming a part of Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement
on Form $-4 (Reg. 5t. No. 333-87304) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 21, 2002).




Exhibit
Number

Tille

10.6

10.7A

10.7B

10.7C

10.7D

10.7E

10.8

10.9A

Agreement, dated February 17, 2004, among Allied Healthcare (UK) Limited and Atos
KPMG Consulting Limited (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004).

Facility Agreement, dated July 19, 2004, among Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now
known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Allied Healthcare International
Inc.,, Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited, the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare
International Inc. named therein as guarantors, Barclays Capital and Lloyds TSB Bank
plc, as arrangers, and the other banks named therein (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

June 30, 2004).

Amendment Letter, dated July 28, 2006, between Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited,
Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited, Allied Healthcare International Inc., the
subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International named therein as guarantors, Barclays
Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank plc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19
of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006).

Second Amendment Letter, dated September 11, 2006 (effective September 13, 2006),
among Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited, Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited,
Allied Healthcare International Inc., the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International
Inc. identified therein, Barclays Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank plc (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on September 18, 2006).

Third Amendment Letter, dated October 17, 2006, among Allied Healthcare Holdings
Limited, Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited, Allied Healthcare International
Inc., the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International Inc. identified therein, Barclays
Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank plc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21
of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on Qctaber 20, 2006).

Fourth Amendment Letter, dated November 10, 2006, among Allied Healthcare
Holdings Limited, Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited, Allied Healthcare
International Inc., the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International Inc. identified
therein, Barclays Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank plc (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.22 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 14, 2006).

Employment Agreement, dated July 31, 2006, between Allied Healthcare Group Limited
and David Moffatt (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006).

Facility Agreement, dated July 19, 2004, as amended and restated on

December 12, 2006, among Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited, Allied
Healthcare International Inc., the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International Inc.
named therein, Barclays Capital and Lloyds TSB Bank plc, as arrangers, and the other
banks named therein (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006).
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Exhibit
Number

Title

10.98

10.9C

10.10

10.11

10.12A

10.12B

10.12C

10.12D

10.13

11

Amendment Letter, dated January 30, 2007, among Allied Healthcare Group Holdings
Limited, Allied Healthcare International Inc., the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare
International Inc. identified therein, Barclays Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank plc
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 1, 2007).

Amendment Letter, dated August 6, 2007, among Allied Healthcare Group Holdings
Limited, Allied Healthcare International Inc., the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare
International Inc. identified therein, Barclays Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank PLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2007).

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated December 12, 2006, between Allied Healthcare
International Inc. and Barclays Bank PLC, as security agent (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006).

Intellectual Property Security Agreement, dated December 12, 2006, between Allied
Healthcare International Inc. and Barclays Bank PLC, as security agent (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006). '

Sales Ledger Financing Agreement, dated December 12, 2006, between Allied
Healthcare Group Limited and Barclays Bank PLC (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
December 31, 2008).

Sales Ledger Financing Agreement, dated December 12, 2006, between Allied Staffing
Professionals Limited and Barclays Bank PLC (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

December 31, 2006).

Sales Ledger Financing Terms and Conditions Agreement between Allied Healthcare
Group Limited and Barclays Bank PLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2006).

Sales Ledger Financing Terms and Conditions Agreement between Allied Staffing
Professionals Limited and Barclays Bank PLC (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
December 31, 2006).

Settlement Agreement, dated June 26, 2007, between Allied Healthcare International
Inc. and Timothy M. Aitken (but executed by Mr. Aitken on July 2, 2007), including the
UK. Compromise Agreement, dated June 26, 2007, between Allied Healthcare
International Inc. and Timothy M. Aitken attached thereto (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on July 6, 2007).

Statement re: computation of earnings per share (computation can be determined clearly
from the material contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K}.
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Exhibit
Number

Title

14

21

23.19
23.20

31.1®
3120
32.1®
32.20

99.1

(1) Filed herewith.

(2) Schedules and similar attachments to this agreement have been omitted pursuant to
Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The registrant will furnish supplementally a copy of any
omitted schedule or similar attachment to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon its
request.

Allied Healthcare International Inc. Code of Conduct (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 14 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003).

Subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International Inc.

Consent of Eisner LLP, independent registered public accounting firm of Allied
Healthcare International Inc.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm of
Allied Healthcare International Inc. ’

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Interim Chief Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Interim Chief Executive Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

AIM Schedule 1—Pre-Admission Announcement filed by Allied Healthcare
International Inc. with the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock

Exchange (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 30, 2005).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.

By: /s/ Sarah L. Eames

Name: Sarah L. Eames

Title: Deputy Chairman and Interim
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: December 13, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Sarah L. Eames, David
Moffatt and Marvet Abbassi, and each of them, his or her truze and lawful attorneys-in-fact and
agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place
and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form
10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith,
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and
each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
necessary to be done to effectuate the intent and purpose of this paragraph, as fully as he or she
might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents
or any of them, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated,

/s Sarah L. Eames Deputy Chairman and Interim Chief December 13, 2007
Sarah L. Eames Executive Officer .
(principal executive officer)
/s/ David Moffatt Chief Financial Officer December 13, 2007
David Moffatt (principal financial and
accounting officer)
/s/ Sophia Corona Director December 11, 2007
Sophia Corona
/s/ G. Richard Green Director December 8, 2007
G. Richard Green
/s/ Wayne Palladino Director December 13, 2007
Wayne Palladino .
Is/ Jéffrey S. Peris Director _ December 7, 2007
Jeffrey S. Peris
/s/ Ann Thornburg Director December 10, 2007
Ann Thornburg
/s/ Mark Tompkins Director December 13, 2007

Mark Tompkins
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Allied Healthcare International Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Allied Healthcare International
Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years then
ended. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed at Item 15. These financial
staiements and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2005, before the effect of the
retrospective adjustment for the discontinued operations discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, were audited by other auditors whose report, dated November 28, 2005,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Allied Healthcare International Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated
cash flows for each of the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
share-based compensation effective October 1, 2005,

We have also audited the retrospective adjustment to the 2005 consolidated financial statements for
the operations discontinued in 2007, as discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Our procedures included determining the reason for the adjusiment, the extent of the adjustment and
whether auditing only the adjustment for the discontinued operation is appropriate. In our opinion,
such retrospective adjustment is appropriate and has been properly applied. However, we were not
engaged to-audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2005 consolidated financial statements of the
Company other than with respect to the retrospective adjustment and, accordingly, we do not express
an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2005 consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Allied Healthcare International Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO"), and our report dated December 11, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on
management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

fs/ EISNER LLP

New York, New York
December 11, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Allied Healthcare International Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited, before the effects of the adjustments for the discontinued operations discussed in
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the period ended September 30, 2005,
of Allied Healthcare International Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) (the 2005 consolidated
financial statements before the effects of the adjustments discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements are not presented herein). Qur audit also included the financial statement
schedules listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
the financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant ¢stimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements, before the effects of the adjustments for the
discontinued operations discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financidl statements, present fairly, in
all material respects, the results of Allied Healthcare International Inc. and subsidiaries operations
and their cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement
schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
present fairly in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments for the
discontinued operations discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and, accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance about whether such retrospective
adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Those retrospective adjustments were
audited by other auditors.

/s DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
November 28, 2005
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

September 0, September 30,
2007 2006

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ............. .. it iiniiieeann., $ 20241 $ 3,938
Restricted Cash ... ... . i i i i et i e 55,819 —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,570
and $1,703 respectively. . ... ... ... 21,490 26813
Unbilled accounts receivable . .. ... i i e 14,375 11,823
Assets of discontinued operations. ......... ... oo 205 3,567
Deferred inCome taxes ... . .cvritn it it it i e ein e enanns 182 547
Derivative assel ... i ottt e e 640 —
Prepaid expenses and otherassets .............. .. ... ouan. 1,448 1,183
Total current assets ................... e 114,400 4787
Property and equipment, net............ .. ..o 9,767 10,931
GoodWill ... e e 122,843 112,538
Other intangible assets, net .. ...... .. ittt iinn i 5,465 6,655
Assets of discontinued operations. ........... ... ... . ... — 16,317
Derivative asset ................. e e e — 252
Deferred income taxes . ... ittt i e e 304 , 538
Deferred financing costs and other assets . . .................cc...... — 581
TOTAl ASSELS « vt v vttt e ettt et e $252,779 $ 195,683

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-termdebt . ............... ... ... ..... $ 54,795 $ 11,236
Accounts payable....... ... ... e 3,950 2,051
Accrued expenses, inclusive of payroll and related expenses ....... 30,614 29,044
Liabilities of discontinued operations. ..............cooieenn.. 1,286 5,339
Taxespayable ....... ... . e 3375 1,366
Total current liabilities . . ... G 94,020 49,036
Long-term debt, less current portion ... — 59,923
Liabilities of discontinued operations. . ...................... ... ... — 3
Total liabilities .. ....... . oot it e 94,020 109,300

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares, issued and
outstanding - none. ............. o o i - —
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 80,000 shares, issued

45,571 and 45,542 shares, respectively ...........o.. oot 456 455
Additional paid-in capital........... .. .. o 240,206 238,944
Accumulated other comprehensive income, ...................... 18,018 13,258
Accumulated deficit. ... ... . o e e (97,627) (163,980)

161,053 88,677

Less cost of treasury stock (585 shares). ..................... ..., (2,294) _{2,294)
Total sharcholders’ equity ......... ... ... ... ... .. . 158,759 86,383
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . ..................... $252.779 ﬂ95,683

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2005

2007 2006
Revenues:
Net patient SErvICeS. ... . .vvre it et iennarnrerneans, $277,795  §$ 280,205  $342,031
Cost of revenues:
Palient SEIVICES. o v v ittt it e e e e 193,839 194,475 243,304
Gross profit. . ... .. i e 83,956 85,730 08,727
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ............... 75,284 71,103 73,050
Impairment of goodwill .......... ... .. .. .. ...l — 110,004 —
Impairment of long-lived assets (fixed assets and other
intangibles) ... ... ... e — 10,038 —
Operating income (0SS} . ......ooiiiiiiiiiininean. 8672 (105,415) 25,677
Interest iNCOME ... ... it i e e eenanes 124 125 212
Interest exXpense. ........ovuuiiii it (4,156) (2,862) (4,201)
Foreign exchange income (loss} ........................... 285 73 (98)
Other income (EXPENSE). .. ... . viiiiiiiiiianiineraaas 759 39 (175)
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued
OPETatiONS . . oottt ettt et 5,684 (108,040) 21,415
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes................... 2,068 {1,887) 6,446
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . ............. 3,616 (106,153) 14,969
Discontinued operations: .
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes . .. 6,266 (17,618) 3,767
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of taxes.............. 56,471 — —
Income (loss) from discontinued operations............. 62,737 {17,618) 3,767
Net income (0SS). .. ... i i it $ 66,353 $(123,771)  $ 18,736
Basic income (loss) per share of common stock
Income (loss) from continuing operations. .............. $§ 008 & (236) $ 034
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. ............ § 140 $ (039 § 008
Net income (loss) per share of common stock............... $ 148 $ (275 $ 042
Diluted income (loss) per share of common stock
Income (loss) from continuing operations. .............. § 008 $ (236) $ 033
Income (loss) freom discontinued operations. ............ 1.39 {0.39) 0.08
Net income (loss) per share of common stock............... $ 147 $ 275 § 041
Weighted average number of commeon shares outstanding:
BasiC .ot e e 44 962 44,930 44 684
Diluted. ... .o 45,147 44,930 45,169

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

C Accumulated
_Common Stock 4 gditional Other Retained
Paid-in Comprehensive  (Deficit)  Treasury
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income  Eamnings _Shares Total
Balance, September 30,2004 ... .. .. 45,050 $450 $236,988 $10,778 % (58945) $(2294) § 186,977
Comprehensive income:
Netincome.................. 18,736 18,736
Foreign currency translation ’
adjustment. . . .............. (4,258) (4,253)
Unrealized losses from cash flow -
hedging activities . . .......... (408) (403)
Comprehensive income .. ......... 14,070
Issuance of common stock for:

Exercise of stock options ., .. .... 391 4 808 812
Balance, September 30, 2005 . ... ... 45,441 $454 $237,796 $ 6112 $ (40209) $(2,294) § 201,859
Comprehensive loss:

Netloss ........... ...t (123,771) (123,771)

Foreign currency translation

adjustment. . .. ............. 6,466 6,466

Unrealized gains from cash flow

hedging activities . . .......... 680 680
Comprehensive loss. . ............ " (116,625)
Stock based compensation . . .. ... .. o 736 736
Issuance of common stock for:

Exercise of stock options ., ... ... 101 1 410 411
Excess tax benefits on stock options

exercised. . .. ..., oL 2 2
Balance, September 30, 2006 . . . . . .. 45542 $455 $238,944 $13,258 $(163980) $(2294) § 86,383
Comprehensive income:

Netincome . ................. ) 66,353 66,353

Foreign currency transtation

adjustment. . .. ..... ... ..., 5,032 5,032

Unrealized gains from cash flow

hedging activities . ........... (272) (272)
Comprehensive income . .. ........ 71,113
Stock based compensation . . ... .. .. 764 764
Issuance of common stock for

consulting services . . . .......... 29 1 63 64
Issuance and modification of warrants

for professional services . . ....... 435 435
Balance, Seplember 30,2007 ... . ... 45,571 $456 $240,206 $18,018 $ (97627) $(2294) § 158,759

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30,  September 3,
20087 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) ................uus e $ 06,353 $(123,771) $ 18,736
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:

(Income) loss from discontinued operations .......... (6,266) 17,618 (3,767)
| Gain on disposal of subsidiaries. .................... (56,471) — —
| Depreciation and amortization...................... 3377 3,729 2,514

Amortization of intangible assets. . .................. 1,743 1,826 1,574

Amortization of debt issuance costs ................. 368 180 446

Warrants issued for professional services............. 499 — —

Impairment of goodwill .. ................. ... — 110,004 —

Impairment of long-lived assets . .................... — 10,038 —

Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts ........ 222 428 788

(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets ................... — 3) 7

Stock based compensation ................ e 764 736 21

Excess tax benefits on stock options exercised ........ — (2) —_

Write-off of deferred financing fees .......... P 705 — —

Deferred income taXes. . . .....cvveievurniiienannnn. 557 (4,575) (78)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the

effect of businesses acquired and sold:

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable ........... 7,307 5,846 (1,350)

Decrease in inventories . . .......ovvvvniiveiiiannn- — 181 50

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other

Y= 1O 2.m7) 1,959 (2,539)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other

liabilities . ... .o 5,044 (1,245) 1,306
Net cash provided by continuing operations ........ 22,185 22,949 17,708
Net cash provided by discontinued operations ...... 5,870 2,783 3,575
Net cash provided by operating activities........... 28,055 25,732 21,283
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures. ............ oot {1,275) {9,053) (8.016)
Proceeds from sale of business. . .. .......... ... ... ... 70,994 — —
Proceeds from sale of business held in escrow and
designated for debt repayment. ..................... (53,679) — —
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment ......... — 21 8
Payments for acquisitions - net of cash acquired........ — (844) (14,504)
Proceeds limited to future acquisitions. ................ — — 1,850
Payments on acquisitions payable ..................... (2,584) (5,259) (4,793)
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing
operations investing activities................... 13,456 (15,135) (25,455)
Net cash used in discontinued operations investing
ACHVIHES . ... i e e (1,786) {14,738) (1,693)
Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities. . . 11,670 (29.873) (27.148)
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

{In thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments for financing fees ............. ... ... ...
Payments on notes payable...........................
(Payments) borrowings under revolving loan, net .......
Borrowings under invoice discounting facility, net .. .....
Principal payments on long-term debt .................
Proceeds from sale of interest rate cap and floor

2 4 oot 1L ]
Stock options exercised ...... ... ... . i,
Excess tax benefits on stock options exercised . .........

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ..
Effect of exchange rate oncash...................... ...

Increase (decrease) incash............. .. ... ...........
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year.............

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ..................

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest. .. .. .. B

Cash paid for income taxes, net............. ... .. .-

Supplemental disclosure of investing and financing
activities:
Details of business acquired in purchase transactions:
Fair value of assets acquired........................
Liabilities assumed or incurred .....................

Cash paid for acquisitions (including related
EXPENSES) .« oot i ittt
Cashacquired ............. . ... . . . .

Net cash paid for acquisitions. . .....................

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2005

(533) — (8)
— — (1,850)
(14,769) 13,508 13,876
4,449 — —
(11,815) (10,806) (11,101)
— e 98
— 411 791
_ 2 _
(22,668) 3,115 1,806
(754) (882) 432
16,303 (1,908) (3,627)
3,938 5,846 9,473
$ 20,241 $ 3938 $ 5846
$ 4,679 $ 4,063 $ 7,589
$ 2,570 $ 3206 $ 5308
$ 949 '$ 19,959
(105) (2,316)
844 17,643
— 3,139
$ 844 $ 14,504




ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except per share data)

1. Business and Operations:

Allied Healthcare International Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a provider of flexible,
or temporary, healthcare staffing to the United Kingdom (“U.K.”) healthcare industry. The Company
was incorporated in New York in 1981. At September 30, 2007, the Company operated an integrated
network of approximately 100 branches throughout most of the U.K. The Company’s healthcare staff
consists principally of homecare aides (known as carers in the U.K.), nurses and nurses aides. The
Company maintains a listing of over 12,000 homecare aides, nurses and nurses aides.

In September 2007, the Company disposed of two of its U.K. subsidiaries when it sold all of the
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Allied Respiratory Limited and Medigas Limited for
£36,500 ($74,741) in cash, of which £500 ($1,024) was held back until certain conditions relating to the
settlement of claims with U.K. regulatory agencies are met. These two subsidiaries constituted the
Company’s respiratory therapy segment. The respiratory therapy segment supplied medical-grade
oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to pharmacies in the U.K., oxygen concentrators to customers in
Northern Ireland and oxygen services to customers in the South East of England. In accordance with
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“FAS No. 144”), the Company has accounted for its
respiratory therapy segment as a discontinued operation. The Company’s consolidated financial
statements reflect the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations as separate line items and
the operations of its respiratory therapy segment for the current and prior periods are reported in
discontinued operations on the statement of operations. As a result of. the disposition, the Company
operates in one reportable segment.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S.”). All intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid short-term investments purchased with initial
maturities of 90 days or less. Included in cash and cash equivalents are amounts placed in escrow
deposits for the potential payments on contingent consideration that is dependent upon future
earnings of the Company’s acquisition of certain flexible staffing agencies. These escrow deposits
totaled $512 and $468 at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Restricted Cash:

Included in restricted cash are amounts relating to the $1,024 proceeds from the sale of the
respiratory therapy segment that has been held back until certain conditions relating to the settlement
of claims with U.K. regulatory agencies are met and for the payment under the irrevocable written
notice given to the agent for the Company’s banks that it wished to prepay the amounts outstanding
under the term loan A $24,572 and the term loan B1 $25,596 facilities from the proceeds of sale of its
respiratory therapy segment. Also included in restricted cash is the amount of $4,627 which the
Company segregated as unrestricted funds for the specific purpose of paying off the amount
outstanding on its invoice discount facility. See Note 7 for details of bank debt.

Stock-Based Compensation:

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation plans using
the intrinsic value method prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Employees, and related interpretations (“APB No. 25”) and provided the required pro forma
disclosures of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. Ny

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB™) issued FAS No.'
123R, Share-Based Payment (“FAS No. 123R”), which requires companies to measure, at the grant
date, and recognize in the financial statements compensation expense for all share-based payments at
fair value over the requisite service period. Effective the beginning of fiscal 2006, the Company
adopted FAS No. 123R using the modified prospective application method. In accordance with the
modified prospective application method of FAS No. 123R, financial results for the prior periods have
not been restated. The Company generally recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period for its employee and director share-based compensation plans.

Accounts Receivable:

The Company maintains a cash management program that focuses on the reimbursement
function, as growth in accounts receivable has been the main operating use of cash historically. At
September 30, 2007 and September 30, 2006, $21,490 (8.5%) and $26,813 (13.7%), respectively, of the
Company’s total assets consisted of accounts receivable.

The Company maintains credit controls to ensure cash collection on a timely basis. The credit
terms agreed with the Company’s customers range from 7 days to a maximum of 30 days from invoice
date. The Company has devised a provisioning methodology based on its customer profile and
historical credit risk across its 17.K. business. Accounts receivable are written off when the credit
control department determines the amount is no longer collectible. Each fiscal year the Company
undertakes a review of its methodology and procedure for reserving for its doubtful accounts. This
process also takes into account the Company’s actual experience of write offs in the period. The policy
is then applied at each quarter end to arrive at a closing reserve for doubtful accounts.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the related lease terms or estimated useful lives,
whichever is shorter. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives ranging from three to seven years,

Purchase Accounting:

For completed acquisitions, preliminary values and useful lives are allocated based upon fair
values that have been determined for assets acquired and liabilities assumed and management’s best
estimates for values that have not yet been finalized. The Company obtains a third-party valuation in
order to complete its purchase price allocations. Accordingly, final asset and liability fair values as well
as useful lives may differ from management’s original estimates and could have an adverse impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill and other intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortization. In
accordance with FAS No. 142, “Geodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“FAS No. 1427}, all goodwill
and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer subject to amortization but are
subject to annual impairment tests. The Company completed its annual impairment test required
under FAS No. 142 during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 and determined there was no impairment
to its recorded goodwill balance. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 the Company determined

F-9




ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

there was an impairment to its recorded goodwill balance by using a combination of market multiple,
comparable transaction and discounted cash flow methods. Based on a combination of factors,
contributing to the impairment loss were the decrease in profits due to the decline of revenues from
the National Health Services (“the NHS”), the Company’s current market capitalization at time of
review as well as the current and projected operating results. As such, the Company recognized a pre
tax impairment charge of $110,004 in fiscal 2006.

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended
September 30, 2007:

Balance at October 1,2005................. $ 205,177
Goodwill acquired during period............ 8,741
Goodwill impairment...................... (110,004)
Foreign exchange effect.................... 8,624
Balance at September 30,2006.............. 112,538
Foreign exchange effect.................... 10,305
Balance at September 30, 2007.............. $ 122,843

Of the $122,843 goodwill balance at September 30, 2007, approximately $5,690 is deductible for
U.K. income tax purposes.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are being amortized on the straight-line method and
consist of the following:

September 30, 2007

Range . Gross Net
of Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Lives Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationships. .. ........ ... ... ... ... ... 5-12 $10,935 $5,470 $5,465
Trade names. ....... ... ... .. .. i il 3 211 211 —
Non-compete agreements ......................... 2-3 247 247 —
Favorable leasehold interests ... ................... 2-5 9 9 —
Total .o e e $11,402 $5,937 $5,465

September 30, 2006

Range Gross Net
Of Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Lives Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationships. ........................... 5-12 $10,000 $3,371 $6,629
Trade mames. . ........covtiiiiii i i 3 193 193 —
Non-compeie agreements .............irianianna, 2-3 225 199 26
Favorable leasehold interests . ..................... 2-5 9 9 —
Total L. e e $10,427 $3,772 $6,655

The Company reviewed the carrying amount of its other intangibles and deemed certain assets to
be impaired as of September 30, 2006 as a result of the decline in revenues from the NHS. Thus, in
accordance with the provisions of FAS No. 144, the Company has recognized pre tax impairment
charges of $995 and $3 related to it customer relationships and favorable leasehold interests,
respectively, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 which are reflected in the gross carrying amounts
above. The total impairment charge of $998 is included in the “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets”
caption in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
{In thousands, except per share data)

Amortization expense for other intangible assets subject to amortization was $ 1,743, $1,826 and
$1,574 for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At September 30, 2007,
estimated future amortization expense of other intangible assets subject to amortization is as follows:
approximately $1,696, $1,652, $1,442, $479 and $81 for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2008;
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively,

Deferred Financing Costs:

Costs incurred in obtaining long-term financing are amortized over the benefit period provided by
the long-term financing agreements. At September 30, 2006 deferred financing costs and other assets
included $514 of deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $421. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company wrote-off $705 of deferred financing costs as a result of the
prepayment of the amounts outstanding under its term loan A and its term loan B1 facilities from the
proceeds of sale of its respiratory therapy segment. Amortization of deferred financing costs is
included in interest expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with FAS
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income tax asscts and liabilities
reflect tax carryforwards and the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes, as determined under currently
enacted tax rates. Delerred tax assets are recorded if future realization is more likely than not.

Deferred taxes are recorded primarily for bad debts, federal and state net operating loss
carryforwards, depreciation and amortization of intangibles, which are reported in different periods for
federal income tax purposes than for financial reporting purposes. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

Revenue Recognition:

Patient services are recognized when services are performed and substantiated by proper
documentation. For patient services revenue is recognized upon completion of timesheets that also
require the signature of the recipient of services. Unbilled accounts receivable represents amounts due
for services performed, but not billed as of the balance sheet date. At September 30, 2007 and 2006,
the Company had $14,375 and $11,823, respectively in unbilled accounts receivable.

The Company receives a majority of its revenue from the U.K. local social services departments
and the NHS payors. For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, 63.5%, 68.3% and
67.0%, respectively, of the Company’s net revenues were attributable to the U.K. local social services
departments and the NHS payor programs.

Advertising Costs: A

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adverting expense for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $720, $699 and $1,614, respectively.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share ("EPS”) is computed using the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. Diluted EPS adjusts basic EPS for the effects of stock options and warrants only
when such effect is dilutive. At September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company had outstanding
stock options and warrants to purchase 2,772, 2,983 and 677 shares, respectively, of common stock
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

ranging in exercise price from $1.92 to $6.20, $1.72 to $7.25, and $6.20 to $7.25 per share, respectively,
that were not included in the computation of diluted EPS either because the exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the common shares or such effect would have been
anti-dilutive.

The weighted average number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
as used in computation of basic EPS of common stock...... 44962 44930 44,684
Effect of dilutive securities — stock options and warrants ...... 185 — 485

Shares used in computation of diluted EPS of common stock .. 45,147 44930 45,169

Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Components of comprehensive income (loss) include net income (loss) and all other non-owner
changes in equity, such as the change in the cumulative translation adjustment and unrealized gains
(losses) from cash flow hedging activities, which are the only items of other comprehensive income
(loss) impacting the Company.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash
flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference between the
fair value (discounted future cash flows) and carrying value of the asset. Impairment loss on assets to
be sold, if any, is based on the estimated proceeds to be received, less estimated costs to sell. The
Company has recognized impairment charges in fiscal 2006. See Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
above for impairment charges related to goodwill and Note 5 for charges related to fixed assets.

Foreign Currency Translation:

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is other than the U.S.
dollar are translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
Results of operations are translated using weighted average exchange rates during the period.
Adjustments resulting from the translation process are included as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) included in shareholders’ equity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

Cash, accounts receivable, unbilled accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
taxes payable approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of those instruments, The
derivative asset is recorded at its estimated fair value. The estimated fair value of the Company’s
outstanding borrowings approximates their carrying value at September 30, 2007 and 2006.

Concentrations of Credit Risk;

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are
cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash equivalents with high credit
quality financial institutions. The Company believes no significant concentration of credit risk exists
with respect to these cash equivalents.

.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
{In thousands, except per share data)

The Company grants credit without collateral to its patients, who are primarily insured under
third-party agreements. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the
expected collectability of accounts receivable. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, 67.0% and 66.9% of
accounts receivable was due from the U.K. local social services departments and the NHS payors,
respectively, with the balance due from various other third-party payors and self-pay patients (none of
which comprise greater than 10% of the balance).

Use of Management’s Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles {(“GAAP”)} requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the
accounting for allowance for doubtful accounts, contingencies, acerued expenses, and determination of
impairment, depreciation and amortization.

Reclassifications:

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and
transition. This Interpretation is effective for the Company beginning October 1, 2007. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission {the “SEC”} issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (“SAB No. 108"). The interpretation in SAB No. 108 was issued to
address diversity in practice in quantifying financial statement misstatements and the potential under
current practice for the build up of improper amounts on the balance sheet. This interpretation
establishes the staff’s approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based
on the effects of the misstatements on each of the Company’s financial statements and the related
financial statement disclosures. SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially apply its
provisions either by (i) restating prior financial statements or (ii) recording the cumulative effect as
adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities with an offsetting adjustment recorded to -
the opening balance of retained earnings. SAB No. 108 was effective for the Company in fiscal 2007,
The adoption of SAB 108, did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

In September 2006. the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“FAS No. 1577).
FAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It also
established a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurement. FAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit
fair value measurements. FAS No. 157 is effective for the Company in fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2008 and interim periods within the fiscal year. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of FAS No. 157 on its consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, The Fair Value for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (“FAS No. 1597). FAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure financial
assets and liabilities, with certain exceptions, at fair value at specified election dates. The objective is
to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in
reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply
complex hedge accounting provisions. A business entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on
items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting
date. FAS No. 159 is effective for the Company in fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of FAS No. 159 on its consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51" (“FAS No. 160”). FAS No. 160 establishes
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary is an
ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated
financial statements. FAS No, 160 is effective for the Company in fiscal year beginning October 1,
2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FAS No. 160 on its consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (R) “Business Combinations” (*FAS No.
141R”). FAS No. 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business
recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. FAS No. 141R also provides guidance for
recognizing and measuring the goodwill acquired in the business combination and determines what
information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial
effects of the business combination. FAS No. 141R is effective for the Company in fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2009. While the Company has not yet evaluated this statement for the impact, if
any, that FAS No. 141R will have on its consolidated financial position and results of operations, the
Company will be required to expense costs related to any acquisitions after September 30, 2009.

3. Business Combinations and Dispesitions:
Combinations:

In fiscal 2006, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of a home care training
agency for approximately $778 in cash and additional contingent cash consideration of up to $936
dependent upon (i) future earnings in fiscal 2006, (ii} providing a set minimum of training programs
and (iii) the sellers continuing employment with the Company until at least December 31, 2006. Of
the $936 contingent cash consideration, the Company has recognized compensation costs of $118, net
of income tax, and $524, net of income tax, for fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively, as the
acquisition contract required the sellers to remain in employment with us until at least December 31,
2006 (the earnout period). In fiscal 2007, all but $19 of the contingent consideration was earned and
paid. '

In fiscal 2005, the Company acquired a total of 9 Social Service agencies for approximately
$17,059 in cash and $69 in acquisition payable, which was paid in fiscal 2006. As of September 30,
2005, these transactions included provisions to pay additional amounts, payable in cash, of up to
$9,735 in contingent consideration dependent upon future earnings of the acquired entities. In fiscal
2006 a total of $6,326 was earned and paid in fiscals 2006 and 2007. The remaining balance of
contingent consideration was unearned and will not be required to be paid.

In fiscal 2006, Company completed its purchase price allocation for its fiscal 2005 acquisitions,
Accordingly, final tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were assigned
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values of approximately $5,853, $5,560 and $2,271, respectively, with the remaining portion of $9,176
attributable to goodwill. As compared to the original valuations at acquisition, the final valuation

resulted in a reclassification of $194 from separately identifiable intangible assets to goodwill. t

In fiscal 2005, the Company completed its purchase price allocation for its fiscal 2004 acquisitions.
Accordingly, tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were assigned
values of approximately $1,311, $3,493 and $709, respectively, with the remaining portion of $4,913
attributable to goodwill. As compared to the original valuations at acquisition, the final valuation
resulted in a reclassification of $753 from goodwill to separately identifiable intangible assets.

The pro forma resulis of operations and related per share information for these acquisitions have
not been presented as the amounts are considered immaterial.

Dispositions:

In September 2007, the Company sold its respiratory therapy segment for £36,500 ($74,741) in
cash, of which £500 ($1,024) was held back until certain conditions relating to the settlement of claims
with U.K. regulatory agencies are met. The respiratory therapy segment supplied medical-grade
oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to pharmacies in the U.K., oxygen concentrators to customers in
Northern Ireland and oxygen services to customers in the South East of England. In accordance with
the provisions of FAS No. 144, the Company has accounted for its respiratory therapy segment as a
discontinued operation. The Company’s consolidated financial statements reflect the assets and
liabilities of the discontinued operations as separate line items and the operations of its respiratory
therapy segment for the current and prior periods are reported in discontinued operations on the
statement of operations. Within discontinued operations, the Company recorded a gain of $56,471, net
of tax of $0 on the sale of its respiratory therapy segment. Under U K. tax legislation, enacted on
April 1, 2002, disposals of shares by companies with substantial shareholdings does not result in a
taxable gain transaction.

The following table presents the financial results of the discontinued operations:

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005
Revenues:
Net respiratory, medical equipment and supplies............. $28,699 $ 14,402 $9.158
Cost of revenues:
Respiratory, medical equipment and supplies................ 13,024 10,521 4214
Impairment of respiratory, medical equipment and supplies . . . — 5,932 —
Total cost of revenues .. ........ ... ... i 13,024 16,453 4,214
Gross Profit . . ... e 15,675 (2,051) 4,944
Selling, general and administrative expenses. .................. 6,091 4,449 897
Impairment of goodwill. . ........... ... ... .o — 11,897 ¢ —
Impairment of long-lived assets. . ...... ... ... ... oo — 257 —
Operating income (loss) from discontinued operations. . ... ... 9,584 (18,654) 4,047
Interest income. .. ... ... .. 2 2 —
Interest eXpense . ...t e e (1,570) (1,410) —
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income tax .. 8,016 (20,062) 4,047
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of tax.................... 56,471 @ — —
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes..................... 1,750 ® (2,444) 280
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .................. $62,737 $(17,618)  $3,767
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(a) Under the provisions of FAS No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation, translation adjustments that
result when a foreign entity’s financial statements are translated into a parent company’s or an
investor’s reporting currency are separately reported in the parent company’s other
comprehensive income. Foreign currency translation adjustments that are accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to income only when they are realized, if the investment in
the foreign entity is sold or is substantially or completed liquidated. Accordingly, the foreign
currency translation adjustments of the balance sheet related to the respiratory therapy segment in
the amount of approximately $1,564 were reclassified into the gain on disposal of subsidiaries.

(b} Included in the provision for income taxes for the year end September 30, 2007, is the reversal of
$690 of certain tax contingencies, related to the Company’s fiscal 2003 discontinued operations on
the sale of two of its U.S. subsidiaries as the statute of limitation has expired.

(c) In the fourth of fiscal 2006, the Company recognized pre-tax charges of $5,381, $551 and $257 for
the write-off of revenue producing equipment {oxygen cylinders), oxygen filling station and
software costs, respectively. Due to the award of the new oxygen contracts (see below), the
Company had made significant capital expenditures, amounting to $14,738, in order to fulfill its
obligation under the new contracts. The Company had substituted a number of cylinders with
oxygen concentrators. As such, the Company believed that these oxygen cylinders had become
obsolete and had no further use to the Company. The Company also invested in an oxygen filling
station whereby its cylinders would be re-filled. But, due to the location of the plant and strict
noise pollution governmental rules, the Company did not believe it would be able to utilize such
plant. The Company also wrote-off various software costs related to transitioning to its new
oxygen contracts that it believed had no future benefit.

(d) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company completed its annual impairment test
required under FAS No. 142 and determined there was an impairment to its recorded goodwill
balance by using a combination of market multiple, comparable transaction and discounted cash
flow methods. Based on a combination of factors, contributing to the impairment loss were the
decrease in profits in the Company’s respiratory therapy segment due to the transitioning from the
old pharmacy based contracts to the new supply of oxygen direct to patients contracts that have
lower margins (see below), the Company’s current market capitalization at time of review as well
as the current and projected operating results. As such, the Company recognized a pre-tax
impairment charge of $11,897.

In 2005, the U.K. Department of Health sought to unify the supply of oxygen to NHS patients in
England and Wales. The previous system used pharmacies to supply cylindered gases, while oxygen
concentrators are supplied via regional contracts with homecare providers. Under the revised system,
which came into effect on February 1, 2006, homecare providers supply cylindered gas and liquid
oxygen as well as oxygen concentrators directly to patients. Following a tender process, the Company
was awarded two of the contracts submitted which commenced in February 2006. As the existing
cylinder business was organized on a National distribution structure, the award of the areas in the
South East of England required the setting up of additional facilities in the South East of England
which was effected in the second quarter of fiscal 2006. These changes resulted in the Company
incurring additional charges and capital expenditures in fiscal 2006 as it commenced activities under
the new contracts. Due to transition problems transferring the oxygen cylinder business from
community pharmacies the Company incurred in fiscal 2006 higher than anticipated implementation
expenses to build the infrastructure and distribution network to absorb the increased volume of
oxygen patients from the community based pharmacies.
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In fiscal 2007 and 2006 interest expense has been allocated to discontinued operations based on
debt that the Company has specifically identified as being attributable to discontinued operations, as
an allocation based on net assets would not provide a meaningful result. The Company based its,
allocation on the amount of capital expenditures directly related to its discontinued operations and
then considered cash borrowings necessary to maintain the operations of its then respiratory therapy
segment. Prior to fiscal 2006, the respiratory therapy segment was self-sufficient and borrowings were
predominately used to fund acquisitions in the Company’s flexible healthcare staffing segment. As
such, no allocation of interest was required for fiscal 2005,

At September 30, 2007, assets of discontinued operations consisted of deferred income taxes and
liabilities of discontinued operations consisted of accrued costs for refunds payable and patient electric
usage reimbursement. At September 30, 2006, assets of discontinued operations consisted of property
and equipment, accounts receivable, inventory, goodwill and other assets of $16,145, $2,829, $586, $172
and $152, respectively. At September 30, 2006 liabilities of discontinued operations consisted of
accounts payable, accrued costs (mainly for payroll, refunds payable, patient electric usage
reimbursement and tax contingencies) and deferred income taxes of $2,688, $2,651 and $341,
respectively.
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The following table displays the unaudited pro forma results of operations, related EPS and
condensed balance sheet, at September 30, 2007, of the Company as if the disposition of the
respiratory therapy segment was completed on October 1, 2006:

Pro Forma Consolidated
Consolidated Adjustments Pro Forma

NELTEVEMUES . . oottt ittt ettt ettt iaaaanans $277.795 3 $277,795
oSt Of TEVEIMUES . ottt ettt ia e ia et 193,839 193,839
Gross profit ... ... ..o e 83,956 83,956
Selling, general and administrative expenses.............. 75,284 . 75,284
Operating iNCOME ... ... viurtr it aeanr et raas 8,672 8,672
Interest (expense) income, Net. . ... ... ooiiiiiinan s (3,273) (3,188)@ (85)
Foreign exchange gain.......... ... .. ivioiaanaenn 285 285
Income before income taxes and discontinued
OPErations. .. ... .uiun i e 5,684 (3,188) 8,872
Provision for INCOME LaXes . .. .o vvinn i iian e 2,068 (956)® 3,024
Income from continuing operations. . ............ooeean. 3,616 (2,232) 5,848
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes ........ 6,266 (1,099)® 7,365
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of taxes ............. 56,471 56,471
62,737 (1,099) 63,836
INEL INCOMIE .ottt t e et e ettt e e iae e $ 66,353 $(3,331) $ 69,684
Basic income per share of common stock from:
Income from continuing operations. ................... $ 008 $§ 013
Income from discontinued operations. .. ............... 1.40 i.42
Net INCOME. .ottt e reiet e $ 148 $ 1.55
Diluted income per share of common stock from: -
Income from continuing operations. ................... $ 008 $ 013
Income from discontinued operations.................. 1.39 1.41
(L 111+ 1 V= $ 147 $ 1.54
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
BaSIC . ot e e e 44 962 44 962
Diluted . ... e 45,147 45,147

(a) To record interest savings on pay down of senior credit facility from the proceeds from the sale of
the respiratory therapy segment.

{(b) To record tax expense attributable to pro forma adjustments at the UK statutory rate of 30%.
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Pro Forma

Consolidated

Consolidated Adjustments Pro Forma
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. ..., ....................... $ 20,241 $  (462)°% $ 19,779
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful
P Tet o701 0 ) 11 -5 21,490 21,490
Unbilled accounts receivable ............. covivnann. 14,375 14,375
Restricted cash . ... .....ovviiiii i, 55,819 (54,795) 1,024
Deferred inCoOme taXes. . .. .vvenenee e eirnnnn. 182 192 ® 374
Assets of discontinued operations . .................... 205 205
DETivative SSel. ... v\t ei e iiet e, 640 (640)® —
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . ................... 1.448 1,448
Total current assets ......... ... it 114,400 (55,705) 58,695
Property and equipment, net ............ ... .. .. 9,767 9,767
Goodwill. ... ... e 122,843 122,843
Other intangible assets, net................ ... iiiunn 5,465 5,465
Deferred income faxes. . .......oiiit e innaannn. 304 304
TO1A] BSSETS -« vt e vttt it e e $252,779 $(55,705) $197,074
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt. .. .................. $ 54,795 $(54,795) $ —
Accounts payable ......... ... ... ... oL, 3,950 3,950
Accrued eXPensSeS . . .. oo e 30,614 (1,102)® 29,512
Liabilities of discontinued operations . ................. 1,286 1,286
Taxes payable .......ovioiiii e 3,375 192 ® 3,567
Total Habilities. . .. ..ottt iaenn. .. 94,020 (55,705) 38315
Stockhoelders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares,
issued and outstanding — none
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 80,000
shares, issued 45,571, ... .. . i e 456 456
Additional paid-incapital ......... ... L 240,206 240,206
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ............ 18,018 18,018
Retained deficit. ..... ... ... .. . e (97,627) (97.627)
161,053 161,053
Less cost of treasury stock (585 shares)................ (2,294) {2,294)
Total stockholders’ equity............ ... .. ... .... 158,759 158,759
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. $252,779 $(55,705) $197,074

(a) To record use of cash proceeds from the sale of the respiratory segment to pay down the senior

credit facility.

(b) To record sale of interest rate swaps and tax impact as related debt was paid down.

(c) To record payment of accrued interest costs and costs associated with prepayment of the senior

credit facility.
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4. Reorganization:

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, in response to the changing structure of the method of supply
to the NHS, the Company reorganized its operations to condense the number of subsidiaries used to
supply healthcare staff. As a result of this reorganization, and in accordance with FAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” the Company recognized pre-tax
charges of $631 to satisfy existing lease obligations on the closure of several of its UK. offices
and $442 for severance and employee related costs in its fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. At
September 30, 2007 and 2006, $175 and $315, respectively, to satisfy existing lease obligations on
the closure of several of its U.K. offices has not been paid.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company also rebranded the U.K. group operations and
launched a new corporate logo. The Company recognized a charge of $1,017 in its fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005 related to the new corporate logo.

5. Property and Equipment:

Major classes of property and equipment, net, consist of the following at September 30:

2007 2006
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (including software). . ... $27.656 $24,377
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements ............. 1,284 872

28,940 25,249
Less, accumulated depreciation and amortization. ......... 19,173 14,318

$ 9,767 $10,931

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 the Company recognized a pre-tax charge of $9,040 of
softwarc costs related to its computerized accounting and payroll system based on the Oracle platform
that was implemented in fiscal 2005. The Company has discovered that the system is 100 slow for the
nature of its business and therefore is not achieving full functionality. As such, the Company has
decided to abandon certain of the software features of the Oracle platform and not continue with the
planned expansion to its other branches as it believes the cost to have a workable model would
exceed alternate solutions. The Company is currently in the process of comparing various operating
systems in order to determine which system best supports its branch network and allows the Company
to interface with our customers and communicate with our staff. The write-off is classified within
“Impairment of long-lived assets” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment for the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $3,377, $3,729 and $2,514, respectively.

6. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses consist of the following at September 30:

2007 2006
Payroll and related expenses ............... oo $20,153 $17,795
Acquisitions payable (on earned contingent consideration) . . 1,917%  4210W
Professional fees . . ........ .. i 2,655 2,276
Interest payable.. ............ i i e 1,102 696
Other ... e e 4,787 4,067

$30,614 $29,044

(A) At September 30, 2007 and 2006 includes $1,179 and $1,077, respectively, that is currently under
negotiation with the owners of the previously acquired entity.
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At September 30, 2007, liabilities of discontinued operations consist of accrued refunds payable
and accrued patient electric usage reimbursement.

7. Debt:

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company’s U.K. subsidiary, Allied Healthcare Group
Holdings Limited {“Allied Holdings”) obtained a new senior credit facility. As described in more
detail below, in December 2006, the senior credit facility was amended and restated (the “Amended
Senior Credit Facility™). '

On December 12, 2006, the Company’s U.K. subsidiary, Allied Holdings, entered into the
Amended Senior Credit Facility, which provides for a £46,000 ($94,194) multicurrency senior credit
facility to replace the senior credit facility. The Amended Senior Credit Facility is collateralized by a
first priority lien on the assets of Allied Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries, and payment is
guaranteed by the Company and certain of the subsidiaries of Allied Holdings. The Company has also
granted the banks a security interest in substantially all of its assets to secure the payment of its
guarantee.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility consists of the following:
* an £18,000 ($36,859) term loan A that matures in July 2009,

* a £12,500 ($25,596) revolving loan B1 that may be drawn upon until June 2009 and that
matures in July 2009

* a£7,500 ($15,358) invoice discounting facility B2 that may be drawn upon until June 2009 and
that matures in July 2009; and

* an £8,000 (16,381) revolving loan C that may be drawn upon until June 2009 and that matures
in July 2009,

Repayment of term loan A was made semi-annually until final maturity. Repayment of revolving
loan Bl is on the last day of its interest period. Repayment of the invoice discounting loan B2 shall be
on the maturity date {July 2009). Repayment of revolving loan C shall be on the maturity date (July
2009) or, if earlier, the date that the other facilities are repaid. The loans bore interest at rates equal
to LIBOR (if sterling) or EURIBOR (if euros) plus any bank mandatory costs (if applicable) plus
0.70% to 3.50% per annum (depending on consolidated debt to consolidated profit ratios). As of
September 30, 2007, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $24,572, $25,596 and $4,627 relating
to term loan A, revolving loan B1 and invoice discounting facility B2, respectively, under the
Amended Senior Credit Facility, that bore interest at rates ranging from 7.69% 1o 8.79%. As of
September 30, 2006, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $33,707 and $37,452 relating 1o term
loan A and revolving loan B1, respectively, under the senior credit facility, that bore interest at rates
ranging from 5.66% to 5.68%.

The invoice discount facility commenced in January 2007 and provides, among other things, the
following:

s the Company can borrow on B3% of its approved flexible staffing accounts receivable, which
excludes accounts receivable greater than 120 days, credit balances and reserves;

* no one debtor can exceed 10% of the outstanding approved accounts receivable; and
= accounts receivable relating to private individuals are not fundable.

Prior to the commencement of the invoice discount facility, the Company had a £7,500 ($14,769)
revolving loan B1 which was repaid upon commencement of the invoice discount facility.
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On September 28, 2007 Allied Holdings gave irrevocable written notice to the agent for the banks
under the Amended Senior Credit Facility that it wished to prepay the amounts outstanding under the
term loan A £12,000 ($24,572) and the term loan B1 £12,500 ($25,596) on October 1, 2007 from the
proceeds of sale of its respiratory therapy segment. Allied Holdings also gave irrevocable written
notice that it wished to cancel term loan A, term loan Bl and revolving loan C on October 1, 2007.
On QOctober 1, 2007 Allied Holdings prepaid the amounts outstanding under the term loan A and the
term loan B1 facilities from the proceeds of sale of its respiratory therapy segment. Allied Holdings
also cancelled term loan A, term loan B1 and revolving loan C on QOctober 1, 2007. As a result of the
irrevocable written notice to prepay the term loan A and term loan B1, the Company has classified
the debt as current on its Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2007. The invoice discount
facility continues to be available.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility agreement is based on the U.K.’s Loan Markets Association
Multicurrency Term and Revolving Facilities agreement which is a standard form designed to be
commercially acceptable to the corporate lending market.

Subject to certain exceptions, the Amended Senior Credit Facility prohibits or restricts the
following, among other things:

* incurring liens and granting security interests in the assets of certain of the Company’s U.K.
subsidiaries;

¢ incurring additional indebtedness; ‘

¢ making certain fundamental corporate changes;

e paying dividends (including the payment of dividends to the Company by its subsidiaries);
* making specified investments, acquisitions or disposals;

* repurchasing shares; and

*  entering into certain transactions with affiliates,

The Amended Senior Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative financial covenants
customarily found in agreements of this kind, including the maintenance of certain financial ratios,
such as debt to earnings (including amounts provided for depreciation and amortization), earnings
(before interest and taxes) to interest expense, minimum net worth, maximum ancillary facilities
indebtedness and the prohibition of off balance sheet funding. The Company is also obligated to
ensure that the guarantors of the Amended Senior Credit Facility must not at any time represent less
than 90% of the consolidated gross assets, turnover or earnings before interest and taxes of the UK.
subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants.

The Amended Senior Credit Facility places limits on the Company’s ability to incur capital
expenditures, required the Company to separate the role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer no later than August 1, 2007, and requires the Company to engage a consultant to review its
operations and make recommendations with respect thereto. In fiscal 2007, the Company had engaged
an outside consultant to review its operations and in October 2007 terminated the consulting
apreement as a result of the debt repayment. In July 2007, the role of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer were separated. The Company obtained an extension of time to February 1, 2008 to
appoint a permanent Chief Executive Officer.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the senior credit facility was amended to provide an overdraft
facility (“Overdraft Facility”) in the amount of £3,000 ($5,618) for general corporate purposes. The
Company had utilized such Overdraft Facility in the first quarter of fiscal 2007 and in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006 and had no amounts outstanding as of September 30, 2007 and 2006. The
Overdraft Facility was repayable upon the earlier of demand from the bank or January 11, 2007.

F-22




ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Interest on the Overdraft Facility was charged at the same rate as loans under the revolving loan B.
In December 2006, the Overdraft Facility was rolled over and incorporated in the Company’s loan
under the Amended Senior Credit Facility.

Notes Due in Connection with Acquisitions. The Company repaid, through Allied Holdings,
notes payable of $1,850 issued in connection with the acquisition of certain U.K. flexible staffing
agencies in fiscal 2005.

Guarantees. The Amended Senior Credit Facility is collateralized by a first priority lien on the
assets of the Allied Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied Holdings and certain
of its subsidiaries, the Company is guaranteeing the debt and other obligations of certain
wholly-owned 1J.K. subsidiaries under the Amended Senior Credit Facility. At September 30, 2007
and 2006, the amounts guaranteed, which approximate the amounts outstanding, totalled $54,795 and
$71,159, respectively. Further, in conjunction with the execution of the Amended Senior Credit
Facility, the Company has granted the senior lenders a security interest in substantially all of its assets
to secure the payment of its guarantee.

Financial Instruments. In March 2003, the Company entered into a Rate Cap and Floor Collar
Agreement that capped its interest rate at LIBOR of 5.50% and its interest floor at LIBOR of 4.47%,
subject to special provisions, on approximately $93,630 of the Company’s floating rate debt under a
contract which would have expired in March 2008. In February 2005, the Company sold this derivative
instrument for approximately $100.

In February 2005, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements, which expire in
July 2009, the objective of which is to protect the Company against the potential rising of interest
rates on its floating rate debt. The two interest rate swap agreements cover approximately $61,431 of
the Company’s floating rate debt until January 2008 and then decreases by $6,143 each six month
period, in order to reflect the amortizing effect of the Company’s floating rate debt, until the end of
the interest rate swap agreements. The interest rate under the swap agreements is fixed at 4.935% and
is payable semi-annually. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company designated the two inierest
rate swap agreements as cash flow hedges. In accordance with FAS No. 133, Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, as amended by FAS No. 138 and related
implementation guidance (“FAS No. 133”), the Company calculated the fair value of the interest rate
swap agreements to be an asset of $640 and $252 at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Prior
to the cash flow hedge designation, changes in the value from period to period of the interest rate
swap agreements was recorded as other expense or income, as appropriate. At September 30, 2007,
the cash flow hedges were deemed to be ineffective as the Company entered into an irrevocable
agreement to prepay the amounts outstanding under its term loan A and term loan B1 and
subsequently, on October 1, 2007, sold the swaps. Thus, the cumulative amount in other
comprehensive income and the change in value were recorded in other income and totaled $531, net
of $228 in income tax, in fiscal 2007, At September 30, 2006, the effective portion of the income on
the interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges was $272, net of $117 in income tax,
and was included in other comprehensive income. In fiscal 2006, the Company we recognized other
income of $27 thousand, net of $12 thousand of income tax, related to the cash flow hedge
ineffectiveness.

8. Shareholders’ Equity:

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company recognized a charge of $64 related to the
issuance of 29 shares of common stock to Parthenon Group LLC for partial payment of professional
services.
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9. Income Taxes:

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations for the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
| Current:
Federal ..ot i i $ 100 $ (2 % 2
FOTEIgN . ..ot i e 1,273 2,697 6,335
Deferred:
FOTEIZN oottt et i i e e 785 (4,582) 109
Proviston for (benefit from) income taxes ................ $2.,068 $(1,887) $6,446

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities recorded for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
September 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses. .......... U $ 978 $ 348
Federal net operating loss carryforward ............. 25,630 25,939
State net operating loss carryforward. ............... 8922 9,026
Provision for doubtful accounts. .................... 316 691
Depreciation ..........ooviiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,182 1,108
Intangible assets. ... ...t 48 67
Stock Options........... e 478 242
10111 T=3 0 171 S O P 10 6
Gross deferred tax assets .. .....ovvvnenncaiainnns ‘ 37,564 37,427
Valuation allowance. . ......cooien e (35,609} {35,563)
Net deferred tax assets ... ... vnennnn 1,955 1,864
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets. .. ....ovvnr i (1,072) (900)
Other, Net ..o e i (192) (76)
Deferred tax liabilities. . . . . PP (1,264) (976)
Net deferred tax asset ...........ccovvvvn...us . $ 691 $ 888
Classification of Deferred Taxes:
Current Deferred Tax Asset . ........covviiiniens, 182 547
Current Deferred Tax Asset (included in Assets of
discontinued operations . .......... ... et 205 144
Non Current Deferred Tax Asset................... 304 538
Long-Term Deferred Tax Liabilities (included in .
Liabilities of discontinued operations. ............. — (341)
Net deferred tax asset. . .....ov i 691 888

The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its U.S. deferred tax assets as
management believes it is not more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be utilized prior
to their expiration. Subsequent recognition of these deferred tax assets would result in an income tax
benefit in the year of such recognition.
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As of September 30, 2007, the Company has a federal net operating loss carryforward of
approximately $75,382 which if unused, will expire in the years 2018 through 2024. Current or future
ownership changes may limit the future realization of these net operatmg losses in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 382.

Reconciliations of the differences between income taxes computed at federal statutory tax rates
and consolidated provisions for income taxes on income before income taxes and discontinued
operations for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Income taxes at 34% .. ............ i $1,933 $(36,734)  $7.281
Nondeductible goodwill impairment................... — 31,163 —
Valuation allowance. . ................coiiiiiinnn... 46 (324) 55
Stock options ..o — 3) (424)
Foreigntax, met .............ccviiiiiiiinennnnns (245) 4,344 (804)
Enacted UK. ratechange ........................... 148 — —
Other,net ... ... ... ... i, 186 (333) 338
Provision (benefit) for income taxes................... $2,068 $ (1,887) $6,446

Provision has not been made for U.S. or additional foreign taxes for undistributed earnings of the
U.K. foreign subsidiaries. Any of those earnings have been and will continue to be reinvested.
Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability with respect to such earnings is
not practical. We believe that the amount of additional taxes that might be payable on the earning of
foreign subsidiaries, if remitted, would be partially offset by the U.S. foreign tax credits.

Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations generated from the U.K.
operations for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $6,112, ($108,599) and $20,098,
respectively.

10. Stock Options and Warrants:

Stock Options:

Under the shareholder approved 1992 Stock Option Plan and 2002 Stock Option Plan, the
Company may grant incentive and non-qualified options to purchase its common stock to key
employees, officers, directors and non-employee independent contractors. Effective with the adoption
of the Company’s 2002 Stock Option Plan (“Option Plan™), no further options may be granted under
the 1992 Stock Option Plan. Stock options are generally issued at an exercise price per share which is
not less than the fair market value of the stock on the grant date and generally vest over a three year
period and expire ten years from the grant date. Options granted under the plans generally may be
exercised upon payment of the option price in cash or by delivery of shares of our common stock with
a fair market value equal to the option price. Certain option awards provide for accelerated vesting if
there is a change in control. Shares delivered under the 2002 Stock Option Plan will be available from
authorized but unissued shares of common stock or from shares of common stock reacquired by the
Company. Shares available for future grant under the 2002 Stock Option Plan were 1,557 shares at
September 30, 2007. -
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Following is a summﬁry of transactions under the Option Plan during the year ended

September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number Of Average Number of Average  Number of  Average

Stock Exercise Stock Exercise Stock Exercise

Options Price ($) Options Price ($) Options Price ($)
Qutstanding beginning of year....... 2,633 4.99 2,610 5.49 2,646 4.87
Granted ........... ... .. ... 1,440 2.03 465 2.18 652 593
Exercised ... ...... ... ... ... —_ — (101) 4.04 {410) 2.18
Forfeited or expired. ............... (1,096) 475 {341) 5.28 (278) 5.54
Qutstanding end of year............ 2,977 3.64 2,633 4,99 2,610 5.49

A summary of the options outstanding and exercisable as of September 30, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Weighted-Average

Remzining

Aggregate

Number of Options Contractual Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Price ($) Qutstanding Outstanding ($) Life in Years Value ($)
1.72-2T71. . - 1,380 2.05 7.6 518
302-470. .. e 704 4.10 2.6 —
S41-620. ... ... 893 573 3.0 e
2977 3.64 51 518
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Remaining Aggregate
Number of Options Contractual Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Price (§) Exercisable Exercisable ($) Life in Years Value ($)
172 =27 562 1.93 5.2 277
302-470. ..o e 674 4.15 2.3 —
541 =620, ..o e 864 572 2.9 —
420 33 27

2,100

The weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted during the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1.13, $1.34 and $4.44, respectively. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 was $240 and $1,718. For
options exercised during the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, $411 and $791, respectively,
was received in cash to cover the exercise price of the options exercised. In addition, for the year
ended September 30, 2005, 19 option shares were also used to cover the exercise price of the options

exercised.

The fair value of cach option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Expected life (years)

Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Expected dividend yield

2007
6
4.7%
54.1%
0%

06 2005
6 9
4.7% 4.1%
66.0% 63.9%
0% 0%

The average risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. treasury security rate in effect as of the
grant date. The Company determined expected volatility using a weighted average of its historical
month-end close stock price. The expected life was determined using the simplified method.
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Following is a summary of the siatus of the Company’s nonvested stock options as of
September 30, 2007 and changes during the year ended September 30, 2007:

Weighted-Average

rant-Date
Nonvested Share Options Share Options Fair Value ($)
Nonvested at October 1,2006................. 285 2.98
Granted ......... .. it 1,440 1.13
Vested .. e (303) 1.62
Forfeited .. ............ooviiiiiiaannn... _(545) 1.49
Nonvested at September 30,2007, .. ........... 877 1.34

The total fair value of share options vested during the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005 was $493, $1,153 and $2,286, respectively.

In fiscal 2007, the Company granted certain options that, in addition to the time vesting
requirement, had a performance condition based on the Company’s earnings before interest and taxes.
Of the 2,977 options outstanding at September 30, 2007, 510 options, with a weighted average grant
date fair value of $1.16, will vest upon the timing and performance conditions being met.

For the year ended September 30, 2007 stock-based compensation cost recognized in selling,
general and administrative expenses decreased income before income taxes and discontinued
operations by $764 and net income by $634. For the year ended September 30, 2006 stock-based
compensation cost recognized in selling, general and administrative expensés increased loss before
income taxes and discontinued operations, by $736 and net loss by $663. For both the years ended
September 30, 2007 and 2006, stock-based compensation had a $0.01 impact on basic and diluted EPS.
The Company recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period. As of September 30, 2007 there was $738 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested share-based compensation awards, net of estimated forfeitures, which the Company expects
to recognize over a weighted average period of approximately 1.7 years. The compensation cost as
generated by the Black-Scholes option-pricing model may not be indicative of the future benefit, if
any, that may be received by the option holder.

The following presents pro forma net income and related per share amounts as if the fair value
based method had been used to account for the Company’s stock options for the year ended
September 30, 2005:

2005

Net income, as reported .. ... e $18,736
Add: Stock-based compensation included in reported net income, net of related tax effect . . 21
Less: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based method

for all awards, net of related tax effects. . ........ ... .. i i (2,143)
Pro forma net income attributable to common shareholders. . ........................... $16,614
Net income per share:

Basic — as reported ... .. e § 042

Basic — Pro forma ... e e e $ 037
Net income per share:

Diluted — as reported. . .. .. .. e $ 041

Diluted — pro forma . ... . e $ 037
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Warrants:

In the third quarter of fiscal 2007, in connection with the execution of an agreement with an
unaffiliated third party pursuant to which such third party agreed to provide the Company with
consulting services related to investment banking advise, investor awareness and business advisory
services, the Company issued to such third party warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 135
shares of its common stock. Of the 135 warrants issued, 45 of the warrants are exercisable at $3.00 per
share, 45 of the warrants are exercisable at $3.35 per share and 45 of the warrants are exercisable at a
price of $3.75 per share. The warrants expire on October 18, 2008. At issuance, the warrants were
immediately vested and the Company recognized a charge of $177 related to the fair value of the
warrants.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, in connection with the execution of an agreement with an
unaffiliated third party pursuant to which such third party agreed to provide the Company with
consulting services related to corporate finance and investment banking matters, the Company issued
to such third party warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 350 shares of its common stock. Of the
350 warrants issued, 100 of the warrants are exercisable at $4.75 per share, 175 of the warrants are
exercisable at $5.50 per share and 75 of the warrants are exercisable at a price of $6.00 per share. At
issuance, the warrants had a fair value of $603, which was recognized by the Company in previous
fiscal years. In the third quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company extended the expiration date of the
warrants from August 13, 2007 to August 31, 2008 and recognized a charge of $258 related to the
additional fair value of the warrants.

The fair value of the warrants issued is estimated on the date of issuance using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. '

11. Commitments and Contingencies:

Guarantees;

The Amended Senior Credit Facility is collateralized by a first priority lien on the assets of the
Allied Holdings and certain of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied Holdings and certain of its
subsidiaries, the Company is guaranteeing the debt and other obligations of certain wholly-owned
U K. subsidiaries under the Amended Senior Credit Facility. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the
amounts guaranteed, which approximate the amounts outstanding, totalled $54,795 and $71,159,
respectively.

Employment Agreements:

The Company has two employment agreements that provided for minimum aggregate annual
compensation of $639 in fiscal 2007.

In September 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Ms. Eames, which
was modified in November 2004 and September 2005 and amended and restated in October 2006.
Pursuant to her amended and restated employment agreement, Ms. Eames has agreed to continue to
serve as Executive Vice President of the Company for a period of 18 months. The amended and
restated employment agreement is subject to automatic renewal for successive periods of one year
each unless terminated by either party on 90 days’ notice. Pursuant to her amended and restated
employment agreement, Ms. Eames’ base salary is $250 per annum. In addition, she is entitled to
receive $5 for each trip of five business days or more that she makes to the U.K. on Company
business, up to a maximum of $50 in any calendar year.

Ms. Eames’ amended and restated employment agreement provides that (a) if the Company
terminates her employment during the term of the agreement, or (b) if, within six months of a
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“change in control” (as defined in the amended and restated employment agreement) of the
Company, Ms Eames or the Company terminates her employment, or (c) if Ms. Eames terminates her
employment for “good reason” (as defined in the amended and restated employment agreement), then
(1) all stock options in the Company held by Ms. Eames will immediately vest, (2) Ms. Eames will be
entitled to receive a cash payment of 1.9 times her annual base salary during the twelve month
preceding the termination of employment or the change in control and (3) the Company must provide
Ms. Eames the benefits to which she was entitled immediately prior to the date of termination for a
period of twelve (12) months following the date of termination, except that if Ms. Eames becomes
entitled. to some or all of such benefits during the twelve-month post-termination period, then the
obligation to provide her with those benefits will cease. However, pursvant to the provisions of

Ms. Eames’ amended and restated employment agreement, she is not entitled to the foregoing benefits
if (a) the Company terminates her employment for cause, death or disability or (b) the termination of
Ms. Eames’ employment is the result of the non-renewal of the employment agreement by either

party.

Ms. Eames’ employment agreement was not further amended upon her becoming the interim
chief executive officer of the Company in July 2007.

In Deeds of Restrictive Covenants entered into in 1999 with one of our U.K. subsidiaries,
Ms. Eames agreed not to compete with the Company or its subsidiaries for twelve months following
termination of employment without the Company’s prior written consent.

In July 2006 the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt, its Chief
Financial Officer. The employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt provides that, during the first six
months thereof, either party may terminate the agreement upon one month’s written notice and,
thereafter, either party may terminate the agreement upon six month’s written notice. The
employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt further provides that Mr. Moffatt will not compete against us
for a period of six months following the termination of his employment with us. Pursuant to his
employment agreement, Mr. Moffatt currently receives a salary of $389. In addition, pursuant to his
employment agreement with us, Mr. Moffatt receives a car allowance and agreed to make a payment
equal to 15% of his annual salary towards his U.K.-based private pension fund. In addition, under the
employment agreement with Mr. Moffatt, the Company is required to pay him 12 months’ salary in
the event he is terminated due to an acquisition.

Operating Leases:

The Company has entered into various operating lease agreements for office space and
equipment. Certain of these leases provide for renewal options.

The Company’s future minimum rental commitments as of September 30, 2007 are as follows:

2008, . e e $2,587
2000, .. e 1,831
2010, e 1,218
1.7 1 724
2 579
Thereafter ......ovveiiii i i ieeans 156

$7,005

Rent CXpC;‘lSC under non-capitalized lease or rental agreements for the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $3,303, $3,272 and $3,344, respectively.
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Contingencies:

Some of the Company’s inactive subsidiaries were Medicare Part B suppliers who submitted
claims to the designated carrier who is the U.S. government’s claims processing administrator. From
time to time, the carrier may request an audit of Medicare Part B claims on a prepayment or
postpayment basis. If the outcome of any audit results in a denial or a finding of an overpayment,
then the affected subsidiary has appeal rights. Under postpayment audit procedures, the supplier
generally pays the alleged overpayment and can pursue appeal rights for a refund of any paid
overpayment incorrectly assessed against the supplier.

The Company believes that it has been in compliance, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the federal statutes, regulations and laws and applicable state laws together with all
applicable laws and regulations of other countries in which the Company operates. There can be no
assurance that an enforcement action will not be brought against the Company, or that the Company
will not be found to be in violation of one or more of these provisions. At present, the Company
cannot anticipate what impact, if any, administrative or judicial interpretation of the applicable federal
and state laws and those of other countries may have on the Company’s consolidated financial
position, cash flows or results of operations.

The Company is involved in various other legal proceedings and claims incidental to its normal
business activities. The Company is vigorously defending its position in all such proceedings.
.Management believes these matters should not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated
financial position, cash flows or results of operations of the Company.

Liabilities for loss contingencies, arising from claims, assessments, litigation and other sources are
. recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of liability can be
reasonably estimated. Based on management’s best estimate of probable liability, the Company has
accrued $971 and $661 for such costs at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

12. Profit Sharing Plan:

The Company has a profit sharing plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code,
concerning all U.S. employees who meet certain requirements. These requirements include, among
other things, at least one year of service and attainment of the age of 21. The plan operates as a salary
reduction plan whereby participants contribute anywhere from 1% to 15% of their compensation, not
to exceed the maximum available under the Code. The Company may make additional matching cash
contributions at its discretion.

In addition to the U.S. plan described above, certain of the Company’s U.K. subsidiaries also
sponsor personal pension plans. The plans operate as salary reduction plans, which also allows for
lump sum contributions, whereby participants contribute anywhere from 1% to 40% of their
compensation, not to exceed the maximum available under the U.K. tax laws. The Company may
make an additional contribution (which varies according to employee contracts and contribution
elections) which is in the form of cash. The Company’s contributions to the U.K. plans were $94, $42
and 368 for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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13. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):

The following table presents the comparative unaudited quarterly results for the years ended

September 30, 2007 and 2006:

2007 Quarter Ended
Total revenues . .. ...t

Grossprofit ...... ... .. o i

Net income (loss) from continuing operations ..
Discontinued Operations . ....................
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ...............

Net INCOIME ...ttt ittt i et e it iaeans.

Basic income (loss) per share of common stock
from:
Continuing operations. .....................
Discontinued operations....................

Net INCOIMIE . ...t i ittt e e ee e e e

Diluted income (loss) per share of common
stock from:
Continuing Operations. ...........oovviire.a.
Discontinued operations. ...................

Net INCOME . .. vttt e v ir ettt nrannnns

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
$66,854 $67.210 $70,503 $73,228
$20,099 $19,921 $21,240 $22,696
$ 1,382 $ 1,087 $ (303)(a) $ 1,450
$ 529 $ 920 $ 1,418 $ 3,399
$ — $ — $ — $56,471
$ 1,911 $ 2,007 $ 1,115 $61,320
$ 003 $ 002 §$(001) § 003

0.01 0.02 0.03 1.33
£ 004 $ 004 $ 002 § 1.36
$ 003 $ 002 $ (001 § 003
0.01 0.02 0.03 1.33
$ 0.04 $ 004 $ 002 $ 136

(a) Includes $922 severance costs and related professional fees incurred upon the resignation of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and $435 charge related to the issuance of new warrants
and the extension of the expiation date on previously-issued warrants.

2006 Quarter Ended
Total revenues . .. ... ... oot

Grossprofit ............ ... il

Net income (loss) from continuing operations . .

Discontinued Operations .....................

Netincome ...............cccoiiaiiit,

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share of
common stock from:

Continuing operations. . . ...................
Discontinued operations. ...................

Netincome ...,

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
$73,679 $68,048  $69234  § 69,244
$22,535 $20,751 $21,326 $ 21,118
$ 3,020 $2953  $1911  $(114,037)(a)
$ 386 $ (384) § (561) $ (17,059)(b)
$ 3,406 $ 2,569 $ 1,350 $(131,096)
$ 007 $ 007 $ 004 $  (2.54)

0.01 (0.01) (0.01) (0.38)
$ 008 $ 006 $ 003 § (292

(a) Includes total charges of $115,192, net of tax, related to impairment charges on goodwill, other

intangibles and fixed assets.

(b) Includes total charges of $16,229, net of tax, related to impairment charges on goodwill, other

intangibles and fixed assets.
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14. Subsequent Events:

On October 1, 2007 Allied Holdings prepaid the amounts outstanding under the term loan A and
the term loan B1 facilities. Allied Holdings also cancelled term loan A, term loan B1 and revolving
loan C on October 1, 2007. In October 2007, Allied Holdings also paid off the amounts outstanding
on its invoice discount facility. In addition, on October 3, 2007, the Company sold its interest rate
swaps related to the bank debt that had been paid down.
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September 30, September 30,
2007 2006

ASSETS

Current asseis:
Cash and cash equivalents. .......... .. ... .o, $ 8 3 18
Prepaid expenses and otherassets .............. ... o i 108 161
Total current assets . . ... ..iven i e i e 116 179
Property and equipment, net. . ... .. i i e e 1 4
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries ...............oovineninin.. 158,072 85,234
Goodwill . ... e e e 2,300 2,300
L 13T i T3 . P — 66
Total assets ............ S $160489 § 87,783

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

ACCOUNLS PAYADIE, L .\ v\t ettt e e $ 405 § 103
Accrued BXPENSES . .. ... e 1,315 607
Liabilities of discontinued operations ............... .. ... ... ... ..., — 690
Taxes payable. ...... ... i e s 10 —

Total liabilities .. ..................... e 1,730 1,400

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares, issued and

outstanding ~ nNoONe . ... .. e — —_ .
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 80,000 shares, issued 45 571
and 45,542 shares, respectively ........... .. e 456 455
Additional paid-in capital. ........... e 240,206 238,944
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ........... . .o 18,018 13,258
Accumulated deficit. . ..., ... e (97,627) (163,980)
161,053 88,677
Less cost of treasury stock (585 shares) ..................c..cooiint. (2,294) (2,294)
Total shareholders’ equity .. ....... ..ot i 158,759 86,383
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity............................ $160,489 $ 87783

See note to condensed financial information.
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September M), September 30, September 30,
2007 2606 2005
REVENUE . .ttt ettt et et eaeee ey $ — $ —
Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............. 4,257 3,230 3,090
Total @Xpenses . .......covvviiiin e 4,257 3,230 3,090
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries .................... 4,053 (106,715) 14,092
Interest INCOME . ..ottt it et it cnenaanneas 3,765 3,795 3,810
Other income (EXPENSE). .. ... rrerrniineeniieenne... 65 (5) 159
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued
OPEIALIONS. . ..ottt ettt i e 3,626 (106,155) 14,971
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ................. 10 (2) 2
Income (loss) before discontinued operations . ......... 3,616 (106,153) 14,969
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes. . 6,266 (17,618} 3,767
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of taxes ............ 56471 — —
62,737 (17,618) 3,767
Net income (1088) ..ot $66,353 $(123,771) $18,736

See note to condensed financial information.
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(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Netincome (loss) ...... ... ...,
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
used in operating activities:
(Income} loss from discontinued operations ..........
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries.....................
Equity interest in net (income) loss of subsidiaries . . ..
Depreciation and amortization. ., . . .........cveenn..
Issuance and amortization of warrants .. .. ...........
Stock based compensation — employees..............
Forgiveness of intercompany debt...................
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the.
effect of businesses acquired and sold:
Increase in receivables from subsidiaries .............
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other
BSSEES . e
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other
liabilities. .. ... ... ...

Net cash used in operating activities......... R

Cash flows from financing activities:

Stock options exercised . ... ... ... L e
Net cash provided by financing activities...........

Effect of exchange rate oncash.................. ... ...

SCHEDULE I
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 36, September 3), September 3,
2007 2006 2005

$ 66,353 $(123,771) $ 18,736
(6,266) 17,618 (3,767)

(56,471) — —
(4,053) 106,715 (14,092)

3 5 6

499 — 261

764 736 21

(125) — -
(1,852) (1,269) (2,649)

120 (111) 119
1,018 (660) (1,011)
{10) (737) (2,376)

— 411 791

— 411 791

— — 23
(10) (326) (1,562)

18 344 1,906

$ 8 $ 18 § 344

See note to condensed financial information.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

SCHEDULE I — CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
NOTE TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Basis of Presentation:

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted.
Accordingly, this condensed financial information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements of Allied Healthcare International Inc. (the “Company™) in its 2007 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

The investments in the Company’s subsidiaries are carried on the equity basis, which represents
amount invested less dividends received plus or minus the Company’s equity in the subsidiaries’
income or loss to date. Significant intercompany balances and activities have not been eliminated in
the unconsolidated financial information.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC. !
(In thousands)

SCHEDULE H — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E

Ralance at Additions Charged to Balance at
Beginnin; Cost and Other End of
Description of Perio Expenses Accounts Deductions Period

Aliowance for Doubtful Accounts:

Year ended September 30, 2007 .. ...... $1,703 $222 $168®  $523 () $1570
Year ended September 30, 2006 . . ...... $1,726 $428 $125®  $576 A $1,703
Year ended September 30,2005 ........ $1,232 $788 $(62)®  $232™  $1.726

(A) Doubtful accounts written off, net of recoveries and sold.

(B} Adjustments arising from translation of foreign financial statements to U.S. dollars.




